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THE

TRIAL

OF

RICHARD "PATCH

FOR THE WILFUL MURDER OF

ISAAC BLIGHT.

At the Lent Assizes for the County of Surry, holden
at Kingston, before the Right Honorable Sir
Archibald Macdonald, Knt. Lord Chief Baron
of His Majesty’s Court of Exchequer; and the
Honorable John Heath, Esquire, one of the Jus-
tices of Iis Majesty’s Court of Common Pleas,
the Grand Jury found a Bill of Indictment against
lglchﬂrd. Patch, for the wilful Murder of Isaac

light.

The Trial was appointed to take place at the Session
House, at Newington, on Saturday the 5th of
April.

SESSION HOUSE, NEWINGTON,
Saturday, April 5, 1806.

Before the Right Honorable Stk ARCHIBALD Mac-
DONALD, Knt. Lord Chief Baron of His Majesty’s
Court of 1*.&L11Eriuc1

Counsel for the Crown, Counsel for the Prisoner,

Mzr. Garrow, : MR. Serjeant BEsT,

MR.COMMONSERIEANT, MR. GURNEY,

Mr.CoNsT,

Mz, POOLEY.

Solicitors, Solicitor.
MR. C. HUMPHREYS, MEssrs. FLETCHER and
Barnard's Inn. WRiGHT, Hyde Street,
Bloomsbury.
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The Court being opened, and Richard Patch set
to the Bar, he was arraigned on the Indictment, to
which he pleaded not guilty. Then the Pannel re-
turned by the High Sheriff was called over, and the
following were sworn

THE JURY.

CHARLES SM1TH, of Merton.
Trnomas DALEY, of Barnes.
JonN LAayToN, of Putney.
Joun CAPE, of Putney.

Isaac HiLLIER, of Merton.
Hexry Woob, of Putney.
JouN WEDGE, of Wandsworth.
TaoMmas BARTLETT, of Merton.
GEORGE MOORE, of Putney.
GEORGE SMITH, of Putney.
DaANIEL LANGTON, of Wandsworth.
THoMAs CHAPMAN, of Putney.

Mr. KNAPP, the Clerk of Arraigns, charged the

Jury with the Prisoner, in the usual form, on the
following Indictment,
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THE INDICTMENT.

SURREY—The Jurors for our Lord the King upon
their Qath present that Richard Patch late of the
Parish of Saint Mary Rotherhithe in the County of
Surrey Labourer not “havi ing the Fear of God before
his If_, 'es but being mov ed and seduced by the In-
stlgatmn of the Devil on the twenty-third Day of
September in the forty fifth Year of the Reign of our
Sovereign Lord George the Third by the “Grace of
God of the United I\llwdﬂm of Great Britain and
Ireland King Defender of the Faith with Force and
Arms at the Parish aforesaid in the County aforesaid
in and upon Isaac Blight in the Peace of God and
our said Lord the hmﬂ then and there being felo-
niously wilfully and Gf his Malice afm{,thnwrht did
make an Assault and that the said Richard Patch
a certain Pistol of the Value of TIive Shillings
loaded with Gunpowder and a leaden Bullet w hich
he the said Richard Patch then and there had and
held 1 his right Hand to at and against the said
Isaac Blight :}uI then and there feloniously wilfull
and of his Malice aforethought shoot off and dis-
charge and that the said Richard Patch with the
leaden Bullet afaresaid out of the said Pistol so shot
off and discharged by him the said Richard Patch as
aforesaid him the said Isaac Blight in and upon the
right Side of the Body of him the said Isaac Blight
did then and there feloniously wilfully and of his
Malice aforethought strike penetrate and wound giv-
ing to him the said Isaac Blight then and there by
such striking penetrating and wounding of him the

said Isaac Blight with the leaden Bullet aforesaid
out of the saul Pistol so shot off and discharged by
him the said Richard Patch as aforesaid one mortal
Wound in and upon the right Side of the Body of
him the said Isaac Blight ot" the width of one Inch
and of the Depth of ten Inches of which said mortal
Wound the said Isaac Blight from the said twenty-
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third Day of September in the Year aforesaid until
the twenty-fourth Day of same Month of September
in the same Year at the Parish aforesaid in the Coun-
ty aforesaid did languish and languishing did live
on which twenty-fourth Day of September in the
Year aforesaid the said Isaac Blight at the Parish
aforesaid in the County aforesaid of the mortal
Wound aforesaid did die and sothe Jurors aforesaid
upon their Oath aforesaid do say that the said Rich-
ard Patch him the said Isaac Blight in Manner and
Form aforesaid feloniously wilfully and of his Malice
aforethought did kill and murder against the Peace
of our said Lord the King his Crown and Dignity
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The Indictment was opened by AMr. POOLEY,

Mr. GARROW,

May it please your Lordship,

Gentlemen, I have the honor of attending you in
order to discharge the duty which belongs to the
Counsel for the Crown, in stating the circuimnstances
of this case.

Gentlemen, we are engaged in a very awful and
most important enquiry, which will require your best
and undivided and particular attention.

You will not expect from me, in opening this case
to you, that I should enter into any elaborate argu-
ment, or endeavour by any subtilty of reasoning, to
lead you to the conclusion to which I, who have to
state it to you, must necessarily have arrived, that
the justice of it will in the result call upon you to
pronounce the Prisoner guilty; you will attend en-
tirely to the evidence as it shall be laid before you
in this place, and you will consider what I shall
have the honor of addressing to you merely as an
index to that evidence, and intended to assist you
with the greater facility to pursue it in its details,
and to attend to it with such observations as you
will by and by receive upou it from his Lordship.

Gentlemen, as at this place, and at this time, you
are somewhat unusually asseinbled, it may not be
unfitting, and I hope s Lordship will not consider
it to be so, if I say a word or two to you upon that
subject ; I do it the rather because it affords me an
opportunity, in the name of the public justice of the
Country, and I may be permitted to add too, in the
name of the Prisoner, whom I prosecute, to make an
humble offering of thanks to his Lordship for having
thus assembled us. We have to lament (I wish I
could flatter myself that this would be the last time
in my professional life, that I should have to make
@ similar complaint) that upon this melancholy and

Ad
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“most important subject, there have been but toc
many details in the public prints.

The Prisoner would, in the ordinary course of
justice, have been tried at the Assizes holden by his
Lordshlp in a different part of the County from that
in which you are now assembled. The case had
excited much curiosity, the indictment was found at
that Assize, and was there naturally the subject of
much conversation, and therefore his Lordship, in
that anxious attention which all British Judges pay
to the security of the subject, has thought it fitter to
adjourn to this place, and to direct new summonses
to you now for the first time called, to the conside-
ration of the case, in order that, between the public
and the Prisoner, there may be a fair and satisfactory
deliverance, and from you I have no doubt that it
may confidently be expected, and will be received.

Gentlemen, I take the liberty of saying one word
more.—If you have had the misfortune, as but too
probably you may, to have read, before it could have
entered into the imagination of any cne of you, that
youwould be to pass as aJuryman upon this trial,any
account of this melancholy transaction; for God’s
sake do your best to dismiss it from your recollec-
tion, and bring yourselves to the pure consideration
of the evidence alone. Permit me, too, to observe, that
prejudice against the person accused is not the only
mischief to be dreaded from these dangerous and
most improper and ill-timed pl]l)llCdT_lUllS there 13
another, against which I take the liberty of caution-
ing you, there is danger that with the best intentions
you may suspect ycmlsr:h cs of an 1mproper bias,
and because you may have heard something out of
doors, a distrust of yourselves might lead to a failure
to do your duty; you will not, I am persuaded, fall
into such a fatal impropriety. You will recollect
the oath you have taken, to make a true deliverance
between the King and the Defendant; you will do
that by attending to the evidence, and I am sure the

Public and the Pilb(}ll{.‘r will alike have reason to be
satisficd.
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Gentlemen, I will proceed to state the relative
situations of the unfortunate deceased, and the Pri-
soner now accused at your Bar.—I shall endeavour
to make you acqainted with the situation of the pre-
mises in which the deceased resided, and where he
met his death.—I shall state to you what appears to
me; but here again, [ caution you to reject all I say
that does not, by the evidence laid before you, meet
with full confirmation as that evidence goes along.
No man will accuse me, I am sure, of dcsngued!y
stating one syllable to inflame you, or mislead you,
but it may happen, that having looked at this case
with a view to discharge the very anxious duty I am
now discharging, and which I 'would fain have reti-
red from, if I could have done it with propriety, the
circumstances may have struck me in a light stronger
than they ought to do.—You will correct my errors
—you will be most ably and most powerfully assisted
in making that correction.

I shall proceed in stating the relative situations
of these parties, a situation which, if the Defendant
be guilty of this murder, places him in the condition
of one of the worst men the history of- mankind has
ever presented us with; as a man who deliberately
sought the occasion of bringing his best benefactor
and friend into the toils of 11115::'mf.‘f and there with
determined parpose of destreying him, taking away
that life which had been for 2 considerable time *-.p-::n!;
for his benefit.—A case which if it is not indeed petit
treason, i1s next of kin to that crime.—I believe
amounting to petit treason.—I shall procecd then to
give you an account of the premises in which these
parties resided, and in which this deed was perpe-
trated, from.whence I apprehend that it will result,
that it i1s absolutely 1mpossible—I say it advisedly,
it is absolutely impossible that any other hand could
have occasioned the death of Mr. Blight than the
hand of the Prisoner at the bar.

I shall proceed to detail other circumstances to
you, from whence I apprehend that it will, with al-
most equal certaiuty, result, that by his hand M.
Blight came to his death,
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1 shall be under the necessity of detailing to you
the demeanor, the conduct, and the conversations of
the Prisoner, from whence the same result, in my
humble judgment, seems necessarily to follow; and,
1 shall then produce to you some circumsiances in
evidence, in which, without suspecting myself of
being very superstitious, I have persuaded myself
that I see the directing hand of Providence to arrest
guilt in its career, and to bring the guilty to punish-
ment.

Gentlemen, the deceased, Mr. Blight, lived in the
neighbourhood of Greenland-Dock, where he had,
for a considerabie time, carried on extensively the
business of a Ship-breaker, which you know copsists
in purchasing ships and breaking them up in order
to make a profit of their materials; he had, for a me-
nial servant in his family, a sister of the Prisoner
Patch, and you will find that in the spring of the
year 1803 (and it will not be material for me to bur-
den vour recollection with more than two or three
dates) you will find in the spring of 1803 the Pri-
soner came to pay a visit to his sister, then a menial
servant in the family of Mr. Blight.—She asked per-
misston for her brother to remain there that night,
which was granted, and then he represented himself
to be a person in very distressed circumstances, who
had been under the necessity of leaving the West of
Ewngland on account of the embarrassment of his af-
fairs, and some dispute about tithes, and that he
would be glad to enter into the meanest employment
that could produce him a living; and you will find
that an important fact in this case, when you come
to compare it with some circumstances which I shall
state presently., You will find that he in fact en-
gaged in the service of Mr. Blight merely for his
victnals and drink; no salary, no wages, but merely
working for his victuals and drink; we find him then,
i the spring of 1803, a considerably distressed man,

He continued for some time upon this footing
with Mr. Blight, and then being, I believe, a valua-
bie servant, by employing himself usefully in the
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concerns of his master, he agreed to give him in ad-
dition to the board he had had before, thirty pounds
a year, by way of salary; he went on for some time
upon this footing, and at length desiring rather to
board himself, than to board in the family, his salary
was raised to an hundred a year.

We find his history then to be this, that he leaves
his home in the spring of 1803, that he is a sort of
outcast without any means of subsistence, that at
length he gets into a situation where, by his hard
labour, he 1s earning the sum of a hundred pounds
per annum,

You will find that, in the year 1803, Mr. Blight
became somewhat embarrassed in his circumstances,
and that it became necessary for him to call his cre-
ditors together, and to make arrangements with them
for the purpose of settling his affairs, and there was
a deed of composition executed, a sort of thing you
know which takes place frequently, and by which
the ruins of his affairs were to be divided among his
creditors, and he to be made a free man.

You will find the Prisoner afterwards taking a very
important, share in this transaction, and I believe fur-
nishing, from that transaction, a clue to that guils
which this Indictment imputes to him; probably some
of you know, that upon these arrangements being
made, the object is to make an equal distribution of
the property amongst all the creditors, as the ope-
ration of the Bankrupt law is; so thatif all do not
come in ; but if A, for instance, stands out, and in-
sists upon payment of his whole debt, it is usunally
provided that the deed shall become void and of no
effect; then the person, of course, becomes possessed
again of his own property, subject to all its habilities.
It appears that one of the creditors of Mr. Blight
did not consent to this deed, or, which is the same
thing in effect, perhaps had paid a sum of money
after the execution of the deed, which did not range
under it, and therefore threw the arrangement into
¢onfusion ; in consequence of which, in an evil houy,
it occurred to Mr. Blight, that it was necessary ta
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protect himself against this creditor, who thus might
become importunate ; and he did that which those
who survive him, and are interested 1n his fate, have
reason to lament, he executed an instrument con-
veying his property to the Prisouer at the Bar, his
bosom friend.

There was an appearance of a transfer of all that
property to the Prisoner for a nominal consideration
of 20650, 4s. you will find that circumstance is of
considerable importance in the consideration of this
cause. Themanner in which that scheme was carried
into execution was, by enumerating the property sup-
posed to be transferred, in a bill of parcels, a receipt
tor the supposed counsideration-money, and inas-
much as he had applied to the City for a renewal of
his lease in his own name, a letter to Patch stating
that that lease would be to be obtained for his be-
nefit, though the petition had been put in in the
name of Blight ;:—this was, I think, in the month
of July, 1805, . :

Gentlemen, some time after this, the family of
Mr. Blight went into the country, to Margate, and
he was about to follow them, but before he went there
he entered into a new agreement with the Prisoner ;—
vou observe that the one I stated before was merely
colorable between them, to appear or not to appear,
as the pressure of creditors might come upon Mr,
Blight, to be withdrawn altogether, if there should
be no such pressure: (in plain English) to defraud
the creditors, and protect the property of Blight.—
Bat, in the month of August, he entered into a new
agreement with the Prisoner, which will be of the last
importance for you to recollect, in which it was sti-
pulated that Mr. Blight should retire nominally from
the conduct of the business, that the Prisoner should
conduct 1t 3 but it was to be done upon these terms :
Blight to be interested in two-thirds of the profits of
the trade, the Prisoner being interested in the re-
maining one-third ; and for this the Prisoner was to
pay the sum of 1250L.—Now, Gentlemen, it will have
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accurred to you, probably, that this was likely to be
a diflicult thing to obtain of a man of whom I have
given the account which you have heard: he is
i the ‘5{)11:19; of 1803, a man without means ; he then
works for some time for his board,—then for thirty
pounds a year in addition to his board, from which
it 1s not to be imagined much could IJE saved ;—at
length he boards himself, and has a remuneration
of a hundred a year for his labour; it is difficult
to conceive how, at this time, out of any funds
with which we are acquainted, he could be able to
pay a consideration ot 1250/—but he certainly did
pay to Mr. Blight the sum of 2350. part of that
1250/.—and which, probably, he might have got
together since the ruin of his fortune in the West,
leaving a sum due to Blight of 1000/.—It became
necessary, however, that as only 250L was paid,
some security should be given to the man who was
giving up this beneficial interest in his trade, and
the Prisoner gave to him that, which, upon Mr.
Blight and his Banker, he passed as avaluablesecur ity,
was in the shape of a draft upon a person of the
name of Goom, payable for 1000/—which draft
would become pay ahle according to the time of its
date, the 16th of September.

Now the representation that the Prisoner gave
on that subject was, that he had sold an estate in
the West, that he had rececived the consideration-
money on it, and that he had lent it to Mr. Goom—
when that was first stated to Mr. Blight, he remon-
strated, and said it was odd he should have thus
glued up the money—meaning thus have locked up
the money which it was important for them to have
in the trade, but the thing was done, and could not
be avoided ; therefore, the payment to Blight of a
thousand puundb stood upon the security of a draft
drawn by the Prisoner upon Goom, which would be
demandable on the 16th of September.

Gentlemen, when the 16th nf September arrived,
the Prisoner represented to the Hdnkerh, that G{IHJIH
was not in a condition to take this up when it should
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be due; and he withdrew it, substituting another
draft of his own upon Goom, for 1000/, demandable
upon the 20th day of that September: 11

We come now to a date most closely and inti-
mn[c}}.‘ connected with the main 'U'bjE‘{:t of our en-
quiry —Upon Thursday the 19th day of September,
Mr. Blight left his home m order to visit his wife,
then at Margate ; he had proposed to 1_11ake_same
short stay there ; the important concerns in which he
was engaged, as they respected his property, were
the payment of this draftof 1000/ from Goom, which
he lad reason to expect would take place upon the
20th of September, the day after he left London; of
course, the day after he would have arrived at
Margate.

It will be material to see how the Prisoner was
engaged at this time; he accompanied his friend as
far as Deptford, on his journey to Margate, and
then he presented himself to his Bankers, represent-
ing to them that Goom would not be in a condition
to fuce (as his expression was) the draft upon the 20th;
but that he had got from him a note which satisfied
him, and therefore the Bankers were not to present
that draft of 1000/ upon Mr. Goom. The Ban-
kers you know were the mere creatures and instru-
ments of the parties, and as they were desired not
to present the draft, of course it weuld not be pre-
sented,

Now, this 19th 1s a day of vast importance in the
melancholy scene which you are called upon to con-
template ; the Prisoner isnow leftat home u the house
of Blight, with no other person in that house but a
female servant, a woman of the name of Kitchener;
and you will find that the family usually spent their
evenings in what I shall call the front parlor of the
house, by which I mean to be understood, the parlor
fronting the Thames. The Prisover was alone, and
at about eight o’clock in the evening he desived the
servant, Kitchener, to go out and bring him in six-
pennyworth of oysters for his supper. 1 take it for
granted that she had not far to go, but before she
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returned, this cireumstance had happened, that
either a gun or musket-ball had been {fired thre un.,h
the shutter of the window of that front parlor i
which the Prisoner was sitting, and in which tlm
family ordinarily sat. Upou this happening, as he
represents it, he immediately jumped up in a state of
considerable alarm, and went out upon the wharf,
which you will anderstand better when I turn to this
model, and describe the situation of the premises,
which I will not do at present, lest I should disturb
your attentiou from the narrative; he went'out and
looked about, and could find nobody there ; he went
to the gate, and there did find a man and his wife,
who will be called as witnesses.

I charge, Gentlemen, and I undertake to satisfy
you that that shot, thus fired upon the 19th, was not
the shot of any enemy to any person in that house ;
but was fired by the Prisoner at the bar, for the pur-
pose of bringing about that catastrophe, which, in
the mmmEFI prﬂr:-cvd to state to you, he immediatelv
set about to accomplish; I say, that it was not fired
by any enemy to any person in that house, I
have seen the place—but, I shall give you evidence
upon the subject, and I shall demonstrate to you by
that evidence, that it was impossible it should bave
been an hostile fir ing ; for in the front of that room
there 1s a wharf UI}{}H whu,h the timber of the ships,
when they have been broken up, are placed; there 1sa
considerable depth of wharf, so that the only way in
which any person could have fired at that window,
must have been either by standing upon the whart,
and so firing, or from some other direction; now we
will see first, whether any enemy could have fired it
from the wharf; the Prisoner is sitting in the room,
he instantly quits it, and goes out to search for the
person who has fired that pistol; he finds no one,
and he comes then to the gate of the wharf—the part
only by which any person could possibly have es-
caped, and there be finds a man, who will tell you,
that he neither saw any man running, walking, or us
he put it, climbing over the pales; that be did hear
a report of a pistol, and he will prove that it was
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impossible from the premises of Blight for any pers
¢on, who had discharged that pistol, to have escaped
without his observation.

Gentlemen, 1 have stated that it was impossible
for any body to escape from the premises over the
paling, but you may say, why not over th_e wharf,
and by the river: for this reason, that I will prove
to you, that, at that time 1t was low water, and there
was a deep mud into which any body would have sunk
to suffocation if he had endeavoured to escape there;
that in any other direction in which any body could
have fired at that window, there was a large crane,
and other objects, that would have intercepted his
aim, and that above all, from the manner in which
the ball has entered, close to tie lower part of the
shutter, it is evident that it was discharged close to
that shutter—that it has rested upon the rail of the
shutter, perforated the outside shutter, gone through
close at the bottom of the sash, and broken the Vene-
tian blind, and so gone in; but we shall come to see
presently, from the conduct of the Prisoner, whether
he or any body else did this, :

But, it may be said, might not this be fired from
the river? Isay, no. First, because the water was
low; i the next place, that the elevation from the
mud, if any body had stood there, is such, that it
was impossible for any person to have discharged a
pistol from that situation, the ball from which could
have found its way to this shutter, for it must have
gone in an elevated direction, so as to have reached
some much higher part of the house; you will judge,
from the conduct of the Prisoner on the occasion,
whether it was a shot fired by some other person, or
by the Prisoner himself, in furtherance of that plan
which this Prosecution charges upon him. As soon
as he went forth out of the premises of Mr. Blight
an alarm was given, a near neighbour, a publican of
the name of I'rost, came in; the question was, what
dees all this mean, what is the object of it, whilst a
man is sitting alone in his house, in a room in which
the family had been accustomed to sit, a pistol shot
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fivred into that room must mean malicious mischief
Then any person who had brought himself up to the
perpetration of this malicious mischief, and has made
one unsuccessful attempt to accomplish his purpose,
will probably follow up that object. Now, in Courts
of Justice, we must reason according to the common
couduct of mankind; we must form our conclusions
from circumstances. To God alone are known the
secrets of the heart: we can only judge of them, we
can only decide on the conduct of men upon trial, by
what we see and know of the ordinary conduct of
the rest of mankind.  Upon this story being stated,
the neighbours naturally offer their assistance to pro-
tect the person who has thus been put into peril:
they first offer to continne with the Prisoner that
night? ¢ No,” he says, “they won’t come again to
right.”  Well, but why not guard against the possi-
bility of that? No, no; they won’t come again to
night. Well, but if you are to remain in the house
alone, it were well to be guarded, to be prepared
against the possibility of a repetition of the attack,
FHave you any means of defence? Yes; I have pis-
tols: but have no ammunition. Well, 1 will furnish
vou with ammunition? No; I don’t want any to
protect me, or means to protect myself, I shall go
home, and go to bed. And home he goes, amd to
bed. This, you observe, is the 19th of September.

On the next day he writes to his partner, Mr.
Blight, at Margate, and he gives an account of this
most extraordinary and alarming transaction; and
he says, he hopes it may turn out to have been
accidental ; that {or himself he knows no person that
can have any animosity against him—that he wishes
to know for whom this had been intended, whether
himself or Mr. Blight, and wishes for his counsel
upon that subject; and he concludes his letter in
language you may consider somewhat remarkable
—*¢ I shall be happy to receive a few lines from you,
but much more to see you, as vou are the only friend I
have to consult with.”—

]



18 -

Gentlemen, I for one have not discovered the ne«
cessity of this call of Mr. Blight immediately from
Marcate—I admit it was extremely fit that there
should be measures of caution taken—I admit that
an instant application to the Police would bave been
extremely judicious under those circumstances, and
that to communicate the circumstance to Mr. Blight
was extremely natural ; but I do not see the necessity
of thus bringing his partner up to London ;—this
Jetter is not very short, it is not confined to a few
lines; and considering the anxiety which the Pri-
soner knew Mr. Blight felt on the subject of the
payment of the 1000/, one should have expected
that there would have been in some part of it a nota
bene, either Goom has taken up his note which you
expected to be taken up this day, or he is not in a
condition to take it up, but has given me some secu-
vity which you will think sufficient ; this letter, how-
ever, is absolutely silent upon the subject of Goom’s
money.—Mr. Blight receives this at Margate, and
without loss of time comes to London, where he ar-
rives on Monday, the 23d of September.

. The first object of enquiry when he came, I take
for granted was into the circumstances of this tiring
on the preceding Thursday, but it does not appear
to have been considered by any of the parties to be
of so much importance as to induce them to take any
precautionary steps upen 1t.

Thenextobjectof enguiry of Mr. Blight, I believe,
was as to the payment of this 1000/ about which he
had been for some tune uneasy, and the Prisoner, you
will find, certainly did not communicate to him that
which he had done immediately upon his leaving
town, namely, that he had forbid the banker’s pre-
senting the draft upon the 20th, and stated, that he
had another satisfactory security in substitution for
it; —if any thing was to be communicated to Mr.
Blight, that was a natural thing to communicate;
but, upon the contrary, he led Blight to believe that
the money was not only perfectly safe, but forth-
coming, and as I shall prove, and you will find it
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extremely important, because you will find the Pri-
soner expressly denying that any such circumstance
took place ; youn will find the Prisoner took a jour-
ney to London for the express purpose of procur-
ing that money, with a positive peremptory inhibi-
tion from his partner against returning till it should
be procured; he returned in the afternoon, and what
passed between them it is not in my power to state;
the day passed on till evening, they drank tea toge-
ther; 1t was then proposed, they should have some
grog—they were each taking their glass of grog
till about eight in the evening.

I have stated that the family usually spent their
evenings in the front parlor, to the window of
which front parlor the first shot on Thursday the 19th
was fired; they, the Prisoner and the deceased, for
the first time passed their evening in the back par-
lor; upon that Monday, in that back parlor, by
somebody, Mr. Blight was shot and murdered.—Now,
it appears to me, that with all attention to the chaste
and proper discharge of my duty, and I do assure
you I amn most anxious so to conduct myself, I should
neglect that duty, if I did not here enquire, what
would have been the conduct of any body who had
intended a fatal blow, either to the Prisoner or to Mr.
Blight? but from what has happened we must un-
derstand it to be Mr. Blight—if any body who had
made that attack upon Thursday had intended to
repeat it on the Monday, where would that per-
son, acquainted with the habits of this family,
have found himself, in order to accomplish his pur-
pose and perpetrate the crime: —you are, I pre-
sume, ready to answer, certainly in the front parlor,
in which the family always sat, and were naturally
to be found.—But, on this evening, they were sit-
ting in the back parler; and at eight o’clock you
will find the Prisaner Patch quitting that back par-
lor in which he had thus been sitting with his friend,
who had been travelling all night, who was drowsy,
and had been drinking grog, quitting him and going,
to the maid servant in the kitchen close adjoining,

B 2
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and there asking her for the key of the counting-
house, and for a candle, atatmq that he was disor-
dered in his bowels, and that 1t was necessary for
him lil]tlu-’(lhﬂl_]“i' to go to the necessary. Yﬂu will

hot forget, for a reason I shall state presﬁnlfy, that

he made that declaration; 1 is a thing that does
not ordinarily eccur to pmc,lmm those necessities,
particularly to persons of the other sex, but you will
tind that declaration to be a eircumstance not un-
impertant in the consideration eof this case;—he
goes ont, therefore, of this kitchen with a candle
in his hand—he passes the door of the room in
which Blight is sitting, that door he leaves open, he
goes to the street-deor, which he opens, and leaves
it open, he epens the gate 1 the front of the street..
door, he turns round tc the counting-house, the deor
of which heunlocks and passes on tothe privy through
the counting-house, and, according to the tPsllmmlv
of Kitchener, he raps the door of that privy hard,

whichofitselfdoes not fall to hard, but he rapsthe deor

of that privy hard, and, as she described, she instantly
saw the flash of a pistekat the door aflh%pm tor where
hermaster was sitting, and before she could reach the
dresser, which, according te my recollection of dis-
tance, is rather further than from me tp-the Prisoner,*
her master eame into the kitchen, rested upon the
dresser, and stated himself to be a dead man, putting
his h;md upon the wound which had bee:m, in the
time I bhave mentioned, inflicted upon him ;—the
matd-servant rushes torward, and finds the street-
door and the gate open, and she immediately does
that which wstinet, 1 think, under such circumstan-
ces, suggests, she shuts that street-door to, it went
upon a spring lock, and by the time she has got it
to, the Prisoner at the bar is knocking loudly for
a mission at that door.

Now,Gentlemen, the only dlfﬁtultvlhatlhmesem
in this case, it it deserves the name of one, is that which
grows out of the representation I have now given of
Isiichener, as to time,becanse she saysthathaving heard

s F - -“‘t# o I
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the Prisoner slam the door of the privy, she /nstantly
saw the flash at the door of the parlor, and if you are
to take that representation to be literally correct, and
to mean what you and 1 should mean by m.-e'mu{z,r, if
the doeor of this Court was te he thrown to, and I at
the same instant should level a pistol at you, to be
sure the thing is impossible; but may I net, even in
a criminal case of this high impor tance, ask you whe-
ther your @wn constant and hourly experience does
mot teach you, that in the most tranquil seasons, but
above all in seasons of alarm, if you were called up-
on to recollect when such a thing succeeded another
thing, is there any circumstance which we describe
OF measure so0 iﬂ, and with se little certamty and
;uleuamn, a6 time >—do net you hear persons of the

bighest respeetability differing even as to hours in
their narration of the same transaction ? this must
be familiar to ms all; if any man will ask himself
of any wccurrence that has happened te lum, take it
in sickness or health, in times of business or plea-
sure, take it in any of the ordinary transactions of life,
and it is one of those things about which there is the
greatest difficulty : If indeed there were nothing else
in the cause but this—to be sure you would give
great weight to the expression coming from the wit-
ness, that she saw the thing at a time at which I, for
the prosecution, admit, taken in the strict letter of
the expressiou, i6 impossible, because the same per-
son could not be at the privy and the parlor-deor
at precisely the same moment ; what I state 1s, that
the Prisoner either went to the privy, or had the
appearance of going there, mstaatly returned and
shot the deceased, and then went out for the purpose
which 1 shall state presently, and returned to the
door the instant the girl had shut it.

You will not forget the state of the tide as I de-
scribed it to you; youwill be so good as now to learn,
that in the front of the house there is a paved court
enclosed by pahisadoes and a gate; in the front of
that there s a wharf, upon which there is not common
strect dirt, but that sort of soil which will, in the

BJ
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course of this trial, turn ot to be not unimportant,the
dirt arising fromthebreakingup of ships; you will by
and by see rthe importance of that observation ; upon
the door being opened, the Prisoner came lnta the
house, and flew immediately to the assistance of Mr.
Blight; there was an mten,ha.nge of affectionate
expressions between them, and a desire, on the part
of the Prisoner, that assistance might be immedi-
ately fetched, and you will find the servant got out
of the kitchen window, and went to Frost's, who had
beentherethe preceding night; he came immediately,
and will describe the state in which he found him.
I take the liberty of saying, that my view of
this cause is, that the evidence will exclude the pos-
sibility of any other person than the Prisoner having
committed this horrid act ; this is my first position ;
and I will tell you upon what it stands, the gates of
the yard were close shut and fastened; the small
gate was close shut, the state of the tide was such
that nobody could have escaped that way, and to
ut it out of all doubt, there were, most providen-
tially, within view of all those parts from which
any stranger who had found access to the house
of Mr. Blight and shot him could have escaped
by land; I mean in contradistinction to their es-
cape hy water over the wharf; there were, I say,
assembled severa! persons, who will be called as
witnesses, one of them bearing a lighted link, who
will tell yon, with absolute r:ertainty, that in fact no
permn did escape that way—could they, then, escape
any other way? No, for the reasons which I have
already stated, that if they had attempted to escape
by the wh’lrf they would have had the chance of
breaking their necks by the height they must neces-
sarily jump, or of being suffocated in the mud into
which they must immediately sink; therefore, my
position is, that this is the only hand by which the
murder could have been perpetrated.
Now, Gentlemen, to see whether there dre not
circumstances tc induce a belief that the Prisoner
did perpetrate the murder, we find him in a situation,
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in which, if he had the guilty purpose, he might
with ease accomplish it. He has his friend sitting
now in a state approaching towards sleep; he goes
for a real or for a pretended purpose from him; he
absents himself long enough certainly to go to the
counting-house, if in that cmmting-imuse there was
an instrument of death, and that time enough to re-
turn back again into the house. Give me leave to
ask, what would have been the conduct of an inno-
cent man, placed as the Prisoner was, in relation to
Mr. Blight, upon the evening of Monday the 23d
of September, if he had occasion to leave himn for a
mng!e moment? If he was persuaded that his life
was in danger, he well knew how the fact was; bis
conscience could inform him whether the shot of the
preceding Tharsday was the shot of an hostile hand
or his own. If he was really impressed with an {}pl-
nion that Mr. Blight’s life was aimed at (for he dis-
claims any suspicion that any body means to attack
his own), would he have left his friend in the circum-
stances that 1 have stated? Would he have left him
with the door of that parlor open in which he was
then composing himself to sleep? Would he have
Easwd through that street-door in oitler to go upon

isownnecessary occasion without pulling itafterhim?
For the spring lock, without any effort of his, would
have shut it. Would he have passed with his key to
the counting-house, and then on to this place,* shut-
ting that counting-house door after hum ; and, above
all when he heard the alarm of the pisml-ﬂimt, would
he have been found in the place in which the evi-
dence finds him? If I have excluded evey other hand ;
if I have shewn you the probability that the Prisoner
was the guilty hand, you will ask me another ques-
tion. You will ask me, what was, or what could be
the motive for a deed of such mmpltcatLd atrocity ?
Generally speaking, Gentlemen, when that question
1s put to a prosecutor’s counsel, he Las but an unsa-
tisfactory answer to give. There is no motive that

¥ Pointing to the privy, and other parts of the premises, on the
medel, as described on the plan annexed to the trial,

B4
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can be adequate to make its impression upon a yirtu-
ous and good mind to occasion the death of one of
his fellow-creatures. We must search into other
causes for motives than into the causes which spring
out of virtue and morality ; but we do know, that
those causes are to be found in the bad and corrupt
passions of the human heart; that envy, jealousy,
long-conceived hatred; above all, Gentlemen, I am
afraid the love of inordinale gain, which can be ob-
tained only by putting another to death, are found
in the history of the depravity of the human heart,
to be causes that produce these dreadful events. 1
shall shew that these causes, up to a most alarms
ing degree, were certainly operating upon the Pri-
sener at the bar. I shall shew, by his declarations
previous, I shall shew by his declarations subsequent
to the murder, that there is not only the utmost pro-
bability, but that the circumstances almost exclude
the possibility, of charity hanging a doubt upon it
that he did the deed; and that he did it for the causes
which I have stated to vou.

Gentlemen, let us look at the pecuniary concerns
of this gentleman; and let us see how the Prisoner
conducts hims=1f upon them; but before [ come to
that, it may Le proper to proceed a little more in
the detail of the narrative of the transaction. I have
$aid, that in my judgment there is no other hand that
could have done this. Well, but is there any body
else upon whom any suspicion has fallen? Yes, there
155 and we shall see who has created that suspicion.
Is there any man whom the comimon acquaintances of
that man, and Mr. Blight, can point out as a man
likely to do this? I remember a case, a very re-
markable one, which I am sure his Lordship will re-
collect; and probably you may have heard of the
case of a wman of the name of Bensteed, prose-
cuted at Bury, who had long had a grudge with a
neighbouring farmer; he had impounded his cow,
and when the man went to feed his cow, Le set a boy,
who was half an idiot, with a gun, when that man
came to feed his cow, to shoot and destroy him ; this
proceeding from malice, an old grudge: Show me
some man that had a grud~e acainst Mur. Blight, and
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then I will look about, and see what account that man
can give of himself at the time this murder was
committed.

You will find that one of the most intelligent per-
sons with whom I have the honor to be acquainted,
to speak of whom in his peculiar profession is to
name excellence in that profession, I mean Mr.
Astley Cooper, was called upon to attend Mr. Blight
in consequence of the wound which he had :e(unwl
and he did that which was natural for every body to
do, but which it was abundantly the duty of the pri-
soner to do, to look about to enquire who could have
done this, to search his own recollection, and enquire
of others, upon whom the suspicion might fall, and
trace that suspicion home. Mr. Cooper asked Mr,
B]ight, 15 there any body that you suspect? now,

rentlemen, I entreat your attention to this circam-
stance; the enquiry is made by Mr. Cooper, in the
presence of the Prisoner; the deceased is asked, Is
there any body that you suspect? the good man
himself has a mind free from all suspicion, the last
man in the world upon whom his suspicions could
have fallen certainly was the Prisoner; he had, in-
deed, no suspicion of him, nor of any body else, but
his answer to the interrogatory of Mr. Cooper was
this, « Mr. Patch has mentioned to me that there is
reason to suspect oue Webster.—Mr. Patch tells
me, there is reason to suspect one Webster—Upon
what ground does Mr. Patch suspect one W Ebstt‘:l ?
bow has he tollowed up his suspicion? what has he
done?—Dhas he desired any body to go and see whe-
ther Webster was at home ?—has he desired any body
to find out lus haunts to enquire about him Eur—what,
again, 1s the ground upon which his suspicion rests?
Mr. Cooper, upon hearing this, naturally says, ad-
dressing himself to the Pn.smu:l., “ Who 1s this Web-
ster?” oh, a man who is suspected of having stolen
Mr. Blight's planks, and whose son has absconded.
Now, if the surrounding circumstances of a trans-
action will lead the world to look to me as the per-
petrator of a deed of guilt, I shall best protect my-
sell by getting rid of that suspieion, by giving it &
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different direction, and turning it to another.—Let
me see, then, whether this is a bona fide suspicion
of the Defendant, whether he did really 'suspect
Webster, whether he had any ground upon w hich to
suspect him, or whether he did not know that it was
a groundless, assertion, made only‘to divert  Mr:
Bifg-ht’s mind from his real murderer. _One silmulcl
have thought that however painful and distressing to
the mind of a dying friend to entertain a suspicion
which would attach the erime of base black ingrati-
tude, of an inhuman unnatural attempt against his
life, to be executed by deliberate and most determi-
ned unheard-of contrivance and artifices, to one who
had been living under his roof and protection, and
deriving all his benefits from his generous friendship;
I say, however painful such a suspicion must have
been, and however reluctant the human mind would
naturally be to give it reception, yet if Mr. Blight
had been left €oolly to deliberate upon all the extra-
ordinary circumstances of his most calamitous case,
it was next to impossible that a suspicion should not
have glanced at the person now accused as his
murderer.

It was therefore well to discard all that suspicion, or
to prevent its arising in the mind of the deceased, by
giving it another direction, and the Prisoner gives it a
direction to Webster; then you will take it for gant-
ed that he gave some information to the magistrates
against Webster, that he put the Police in activity
against Webster; he tells Mr. Cooper not only that
lé is suspected by him, because he has stolen some
of Mr. Blight’s deals, he tells him his house has been
searched ; that generates resentment; and above all,
to confirm the suspicion, his son has absconded—
who told him so? I will prove that there is not the
least foundation, in fact, for the assertion; I will
prove that Webster was not the murderer, by shew-
ing where he was, and fully accounting for his time ;
I will prove that his son never did abscond, and that
therefore the Prisoner never could have believed that
hedid ; he had, in fact, left London some time before,
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and did not return until some time after Mr. Blight's
death.

Well, but is there any body else to be suspected ?
Yes, a man of the name of Clarke, and upon what
ground ! why, forsooth, because Mr.B.ight had a great
gquarrel with him about building a wharf; did the
Prisouner cause information to be madeagainst Clarke?
did he put the.law in motion, or do any of those
things which the friend of & person who has bcen
murdered would be prompt to do, to bring his mur-
derer to condign punishment? None of this, and I
shall, with respect to Clarke, though it does not ap-
pear to be necessary, 1 shall prove to your entire
satisfaction that these persons, Webster and Clarke,
were certainly not guilty of the murder.

We come now, Gentlemen, to consider a litile the
conduct of the Prisoner afterwards, and here, too,
observe the motive I attribute to him.—You ask me
what itis? I answer, it was to posscss Liimself of the
business of Mr. Blight, either entirely, for that ap-
pears sometimes to have been his object, or at least
of one-third of it, without paying the remainder of
the consideration, and of this, I think, out of his own
mouth, I shall satisfy you beyond the possibility of
doubt; then if the rest of the world had no motive—
if the rest of the world are excluded from the oppor-
funity—if this man has all the opportunity, and
more than enough of motive to act upon a corrupt
mind—have you not evidence suaflicient to enable
you to arrive at the conclusion? 1 have much
wore for you to consider, when you have discussed
these in your minds—you will recollect 1 stated that
10004 remains still unpaid—that it stood upon a
draft demandable upon the 20th of September,
1 substitution for the 16th, that the draft of the 20th
1s withdrawn by a letter written by the Prisoner to
the Bankers, stating that Goom was not able to
fuce this, but that he had given him a security as an
equivalent, with which he is satisfied.—Well, then,
he owes Mr. Blight 1000/ and promises to pay him
by a draft upon Goom, What is his right to diaw
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upon Goom ?>—vhy, that he had sold his estate, re-
~ceived the parchase-money, and lent it to Goom.,
Gentlemen, innocence and truth are always con-
sistent: they do not go into any devious paths to
firtch mmttﬁing that 1s not true, because the truth
alwavs serves them best.—Now, is there one word of
truth in this representation f had hie received 1000/
as the produce of his estate 7—I say no—if he had,
we shall hear the evideuce: had he lent 1000/ to
Goom ? had he drawn upon Goom with his know-
Jedge and permission 7 had Geom told him that he
could not take up the dratt due upon the 16th? had
he, at Goom's request, renewed it, payable upon the
20th ? had he then learned from Goom, that he could
not face it upoen the 20th? had he, by Goom’s de-
sire, forbid the bankers to present it? had he, from
Goom, received any other security with which he
was satisfied so as to justify the representation he
had made ?—No, not ene word of trath in the whole
of this representation ; en the contrary, he had never
lent Goom any thing, he had never bad any com-
munication with Goom uwpon any subject, he had
not communicated to him that he had drawn upon
him, he had not called upon him to pay that which
he had no right to draw for, he had not learned from
iim that he could not face that, which by law he was
not called upon to face; Goom had not given him
any security in lieu of that; on the contrary, you will
find Goom was acqnainted indeed with the brothey
of the Prisoner, but for many years past had not
had any intercourse or communication whatever with
the Prisoner —Well, but if this is all false, why all
this invention ! why, it was to lock into a state of
security the unfortunate man who was the subject
of his machinations, and to make him believe that
the remaining 1000/ should be paid also :—but after
the death of this gentleman, how does this Prisoner
represent the transaction ? Mrs. Blight is fetched
up to town by the Assistant of the Surgeon, with
considerable expedition; she knew the anxiety of her
husband upon the subject of the 1000/ remaining
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due to him : she knew that his anxiety was increased
upon his receiving the letter upon the 20th, which
was silent upon the subject of that 1000/.—She knew
that one of the main objects of his visit to London
was to procure this money to be paid, about which
he had now become somewhat alarmed ; and there-
fore, when she came to London, she asked the Pri-
soner, has that money, which gave my husband so
much uneasiness in his later hours, been paid f—
What is the answer of the Prisoner? He tells the wife
that that sum of 1000/ has been paid, and that Goomn
had promised to come to breaktast with Mr. Blight
on the morning of the Tuesday, at eight o’clock, and
came within five minutes after the time appointed.
}ad this money been paid ?—No, it had not.—Had
it ever been demandable ?—No.—Could the payment
of it at any time have been inforced ?—No.—Was
there any such tramsaction as a real transaction 7—
No.—Must the Prisoner have known this?—I an-
swer, ves.— Why, then, did he misrepresent the fact?
-~ Why, but that he might possess himself of the
property of the man he bad murdered, and tell the
world that he had paid the consideration.

But this 1s not all—this would havc entitled him
to one-third only of the property and profits in the
trade, under the articles of the 31st ot August, 1803;
but when Mr. Blight was now removed from this
scene, the Prisoner appears to have had another
purpose, and to have intended to possess himself of
all,—and here you will find most important obser-
vations indeed, growing out of that mever-to-be
suspected and most satisfactory source ;—what the
Prisoner himself says, what he says deliberately, what
he says upon consideration, what he says upon being
warned, what he says, knowing that his dearest inter-
ests are at stake ; and when, unless he chuses to speak,
he might be silent: I spoke of three papers, a bill of
parcels enumerating the property, a receipt import-
ing a receipt from Mr, Blight, for 2065L 4s. the con-
siv.%erat-iun for that Dbill of parcels; and there was, in
consequence of a petition presented to the City for
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a renewal of the lease, a letter written from-Mr. Blight to
Patch, stating, that petition has gone in my name, but
the lease will be renewed in your’s. These papers, at
the time they were framed, were deposited with Mrs.
Blight. After she arrived in town, and when her hus-
band was dead, she found them in his dressing-room, in
a tin case, as they had been delivered into ber posses-
sion: they bad been delivered to her expressly to be by
her kept for a double purpose, as I stated belore, that
of either being withdrawn from view or presented to
view, as the exigencies of Mr. Blight's affairs might
render expedient. If his creditors came upon him,
then they might be presented, in order to keep up the
appearance of all his effects being the property of the
Prisoner at the bar; and if the creditors did not come
upon him, then they might be thrown into the fire.
The Prisoner was examined before the Coroner upon
the death of Mr. Blight; what he said there I shall not
presume to state, because his Lordship will, I appre-
hend, be of opinion that I could not regularly read it,
inasmuch as it was taken upon oath. 1 shall therefore
pass over that which passed before the Coroner, as I
cannot make it evidence; but upon his return from
the Coroner, the Prisoner stated to Mrs. Blight, that it
would be necessary for him to be put into possession
of those papers which her husband bad foimerly exe-
cuted, and delivered to her to keep, and he gave this
reason for it, that he had been examined before the
Coroner, touching that property, and had stated that it
all belonged to him, Stated it all belonged to him !—
Is that true? Had he every thing that had belonged to the
deceased?—(You will find in the course of the evidence,
I believe, that he stated, to one of the witnesses, that the
remains of a ship, called the Carnatic, and even the fur-
niture of the bouse, to the value of 2371, was his; upon
which the witness observed, that jt was singular that
Mrs. Blight should have parted with all her furniture),
But he says, I have stated to the Coroner, that all this
1s my property; and therefore— What? Therefore I must
have my title deeds; I shall be questioned about this
again. What title deeds are there about this property 2
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Why none which accompany 'a legal transaction; which
you, Gentlemen, know, as to moveable property, is usu-
ally transferred by a bill of sale ; certainly something of
more formality than appears here. It speaks, therefore,
that it was a mere colorable trapsaction: the Prisoner
gets possession of these papers, and now he is apparently
proprietor of all thatthere is upon the premises, and so
he represents himself to be.  You will be so good as to
recollect, that I told you that all the money he ever
paid was 2501. of the consideration of 12501, One thou-
sand pounds still yremains due; and you will find this
man asserts, before the Magistrate, that he began busi-
ness the 15th of July, 1805, upon his own account;
that at that time bhe became the proprietor of all the
property, that he had paid for it, (2005/.) by different
sums, at different times, to Mr. Blight; that the papers
had been delivered to him by Mr. Blight, contemporary
with that transaction; that they had been delivered to
him in the presence of Mrs. Blight, that she was per-
fectly acquainted with it, and that 1t was all a real trans-
action. He states, that these deeds had remained in his
possession from the 15th of July; whereas, I will prove,
that it was not till afier the death of Mr. Blight that
he obtained possession of them, and in the manner
which I have stated.

He stated, that when he came to town he had 1200i.
in his possession ; that he lent it in small sums to Mr.
Blight, at different times, till the 15th of July, 1805,
when they came to a final seitlement, and that then this
transfer of property took place.

Now, Gentlemen, have I not stated to you motives .
sufficient to operate, not upon & virtuous mind indeed;
you might offer the wealth of the Indies to a moral vir-
tuous mau to induce him to engage in a deed of guilt;
he spurns your offer, and will not embrue his bhands
in blood; and therefore, if we are to wait till we can
produce to a Jury a consideration for murder adequate
to move a moral mind to commit murder, we may shut
up all” our courts of justice; there is an end to all en-
quiry. But if you find this man, in the moment of pres-
sure to pay a large sum of money, totally unprovided
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for it; if you find hiro fabricating false papers, and
producing them as true; if you find him representing
to the person interested in the paper, that it 1s satisfied,
and alterwards representing to the representative and
executrix of the deceased that the debt is paid ; if you
find him, at another time, describing that this is a real
transaction, for which he paid 20654 as the consider-
ation ; do you not find a tissue of falsehood upon every

art of the subject? Do you not find all these artifices
employed, upon all thatﬂ ‘i:-i important, to ne:galiiv&
guilty motive, to cast suspicion from himself, and to in-
duce those who hear it to believe that it belongs to an-
other.

But, Gentlemen, we shall find other very important
circumstances in that which the Prisoner represented
upon this subject afterwards. I bave told you, that
when Mr. Blight eame to town he was anxious about
this 1000L pressed for payment, and desired the Pri-
soner to take his horse, and go to town, and not come
back till he had procured the money. The Prisoner
has denied that he was sent upon any such errand. He

admits, indeed, that he went to town after Mr. Blight

came home, and that a person of the name of Thomas
Graham was present, at the time when he was sent. But
what did he go for? Obh, not upon any business of im«
portance; he went to a Mr. Grey, about some timber;
and his attention being drawn to the subject, and being
asked whether he was not particularly desired by Mr.
Blight not to return without the money, he expressly:
answers, No, Sir. Now, I will prove, by Mr. Thomas.
Graham, that having his boots on, the Prisoner came
to Mr. Blight, and asked him for his spurs; and Mr.
Blight told him, take care that you do not return with-
out that money, and he said, I will not return till I have
settled it.

Why did he deny this, if the truth is as he has some-
times represented. that this paper of Goom’s was a paper
which Mr. Blight had desired him to lodge at the
Banker’s, that 1t might give the banking account a bet-
ter appearance? An odd way of giving it a better ap-
pearance, to send ina draft due the 16th of September,
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&nd then wi{fxdra‘w it for one of the 20th, and then go.

and say. that the man cannot face it on the 20th, - I it
be true, that Blight knew that this was a colorable
paper, how happens it that the Prisoner has been giving
these various and contradictory accounts of the transac-
tion? Yet this is the manner in which he gives the ac-
count of it.

" Now, Gentlemen, we shall pursuc a little the de-
meanor of the Pritoner afierwards upon other subjects:
you will find him thus contradicted by Mrs. Blight, as to
his representation of his possession of the papers, and
payment of the consideration-money; as to the trans-
action with Goom; as to his going to London to ob-
tain the payment of the money. You will find that,
whilst some of the witnesses were under examination

before the Coroner, the Prisoner at the bar, to whom

at this time no suspicion had pointed, against whom no

. :harge of any kind had been made, for he was examined

as a witness upon his oath (which makes it impossible
for me to read what he said); you will find this person
thus totally unsuspected, and thus examined as a wit-
ness before the Coroner, expresses a degree of anxiety
about himself, you will see whether you can reconcile

- his conduct with the supposition of pure innocency: to
- me [ own it appears impossible. Hester Kitchener was a
_most important witness before the Coroner. I think so
- far any man might go to such a witness: he might say,do

not suffer yourself to be embarrassed ; take care, speak
the truth, and nothing but the truth, If a man said

“this, and no more, nubad}f could impute blame to him.

You will tell me whether the conduct of an innocent
man will justify his doing what I am about to state ;
(you will be told that the Prisoner addressed himself to
this important witness in some such language as this:)
Hester, you will be asked a great mary quesu{}ns,

- there.is a great deal of whispering ;—there is a suspicion

of me; take particular care what you say. And then in

L5 a way that would be objectionable at the bar, what we

call leading a witness: * You know that 1 came to you
ﬂ:u' a candle?” % I shall tell the truth,” says the girl.
— You know &mt ynu heard me go out of the streer,

¢
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door >—you know you heard me unlock the counting.
house door ?—you know you heard me go across the
counting house —you know you heard me slam the
door of the privy ?—you know that instanily you saw
the flash.”

Gentlemen, I can only say that, according to my
view of things and experience of mankind, this is a
conversation which 1 cannot reconcile to innocence, or
the consciousness of innocence. 'Why meddle with the
Crown's witness at all? 'Why not leave her to the dis-
creet examination of the Coroner? Why, above all, fix
in hier mind the only circumstanees which can for a sin-
gle moment raise a doubt or cloud about the guilt of
the person holding the conversation? Why mark the
circumstance of his being at that preeise moment at the
privy, which would render it impossible for him to be
at that moment at the parlor-door ? .

You will be to say, whether the impression mad
upon my mind is the same with the impression upon
vour minds. But you will find that alterwards, not con-
tent with this, to his own sister he engages ina very ex-
traordinary conversation: ¢ Sarah, there are strange
suspicions about me ;—yoa will be asked a great many
questions ;—take care what you say.” And upon ano-
ther occasion, he ordered a woman at the .public-house,
where Kitchener was waiting, in order to be examined,
to carry his compliments to the servant, with some
wine, and to desire her, above all, to take care to tell
only one story, that they only confined her to see whe-
ther she would change her story. To tell only one
story ! What two stories could the girl have to tell ?
She bas but five or six sentences to utter. If truth was
to direct the story she should tell, and he was conscious
of being innocent, why should be suspect that she should
be disposed to tell any thing to his disadvantage. God
knows, that if she was left to herself to tell her own
story, it would be short enough. You will find him not
only by himself, but by others, desiring this girl to be
particularly careful in the languages he held; and though
I menuon it last upon the sulject of his declarations, 1%
is not the least wortby of attention.  You will find him
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himself, upon his return from one of those examinations,
stating, (I use his own words,) ¢ 1 have been as near
hanging myself as any man ever was, and 1f I had I
should bave been as bappy as I am now.” There may
be much or little of weight in this obfervation; I find
this upon the depositions. It is my duty to state this to
you: you will make the observations that belong to
these facts ; and you will suffer them to make the im-
pression which they ought to make, and not to go be-
yond the due impressions.

Gentlemen, we shall ind the Prisoner, in other cir-
cumstances, contradicting a fact extremely important. I
state to you, that no other person could have effected
this murder, and have escaped. I do not now enter
into the detail why: I will shew you that presently,
when 1 come to open the model. The person who per-
petrated this deed was under the necessity somehow of
getting rid of his pistol. If you ask me, how the evi-
dence supposes him to have accomplished it, I answer,
the evidence affords you this fact, that in the course of
that evening, certainly the Prisoner at the bar had been
without his shoes in some place, where he might, if he
was so, pick up the sort of dirt which was to be found
on the wharf, in the front of Mr. Blight’s house, upon
the stockings which he then wore, and therefore it will
be for you to say, whether when [ shew you that he did
s0, it 1s not proof as much as can be expected in a case
like this; especially when you attend to the account
which he gave upon the subject of those stockings, and
consider the place and manner in which they were
found ; tha after he had committed the murder ke ran
out to the front of the wharf, threw his pistol into the
Thames, and returned back time enough to knock at
the door when the girl got to it.

You will find the circumstances of these stockings
extremely important : it will be proved that the pri-
soner was in the constant (I belicve I should not over-
state it if I said in the uniform) habit of wearing boots,
almost without exception ; Kitchener, and Mr. Joues, a
surgeon, will tell you this, and he will be proved 10
have had Lis boots on in some part of the day on which

50
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Mr. Blight died. Had he his boots on at the time Mr.
I“l sht was shot? We will ask the Prisoner that.  First,
e tells you, that be had his boots on, and it were well
fur him if it was so. He says, he believes he had his
boots on ; he is not certain whether he had his boots on;
he rather inclines to think he bad: he had not his stock-
ings and ~i oes on; he does not believe he had his stock-
ings and shoes on; he is almost certain he had not them
on. Oune should think he could be in no great doubs
about it.  If a person had been to London about busi-
ness in his boots, and was in the habit of keeping them
on till he went to bed; and if; in the course of this parti-
cular evening, he had pulled them off, not for the
purpose of putting on slippers 1o go to bed, but to put
on shoes, he could not, T should imagine, Wive forgot-
ten that circumﬂ{ancc. ‘
I will prove that upon the death-bed of Mr. Blight,
after he had received his mortal wound, the Prisones
was not in boots, but with stockings and shoes on.
Well, but is there any thing remarkable about these
particular stockings? Oh; most remarkable — Gen-
tlemen, there are facts in this cause, any one of which
seem to me to lead to the conclusion, to which I am
secking to lead you, but which together seem to me to
form such a body of evidence as it is impossible to doubt
upon. The Prisoner has a pair of stockings produced
to hin belore the Magistrate,  Are those his stockings?
No, he does not think they are his stockings, he is almost
certain they are not his, most of his stockings are
marked with pen and ink; he finds no such mark, and
15 almost certain they are not hist Well, but he has
another reason; he g:.neraﬂv wore dark smckmgs, and
wore dark -;mcltwgbe. upon the day that Mr. Blight died,
that hes sure of, and boots; and he had no white _slt}ck-
ings, but two or three old pair that he had not worn a
great while past except on Sundays. Now, as the death
was not upon Sunday, here you have bim excluding, most
expressly, the baving worn white stockings on the day of
1hL murder; I will prove, 10 your utmost satisfaction,
that Le had on white stockings, that he had on ribbed
white stockings, such as to-day I shall produce to you.
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Well, it seems odd that a man should not be at an ab-
solute certainty whether those which are shown to him
are his or not, thése stockings were found by an ex.
tremely intelligent minister of justice, Mr. Stafiord, in
the sleeping room of the Prisoner, were they found in
bis foul clothes bag, twisted up or thrown in carelessly,
to send to the washerwoman? No, all his linen had
been sent to the washerwoman upon the morning of the
Monday; it is not unfair to presume that every thing
worn before that Monday would be sent to the washer-
woman, and that those which were afterwards dirted,
and which were not sent, would not have been found 1n
such a state as at first view to give the appearance of
their being clean. You will see these stockings, and you
will find that the feet of them are plaistered with that sort
of mixed soil which would be found upon the wharf of
Mr. Blight; that they were curiously rolled up, the
ends drawn over in the way in which the washerwoman
sends home your stockings after they are sorted into
pairs. Upon these being presented to the Prisoner, he
tells you he did not wear such that day, he is sure that
he wore dark stockings, and is almost sure he never
dirtied any of his stockings s much. Now, you will
find that the upper part of the stockings are not so
dirtied, and that the- feet of these could not be breught
into that state by the ordinary wear of them, but could
be brought into that state by a person passing sofily in
his stockings, that he might notalarm the mansitting here,
whom he intended to shoot, or the servant girl sitting
there, who were both within the sound of his feet, if he
had walked in the ordinary way in his shoes.— You will
find they are in such a state as if a man, wishing to get
rid of the fatal instrument, after he had perpetrated the
murder, had without shoes retired on to the wharf in
order to throw the pistol into the Thames.

But, Gentlemen, this is not all; you will have con-
cluded, by what I have already said to you, that I am
not in the condition of producing any pistol to you to-
day, because, otherwise the observations I have been
spaking, upon the supposition of its having been thrown
it the Thames would not be founded, but there is be-

C 3
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hind a most important circumstance, indeed both as it
" is connectéd with the fact of the murder, and as it is
connected with the demeanor and conduct and conver-
sations of the Prisoner. It may, perhaps, before I pro-
ceed to that fact, be useful that I should now make you
more intimately acquainted with the state of the premises,
and you will look at this (a model) to see whether I am
founded in many of the observations which I bave made;
that it is impossible, for any other person to have com-
mitted this murder, and to have escaped, for the reasons
I have stated; this is made upon a scale, and will Le
proved by the person who made it, ar under whose in-
spection 1t was made, to be perfectly correct; you will
suppose, that at the extremity beyond the board is the
River Thames, where the vessels are lying for the
purpose of being broken up—this is the wharf where
they were in the habit of breaking up the ships, and
where there would be that mixed soil which I have
described to you. -

This is a small door in the front of the house, and this
the window through which the ball was fired on the night
of the 19th, the Prisoner being, as he represents himself,
at that time sitting in this, which is the front room, look-
ing towards the river., Now, in order to discuss that
part of the subject, which relates to the 19th, we will
see how any person could accomplish the object of
firing in there, and could have escaped. These are the
great gates of Mr. Blight's yard, and this the small door
or wicket; here you have the Thames at a considerable
depth of fail from the margin of the wharf, and here is
a large crane; you will be most perfectly satisfied,
without the least difficulty or doubt, that the person who
fired the pistol upon the 19th stood close to that window
at the time he fired; that he rested it upon the frame of
the shutter; now, what is to become of him after he has
discharged his pistol? we find the girl bas been sent for
oysters, the Prisoner, the only person remaining at home,
runs out instantly ; there is no other way, by which the
man that fired the pistol could possibly escape, but by
these gates; then did he escape by these gates? No, I
shall call a man and his wife, who were standing here,
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svho heard the explosion; to whom the Prisoner instantly
ran, asked if they had seen a man running; they said
they bad not, and if any body had come out of these
gates, they must have seen him; then, what other modes
had they to escape? none by the river, as I have siated,
on account of the state of the tide, and the mud in the
river;—the premises of Mr. Blight are surrounded, as
this model represents, by a close paling, and with a
slight pallisadoe ap the top, not sufliciently strong to re-
sist the weight of any of you, Gentlemen, to whom I
have the honor of addressing myself; especially if in
haste he should attempt to escape over them; they zare,
indeed, not sufficient to bear a boy; these remain per-
fectly unbroken at this time, and therefore I may ven-
ture to say that any man who fired a pistol here upon
the night of the 1Yth, could not possibly have made
his escape this way; thence I infer, that the Prisoner is
the man who fired the shot on the 19th;—why did he do
so? if he did it, why did he do it?

Oxe or Tne Jury. What height is the crane? is it a
crane-house? |

Mr.Garrow. No, itis not a crane-house, but a very
large unwieldy crane; what they call in the trade a gib-
bet crane. Gentlemen, the question that bes been put
from your part of the Court, appears to me a most
important one ; all questions put from your part of the
Court, upon all points, are indeed most important ; I ap-
prehend the object of it was to see whether there was such
a house, as that an individual could conceal himself in
it ; it is not so,and the purpose for which 1 introduce the
mention of the crane is ene not extremely necessary in
my view of the subject, but itis a large unwieldy crane,
standing in such a situation that it is impossible for
any person, from the wharf, to have fired in this direc-
tion, without being intercepted by this crane.

OnEeorTrE]JUurRYMEN. Thatappearedto me to require
explanation ; it appeared to me extremely material that it
should be known whether it was such a place as a per-
gon might hide himself by.

M=.G vrrow. Forthe present, I will state that there
is certainly no such means of concealment ; it is suggested

c 4
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to me by my friends, of Counsel for the Prisoner,
and I will certainly attend to any suggestion of theirs,
in a case where they can have no opportunity of ad.
dressing you; and 1 hope they will believe that 1 shall
endeavour to give it its whole effect; they desire that
I will state, as certainly the fact is, that there was lying
about, in various parts of this yard, and very close up
whenIsaw ity andI supposesoatthetime, the [ Gth, large:
quantities of timber, the produce of the vessels broken up ;.
theobject of my friends in stating thisfactis, I suppose, to
shew that some person that had committed this fact
might have concealed himself there among such timbers.
- We will see whether that could possibly afford any
ground of defence to the Prisoner; their scheme, con-
sistently with the innocence of the Prisoner, must be
this, that somewhere here, in the space which I now
describe by my pen upon the model; for this is the
only part of the premises, on which a person could
stand, to take an aim at this part of the window, the
person who fired on the 10th must have stood; what
became of him then, after he had fired? the Prisoner
scarched all the wharf himself, and no person was to be
found ; did the person who fired run this way ? the Pri-
soner who run out upon the alarm, must bave met him
immediately ; if he came out this way, Wright and bis
wife, who were standing there, must have seen the
person, if he escaped there; and the observation that
1 made to you, of what the conduct of the Prisoner
would have been, if he had a fair persuasion that this
was an hostile shot, is confirmed by an observation,
more important than any that can be made by an ad-
vocate for the Crown; an observation made on the spot
in the instant, by the person who first came in, Mr.
Wright, who said, if you think this was done for the
purpose of mischief, to you or Mr. Blight, you ought
to advertise this in the paper to-morrow; the Prisoner
assented to the propriety of that observation, and said,
he would certainly advertise it on the morrow, with
a reward of 50/ but he did no such thing—he did
that which answered his wicked purpose better; he sent
a letter to his triend Mr, Blight, which brought him (o
town immediately,
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If any bady is disposed to ask me why should this shot
be fired upon the 19th, if it was not intended to injure
any body? why should the maid-servant be sent out to
give an opportunity to fire 1t? why all this alarm? my
answer is perfectly ready ; it was in order to prepare the
way for the catastrophe of the 23d; in order to create
a beliefin the mind of the neighbourhood, and the pub-
lic, that mischief was intended to Mr. Blight; it was
in order to remove all suspicion of the person, whose
own life appeared to have been put in hazard, by this
blow which was intended for Mr. Blight, but had near-
ly destroyed the Prisoner, for he stated that it struck
the Venetian shade against his head ; it was, finally, for
the purpose of making that representation to Mr. Blight,
which was to bring him to town, at the moment when
the 10ccl. was demandable, but not payable; and when
this objett of removing him out of the way was to be
accomplished; I say, that this was the object, upon the
supposition that there are grounds, for you to be-
lieve, that the Prisoneris the murderer.

I remember a case, (the recollection of which was
confirmed by the impression which this case made upon
me, when first I heard of ity ) where a servant of Mr.
Adam, a Gentleman in the neighbourhood of Mims,
represented that he had kept out ten people, who had
attacked the house of his inaster the night before, that
he had shot several of them, and the blood was tracked.
Being in the neighbourhood, spending. my vacation, I
had the curiosity to go to look at the premises, and [
took the precaution to send to Bow-street, to desire
that they would take care of the man whoe was the
guard; for [ felt no doubt, that the story of the attack
and resistance, was iuntended to pave the way for his
robbing his master’s house; it soon afterwards became
serious; he gave out that he had been shot at in the
crounds; shot he certainly was, but he shot himself, and
having taken an aukward aim, he gave himself a mortal
wound 1n the back; he afterwards confessed it all to be
a contrivance of his own, and that no attack of any
sort had been made,

s il _
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Now, Gentlemen, I bave stated what the state of B.»_Ir,
Blight's premises was, on Thursday the 19th; I will,
with your leave, examine what the state of them was,
if any thing is more important than another at the more
important period, the time of Mr. Blight’s death; the
family had been accustomed to sit,in .t:&zs room,* then I
suppose that Webster, or that John O.Nukﬁs, or some
other person, had, upon the Thu rsday, intended to shoot
Mr. Blight, and that he intended to watch for bis op-
portunity ; that he bad bespoke, in his own mind, that the
firing upon the Thursday would bring bim probably to
town,and that he would be upon his watch for the purpose
of shooting bim; thank God, this 1s not very probable,
for it is not the temper of the worst of people in this
Country, in the worst of times, to be guilty of delibe-
ratc assassination, as was once observed by a great Ma-
gistrate, though that is certainly the crime charged against
the Prisoner; there is not one of us that does not go
about with perfect consciousness, that if any man en-
tertained a fixed determination to take our lhives, there
is nothing so easy ; we can ook for protection, not to
any precautions of our own, but must rely on Provi.
dence, and the laws ; our own houses we have, however,
always been disposed to consider as affording us the
best chance of security; that is the last place in which
to apprehend danger, but his own house did not af-
ford protection to Mr. Blight. Now, we will suppose
some guilty person had determined to take the oppor-
tunity of taking Mr. Blight's life, in his own house,where
will he expect to find him ? certainly in the front parlor;
we bave directed an experiment, to light up this back
parlor, in which Mr. Blight wasin fact killed, to shut
the shutter,and see whether any body without would
know whether.he was there; you might illuminate it
as much as you please, and nobody from without would
know that there was an inhabitant there.

L. C. B. Macpo~narp. Has the same experiment
been made in the other parlor?

Mr. Garrow. I do not know that 1t has, but I think
I can safely say, from my own observation, that the same

* The front parlour where the shot of the 19th entered,
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experiment might be made in the other room; they would
certainly have seen if any body had gone there upon
the Monday,that there was no light in the room, because
there was a shot-hole left, and if there were lights in the
roomthey would bave been percepiible through that shot-
hole; therefore, I admit, that the murderer going there,
would not find the object of his attack in the front room;
how 1s he to divine where heis? why I will tell you, if
he is not in the front room, he is in the back room; how
shall we find the assassin going to work ? I think, by
coming here,* where he might stand, and firing
through a shutter, he has an opportunity of doing it, and
he can escape immediately, for here is a large yard be-
ionging to Mr. Blight, with old timber and water-bar-
rels, and “other articles of the trade lying about, upon
which a person might raise himself, fire in, and instantly
run away, without lhe least diﬁ-culty, he has his choice
of two things, either to come on the outside of the pre
mises, fire a random shot through ihe shutter, which may
or may not take effect ; or do 1t in the way the murderer
did, come into the passage, and to the door of the room
in which Mr. Blight is sitting, and then take a deliberate
aim, himself, unseen, most commodiously, as I ascertained
myself, for 1 placed one of the gentlemen who accom-
panied me, in the chair, and if I had had the purpose, I
could have shot him decad, inflicting the wound where
Mr. Blight received his; the distance, I think, is not
greater, than from whence I stand, to you, the jury,
Now, if the Prisoner at your bar 1s not the murderer,
who is? nobody has asserted that Mr.Blight killed himself
— nobody has suspected Hester Kitchtner'——lhcn, if the
Prisoner 1s not the murderer, 1t must have been some-
body from withour. Now, we will see what such a per-
son has to do, before he commits the murder, and what
afterwards. In the first place, he has to find his way
upon this wharf, and at what season? at a scason when
his own act, upon the 1gth, which bas failed in its ob-
ject, has created an alarm, not only in the minds of the
inhabitants of the house, but of all the surrounding

* Pointing to the model of a window in the back parlor, which
commanded the chair in which Mr., Blight was shot,
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neighbours; at a period when, in all probability, be will
meet with a warm reception, when they will be armed
who never armed before, when they will be, to borrow
an cxpressiﬂn from the l’rismmr} whEI'I‘ lh(‘.’y’ will éf all
the evening upon the alert, Is this the time and manner
in which the enemy approaches? does he give you no-
tice that he means to come, and warn you to be pre-
pared. Well, but he is to bave some other fortunate
coincidencies, in order to enable him to come; you
will suppose this door to be shut, and so 1t was, let him
prow! here as long as he will; he harms not me; iam
snug (pointing to the model) here by the fire side with
my friend ; 1 am ina state the most secure; the Tower
of London cannot place me in a situation of greater se-
curity; open the door, and the murderer comes in with
perfect safety, especially if he will take off his shoes, and
pace in his stockings; there he finds me almost in the
arms of sleep, having drank my grog in order to com-
pose myself to rest; leave the door open, and he can
certainly go out of the house and throw his pistol away;
but who can do this? no man but the man who, by
some spirit of divination, knew what the occurrences of
that night would be—no man who did notknow that Patch
would bave a disorder in his bowels—no man who did
not know that against all probabilities, he should leave
his friend and go out when one would have made almost
any shift, contrived almost any thing, rather than have
left him so—but above all, would you have gone out
at this street-door, and have left it open, when, by only
pulling it to, you would have sbut it by its spring lock,
giving to your friend or servant the trouble to open it
when you should have satisfied the calls of nature?
would you have left every barrier open, as if to admit
some person,whom you hadexpected to come? yet, some
how or other, it happened, that if a stranger bas mur-
dered Mr. Blight, Patch has been the innocent cause of
ity for be has given to the murderer the only means of
access that he could have bad ; he has put it, in the only
way in which it could be done, in the power of the mur.
derer to accomplish it.
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Well, all this the stranger from without has to do be-
fore he can take the fatal aim ; he 1s to know it, that all
these doors would beleft open; againstall probabilities he
is to know that it would be probable that at precisely
the same bour when the shot was fired before, and per-
sons were probably upon the look-out, Patch was com-
ing out, in order to tdke this circuit; here is the par-
]ur door where Mr. Blight was sitting ; this door of the
house falls to with a sprmg, he passes through here,
comes into the counting-house, passes along the count-
ing-house, passes alung the store-house, and here comes
finally to the door of the privy, (pointing out these
places on the model.)

There is a circumstance in this case that I must men-
tion; here is, where I point now, a door out of the
kitchen to the privy, almost close toit; I ask, how hap-
pened it that, in this hour of alarm, any person of that
family, wanting to go to the necessary house, should have
gone out at the strer:bd{mr, and gone through the count.
ing house, and taken all this mrcmt when they might,
in a moment, bave opened this kitchen- door, and gone
to the privy. The answer, it is due to justice to state,
it is thar that door was shut, not only shut to, but, I be-
lieve, it was fast nailed up; anotheranswer occurs; I must
speak of things as they are, I must not be hampmecl
in this important cause by any notions of indelicacy ; if
there are any persons here who feel an objection to
bearing it, they must take that upon themselves, I must
not neglect my duty, I must not be paying co npli-
ments, to any scruples of that sort, in a Court of Justice.

In a common case, at {}rdmarv seasons, it might
be said, surely this going out at the front door ani
lhmugh the counting-house, was a better course to take,
because, here, in the kitchen, was a female, and you do
not choose to declare the pressure of these calls of na-
ture, to a person of the other sex; but that is put out
of the case here, for Mr. Patch declares to the servant-
maid, that he must take a candle, for he is going to the
privy, being very ill and disordered itn his bowels, and
theretore, there would have been no more want of
delicacy if he had said he wanted to go out the other
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way. Well, but it was nailed up; I have said, that undef
these circumstances, espcciall}r if Patch is to be believed
in a part of his narrauvc., that he had, from the disorder
in his bowels, occasion to visit that p'lace more than once
in that evening; if it be true, too, that when Mr. Blight
wanted to go out to make water, that he was in such

a state of alarm, that he would not trust himself out,
wnimut Patch accompanying him to guard bim, I
think it is not saying too much to say, that in such a
case, end under such circumstances, the nails of that
door would have been drawn; but, however, I do not
press that; it was shut up, and he does not go this

way throu, 1h the kitchen. Then the person who is to
commit this murder is to know he was to have the means
of it, to know the precise moment, at which he should
bave the means of commitiing this murder, and have an
opportunity to escape; what is to become of him after
he has accomplished his purpose? he is to get away;
and do that as quick as possible;—how is he to doit?
he has but one way, and that is to retire frem this pas-
sage where he has taken his aim, to return by his own
steps through this gate, and so out to the wharf; the
maid-servant meets her master at the dresser—the in-
stant the ball enters his body, she rushes past him, shuts
the door, and that instant Patch knocks at the door to
come in,

Where is the murderer now Patch has arrived here;
he 1s knocking at the house-door within half a minute
of the time when the fatal ball had entered Mr. Blight’s
bod—where is the murderer? has the Prisoner seen
him? did he run against him? did he encounter him ?
No—uwhy, if be did not go that way, where did he go—
he must have comne here.

Here, Gentlemen, see again the interposition of Pro-
vidence for the detection of guilt; these gates were
locked, and the small gate made fast; the girl went to
call Mr. Frost, because she knew that they were so, and
was afraid of re-opening the front door of the house ;
she jumped out of the kitchen window, and Frost will
tell you that he was under the necessity of getiing over
that gate; well, then, the murderer did not escape that
way ; 1f he had the five people with a link must have
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seen him pass; and here,again, is a watehman ; all these
persons will tell you that at the period when Mr. Blight
was murdered, no man escaped out of the premises, no
person came out but the servant girl.

One of THE JURYMEN, How long had that door
in the kitchen near the privy been made fa:,t?

Mz. Garrow. I understand for some months, and
we will take it, if you please, that was a door which they
were constantly out of the habit of using

Gentlemen, the coincidencies which could have given
to any other man than the Prisoner the opportunity of
killing Mr. Blight, have some additional circumstances
worthy observation; if he knew Mr. Blight was come
to town, if he expected that he was to come to town,
in consequence of the alarm occasioned by the first
firing, the probability was, that his wife should be with
him; the probability was, that he would have had some
neighbour with him ; but the murderer takes the chance
of waiting here; probably he might have waited all
night without success, if it had not been for the disorder
in the bowels of Mr. Patch; the murderer comes fortu-
nately when the gentleman, being disordered in his
bowels, leaves all the doors open; he comesin at that
time, and finds this unfortunate man sitting there in a
dose, most conveniently placed for inflicting the mortal
wound; he shoots him, and returns.

There is one circumstance more, of considerable im-
portance, indeed, in this cale. I have shewn you the
description of the privy; it is not a necessary-house, pro-
perly so called, with a large cesspool ; but it is a sort of
make-shift privy, and with a tunnel running down into
the soil; we have not found the pistol, but have found
that which you will have no difliculty in saying is the
ramrod which rammed down the charge which killed
Mr. Blight, Now, where did we find this? We found
it in the tunnel of Lhat privy.  Oh, but you migkt be
disposed to say, (for it is a great satisfaction to me to see
how attentive, and inquisitive, and anxious, you are to
discharge your duty satisfactorily,) you may say, well,
what do_you make of that ? finding a ramrod in a privy,
that is probable encugh, But we find this ramrod. 1n
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the privy, under circumstances which make 1t impos-
sible but it must have been the accessary to this guilt.
You will find the person at the bar describes himself to
have been disordered with a looseness; to have had
some relief from bis motion, that when he heard the
pistol fired, he immediately jumped up, and, while hold-
ing Mr. Blight by the band, he tucked his shirt into his
breeches, and so on, shifting his bands ull he had ac-
complished it. .In this trunk is found a ramrod, with
some wadding attached to it; in what state will you ex-
pect it to be found ? You will expect it to have been
found 1 a state which would render 1t improper to be
exhibited here, soiled, in a manner indicative of the dis-
ease, with which the persen who had recently frequented
that place, had becen distressed ; you will hear, for I make
no apology about these observations, I shall call to you
a nightman; he will tell you he examined this critically,
and that there was no appearance of any person having
been recently there, who bad any looseness upon him ;
but, on the contrary, that the soil was perfectly solid,
end the ramrod lying upon-the soil, untainted by any
thing that could have been discharged from the human
body in any state of looseness, or any thing which ap-
proached towards that state; and you recollect the ac-
count the Prisoner gives of his own state is, that he was
extremely distressed, that he could not wait a moment,
that he snatches the candle, and goes out in great haste.
With respect to this, however, if you think it too criti-
cal with respect to the spattering on the tunnel, or if
you consider it possible that any fluid soil might have
been absorbed, dismiss the observations of the night-
man from vour minds ;—but that this was the ramrod
that had rammed home the fatal charge, you will en-
tertain no doubt.” And now, let us hear what has been
the conduct of the Prisoner upon that subject. 1If a
nightman had, in your presence or in mine, if we had
been drawn by curiosity to hear the testimony upon this
subject, produced a ramrod, and stated he found it in
Mr. Blight's privy, we should have said, perhaps, that is
fortunate, because sometimes these little things do elu-
cidate mysterious circumstances, and sometmes tend to
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bring offenders to justice; some such observation

mtght have escaped us, but nothmg more I think.
Gentlemen, I am instructed that the moment

the prisoner heard that the ramrod was found in

Mzi. Blight’s privy, he exclaimed, I have nothing to

do with that, T did not place it there. Who had
told him that any body suspected he had placed it
there. Who had whispered to him that there was any
suspicion that he was the murderer. Who had given
him any reason to believe, that the unclmr:t'lhle
world even, had pointed at the bosom friend, the com-
panion, the person raised from misery and distress
to a state of affluence and comfort, by the man who -
was murdered. Who had told Myr. Patch, that even
the censorious and uncharitable world suspected him
to be the murderer, (in truth at this time no such sus-
picion had been hinted or entertained.) It will be
for you to say, whether that silent monitor within,
which, thuugh m general by its still small voice, it
admonishes in su:mt now and then betrays the guilty
into declarations, which evidence the perpetration of
secret crimes; had not suggested to him that this was
a damning pmnt of his guilt. When you come to
recollect that if it had been a stranger that loaded
this pistol, if it had been a stranger that had killed
Mr. Blight, no such stranger could have had the
means of depositing the ramrod of that pistol in that
privy of Mr. Blight.
These are the circumstances, which we, on the
part of the Ciown, have to lay before you. I have
robably omitted many that may be important.—
Q‘Dll observe that I have, as well as I could without
fatiguing you, by 1cﬁ=r1mrr to notes, stated these
from memory alone. I assure you l have felt great
anxiety to discharge my duty faithfully. No doubt
I shall bt found to have omitted many things. I
shall be better pleased to find that T have been guﬂty
of omissions, than to'accuse myself of having pressed
upon you, any facts or observations, that should be
found not fairly to bear upon the subject. I am
addressing men assembled under circumstances which
D
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EVIDENCE FOR THE CROWN.

Ricuanp Frost sworn.
Evamined by Mr. CoMMON SERIJEANT.

Q. T believe you kept a public house, called the
Dog and Duck, near the premises where the late
Mr. Blight lived,

A. Yes.

. How many }:u'r]-a do you think that is from
Mi. Blight's premises?

A. About sixty yards?

Q. On the Monday when this unfortunate gentle-
man met with his death, did yon receive any “alarm,
and from whom ?

A Between eight and nine I received an alarm
from thie servant, Hester Kitchener.

Q. In consequence of what she told you had hap-
pened at Mr. Biight's house—did you go to My,
Blight’s premise 53

A. Yes.

Q. How did you attempt to enter?

A. I came to the gate and found it fast,

Q. Did you try the wicket?

A. No.

Q. How did you get in*

A. 1 got over the gate.

Q. Do you mean at tim door that goes to the wharf?

A. 1 did.

#Q. Did you find it open ?

A. T cannot charge my memory whether it was
open or shut,

Q. Whom did you find in the house, and in what
state did vou find Me. Blightr

A. 1 saw My, Blight sitting in an arm chair, on
the left-hand side of the {ue—plaw, in the back room,

Q2. Wasit in the room where there had been a shot
frf.‘d sometiine before, or the other room?

A. Not that room, but the back parlour.

Q. Was any body with him at that time?

A. T saw Mr. Patch standing in the voom; I dan
pot sec any body else. -

D2
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Q. In what state was Mr. Blight then?

A. He sat in a chair supporting himself by his
two hands—I went up to him; I did not stop above
a minute or two before Mr. Patch asked me if 1
would fetch Mr. Jones, Mr. Blight’s surgeon.

Q. Did you go for Mr. Jones~

A. Yes.

Q. Did you stay with Mr. Blight till he died ?

A. Part of the time, not all the time.

Q. When did he die?

A. Seven or eight minutes before or after three
o’clock the next afternoon,

Ricuarp Frosr,
Cross-evamined by Mr. SERJEANT DEST.
Q. You were fetched by Hester Kitchener ?
e Y e _
Q. When you came you found Mr. Patch standing
in the room assisting the deceased :
A. T did not see him near Mr. Blight.

Q. e was in the room with hun?
A. He was.

AstLEY Coorzr, Isq. swora.

Foamined by Mr. Coxsr.

Q You were called in, I understand, soon aftcr
Mr. Blight was shot?

. About three hours afterwards.

Q. State the situation in which you found lgg,
and what passed while you were there?

A. I found him lying upon the floor of a room,
which, 1 understand, was called the back parlour;
Mr. Jones, the surgeon, who had brought me there,
just pointed out the wounds which were existing
upon his body; but in the crouded state in which the
room was, aud he lying upon the floor in a very in-
convenient posture for examination, I desired that
he might be carried up stairs to-bed ; this was done,
and stil! finding thé rcom crouded, 1 ordered every
persor from the room, except Mr. Jones the surgeon
~who called me there, Mr. Younger a surgeon at

-
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Rotherhithe, Patch the prisoner at the bar, and a Mr.
Ferguson, who, I understood, was a friend of the de-
ceased. I then examined into the state of the wounds ;
I found that there was one weund on the fore part of
the body, about two inches from the navel, and that
on the right side; another wound in the loins, on
the same side the interior of those wounds, that near
the navel having the common character of a gun-shot
wound—of a body having entered with great velo-
ity ; on examining those wounds with attention, I
saw the contents of the bowels passing out at each
wound, and as his body was alveady considerably in-
flated, I pronounced the wound to be mortal; re-
commended a light dressing upon it, and that he
should be kept as free from pain as possitle by
‘opiates.

(2. You staid some time in the house?

A. T staid until the next morning, at about seven
o’'clock.

Q. Did yon then again see the deceased?

A. Soon after T had been satisfied with respect to
the nature of the wound, seeing that it was mortal,
it naturally struck me, that it was my duty to en-
quire, as far as lay in my power, as to who had com-
mitted the act, and that particularly of the person who
suffered those wounds.

Q. Was this in the presence of Mr. Patch?

A. It was in the presence of Mr. Patch and Nr.

jerguson—I said to Mr. Blight, Is there any person
whom you suspect to have committed this act; his
-answer was, No, God knows, I never did any man an
injury which could lead him to wish to take my life,
but, he added, Mr. Pateh has mentioned to me a man
of the name of Webster. I then turned to Patch,
‘not wishing to press any unnecessary question upon
“the deceased, and said, Who is this Webster? he
answered, He is a man who was suspected of having
robbed these premises, against whom a search warrant
was granted; his house was searched, and his son
has since absconded : upon this I said, Surely then,
you should send immediately to Bow-strect, to have

D3
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officers down, his premises should be again searched
to which Patch answered, No, for nothing would be
found, and if nothing was found I should ce1tu1nly
be shut or they would certainly shoot me; which of
those expressions he used I do not recollect.

After a time, it was suggested to me; that Mr.
Blight's affairs were not scttled ; I went to Mr. Blight's
bed-side, and, in as tender a way as I could, I re-
prc*sentml to him, that his situation was not entirely
divested of danger, and that, thercfore, if his affairs
were not settled, he ought now to arrange them;
he said, I have a drvaft of a will, butitis not signed,
and, nuieed I wish some dll’Chltl{}l] to be made 1 111 1t—-
I said, Then if the will is brought T will make what
'thuatmnq you suggest; the will was brought, as far
as I recollect, by “Patch; that he went out of the
room to fetch the will; I then said, Now, Sir, what
alteration do you wish to be made; he answered—I
wish Mr. Richard Patch and Mr. Robert Fer ouson
to be added, as executors, to the name of Mr. Ewell.
I introduced those names into the will, added the
phnal for the singular throughout the Wl[l, and then
writing that the :nteﬂmeatmna were written by My,
Blight’s will and consent ; it was given to Mr. Iilwhr
who at first opposed it, and at last by a considerable
cffort, took a pen in his hand, and very unsteadily,
and with difficulry, signed the will, 1 then went to
bed, and at about six, or half past six the next morn-
ing, or scarcely so much, Patch knocked at my door,
and said, Mr. Blight is in great pain, and is anxious
to know whether you can de nothing to save him: [
answered, 1 am afraid 1t is impossible, but I will rise
nnme:lsatelv, I rose and went into the room, and
found Mr. Blight in a great deal of pain, extremely
restless, his belly very much swollen; he told me, he

had slept an hour and an half riuunﬂ' the night, but

that then he was in a great deal of pain: soon 4iter
this I came to London, under a prowise of coming
at about four o’clock in the afternoon, and of bmw-
g a physician withr me; at rather before four, Lir.

lhblvgtun and myself went down to Mu. Bhght}a
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house, ahd we found he had been dead about three
quarters of an hour. |

Q. You afterwards, I believe, opened the body?

A. I opened the body.

Q. For form’s sake, I must trouble you to. say,
whether the wounds you have described were the
cause of his death?

A. Undoubtedly—his bowels were very much cut
in three different places.

Q. Did any thing pass respecting the will?

A, Just as I was about to quit the house, perhaps
from what resulted from conversation which passed
between people present at the examination, I was
induced to say to Mr. Patch Itis right that the will
(which I had in some degree a hand in makin )
should be deposited in safe custody ; therefore 1.:.-111
you give it to me. Mr. Patch immediately took it
from his pocket; he made no difficulty, but gave it
ito my hand : it was sealed, and de]mstt{,d in the
hands of a person whose name Lunderstand was Brent.

AstLEY CoorERr, Esq.
Cross-evamined by Mr. GurNEY,

Q. At what period was it when you asked for the
will, and Mr. Patch gave it you ¢

A. At about half past four, or from that to five
o'clock.

Q. Within an hour or so after Mr. Blight’s death?

A. Two hours after.

Q. That was the day before the Coroner’s inqui-
sition ?

A. I do not know.

Q. The Coroner’s inquisition had not been then
held ?

A. No.

Oxeor tue Jury. Who was present in the room

at the time Mr. Blight slept an hour and a half ?

A. That I cannot tell.

L. C. B. Macpo~xaLp. Was the prisoner present
as long as you were present in the course of the
night 7

A He was,
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Miss Axy Lovrsa Davis sworn. .
Examined by Mr, Poorry.

Q. Do you know where Mr. Blight lived ?

4. Yes.

Q. On the 19th of September last, in the evening,
were you coming by his premises ¢
Yes.
At what time?
Between cight and nine o’clock in the evening.
Was it dark or light ?
Dark.
Do you knowthe gates of Mr. Blight's premises?
Yes. -
When you came opposite the gates of his pre-
miseps, was there any thing that attracted your atten-
tion !

A No, it was after T had got beyond the gate,
towards the corner of the alley.

Q. ‘{;c-u were going from Deptford to Rotherhithe ?

A. Yes, ' 1

PADNL/ALA

Mr. CapoGan sworn.
Evamined by Mr. GArrow.

Q. Upnﬂ what scale did you make this model?
A. A quarter of an inch to a foot.

Miss Davis’s Evamination reswmed,

€. How far had you got towards the alley?

A. So that I could just see the gate.

Q. Was any body in company with you? :

A. Yes, my Siscer, a Lady, and a Servant. I saw
the flash of a pistol and directly heard a very violent

Teport.
Q. Could you tell from the situation in which you
were, where that pistol had been fired ? : ;
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A. 1t appeared to be on my right hand on Mr,
Blight's wharf.

Q. Could you form any opinion upon what part of
the wharf the pistol was fired ?

A. 1 could not.

Q. Did you stand still ‘in consequence of hearing
the pistol?

A. Idid. T stopped for about two minutes.

Q. While you were standing still, did you see or
hear any body upon the wharf?

A. No one, ,

Q. Were you in such a situation that if any body
had got over the pales after the pistol had been
fired you should have seen them ?

A. If they had got over on that side of the house,
I must have seen them.

Q. Did any body get over the pales ?

A. 1 saw no one.

Q. Your attention was directed that way; you
should have seen them if they had, and no one did?

A. No one that I saw. |

Q. Did you hear any noise in Mr. Blight's house?

A. No.

Q. Did you hear any door shut or open?

A. No.

Q. Did you hear any thing, as if any body was
moving about the house ?

A. No, I donotthink I was near enough to have
heard.

Q. You went on from Mr. Blight's towards Ro-
therhithe ?

A. Yes. _

Q. Did you meet any one?

A. No.

Q. Did you stop when you came to the Dog and
Duck?

4. No, Isaw some men there.

Q. That is the house in which Mr. Frost lives?

4. Yes.

Q. After you heard this firing, and you were
standing still for about two minutes, did you observe
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any body come from Mr. Blight's house on to the
wharf ?
A. Nobody.

Miss MarTuA Eriza Davrs sworn.
Evamined by Mr. Coxnst.

Q. You are the sister of the last witness ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were with her on the evening of the 19th
of September ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you temember hearing a pistol fired at the
time you passed Mr. Blight's house ?

A. Yes.

Q Did you at that time observe any body stirring
on Mr. Blight’s premises, or coming from them?

A. 1 did not.

Q. If any person had passed from the premises,
were you so situated that you must have seen them?

4. Yes, I was, :

Micuarr WriecHT, swworn. _
Ezvamined by Mr. CoMMON SERJEANT,"

Q. Where do you liver

4. In Russell-street.

Q. Were you returning from Deptford on the
night of Thursday, the 19th of September?

A, Xes,

Q. At what hour? :

A. 1 suppose it might be ten or twelve minutes
after eight o'clock.

Q. Had you then occasion to go by Mr. Blight's
house and yard ?

A. Yes. 1 could not go without going by. . .

Q. What happened at that time? '

A. As 1 was coming along, about sixty or seventy
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yards before T reached Mr. Blight's gate, there was
a man rather intoxicated, lay on the ground, under
an alder tree; I said, you had better get up and walk
home, it looks dark, as if it would rain by and by.
A man going in with a l:mtc:rp, said, I have been
speaking to him two or thl‘:ﬂﬁ: times, and he will not
get up. As I was just talking, I heard the report of
a gun or a pistol.

Q. From what spot did it appear to you that that
report came?

. That 1 cannot be answerable for.

Q. How long after you heard the report, did you
see any body about Mr. Blight’s premises?

A. 1 did not see any one till I got up to the gate,
then I saw Mr. Patch standing in the street.

Q. What passed between you and Mr. Patch?

A. Mr. Patch asked me if I had met any one run-
ning down the alleys.

(). If there had been any person running in the
direction from the gate towards you, must you have
met hnun?

A. I must have met him.

Q. And you saw no oune?

/.1 saw no one.

(). What was said by Patch to your

A. He asked me if I would be so good as to step
in with him, somebody had fired at him, or he had been
fired at, one of the two expressions. I said I hope
not. He said, Yes, I wish you would step in till niy
servant returns, or till the servant returns. I went in
with him. He said I will fetch a candle, and shew you
where the ball went through. Hetook a candle, and
I saw a holethrough the shutter, and likewise through
the lower part of the window frame.

Q. Did he take you iuside, or shew it you outside?

A. I cannot recollect exactly which, but I saw
the hole through the lower part of the frame of the
window-shutter: I took the caundle to look about for
the ball, in the inside of the room—I could not find
it; in the mean time, in came Kitchener, with some
oysters. Mr, Patch said, I have been fired at, or [ have
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been chot at, ITester, since you have been out. After
she came in, I again took tlie candle, and looked
about for the ball. . Kitchener picked up a ball, three
or four feet from the window, apparentlyto me—T
took it from her, according to ‘the best of my recol-
Icetion, and looked at it, and it : appeared to be a half
circle ; it appeared asif 1t had been cut, or flattened
against semething ; the ball appeared to me as if it had
been cut, it did not appear to be above a half circle.

Q. Did you say any thing to Mr. Patch upon this?

A. No, we withdrew Just after that into’another
parlour. Iabnt{i him if T should feteh any body to
sleep in the house that night, that I thought it was
very alarming,.

(). What did he say to that?

A. He said, I need not give myself that trouble, or
he was much obliged to me, or something of that
kind—he did not accept my offer.

€. Did you menticn to him where you tlmught the
shot might have come from?

A Alittle after that, I said, perhaps it mightbe a
shot fired from a police-boat, after a boat w1th some
smuggled goods, or something of the kind. Alr.
Patch said, no, he did not think that was the case;
was it so, he should be content in his mind, that there
would not be any thing more of it, that there would
not be any more fear of any thing. Isaid, if I was
him, I would advertise it by hand-bills the next
morning, and likewise in the public papers.

Q. Wi hat answer did Patch make to that?

A. “You may depend upon that,” said he, “and I
will bid fifty pounds reward.”

Q. When Patch said, that if it had been any thing
from the water, he should think there would be no
more of i, did he suggest who or what kind of
person it might be? .

A. Noj; not in the least.

(. Was any thing said at the tlme, h}' Patch, in
what room the famltv sat in an evening ?

A. There was something, but I cannot clearly
recollect it ; nor could I, w hen I was in the house
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before Mr. Graham, any farther than that My,
Blight was gone down to Margate. He said, that he
was not very well, e had sent for a few oysters, and
intended to go to bed soon that night.

Q. Did you see Mr. Frost that evening?

A. 1 fetched Mr. Frost the publican myself.

Q. What passed between Mr. Frost and Mr, Patch,
when Frost came.

A. I asked Mr. Patch if he had any fire-arms in the
house. He said he had a pair of pistols, that cost
five guineas. Isaid they must be very good ones at
that price; but he said he had not got any ammu-
nition in the house. Mr. Frost said he would sud-
ply him with some.

Q. What did the prisoner say to that offer ?

A. I cannot recollect whether he accepted it or not,
There were no candles in the house, they went out,
I understood, to get some ammunition and candles,
We all went out together.

Q. Did you leave him with Frost?

A. We all went together to Frost’s house, and I
parted with him at Mr. ¥rost’s door.

Micuaer WricHT,
Cross evamined by Mr. SERJANT BEsT.

Q. I understand you, that you were near the watch-
box at the time you heard the pistol.
A. Yes.

Q. That is on the Deptford side of the house; is
not it? | '

A. Yes.

Q. How many yards is it from the house ?

A. Between sixty and seventy yards, I think, from
the gate.

Q. Did you pass on immediately from the watch-
box to the gate?

A. Yes; immediately after the pistol was fired.

Q. How long were you getting from the watch-
box to the gater
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A. Tshould suppose about half a minute, or a little
better ; but very little better.

Q. I believe you have always said it could not be
more than half a minute?

A. Yes.

Q. When you came there, you found the gate open,
and Mr. Patch standing at ‘the gate.

A. Yes.

Q. You know these premises very well, I believe?

A. Net very well, it was the first time I was ever
within the house.

Q. But you know the roads near the house?

A. Pertectly well.

Q. There is a road that goes as you come out from
the wzate on the left hand, and there is anather to the
nrhr that goces to Rotherhithe ?

“A. Yes.

Q. And there is-one facing you, that goes up by
the Canal ?

A. Yes, there is.

. The road that faces the gate immediately leads

up into the public road, does is not?

A. 1 believe it does.

Q. There are no houses upon that road till you get
up to the public road?

A, No, I belteve there are not.

Q. That road is two or three hundred yards long,
1s 1t not?

A. 1 cannot tell the length of it, there is a small
house built there.

Q. You went with Mr. Patch, Immedmtely into
the house?

A. Yes; immediately.

Q. Where you continued for half an hour?

A. Tor morethan bhalf an hour,

Mrcuaern Wrignr.
Re-cxamined by Mr. Garrow,

Q). Tt is considerably up here, where that house is
building the gentleman asked about?
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'A. No, it has been built some time; there is a house
at the end of the lane.

Q. That is at a considerable distance from Mr.
Blight's gate?

A. 1t is.

Q. You know this bend in the lane; suppose a
person standing at this bend, would he not see any
person who came out of Mr. Blight's gate?

A. Ieannot exactlysay whether I could see a person
or not if I was standing in that place, I never took
that notice.

O~E or TuE JUurY. Youobserved to Mr. Patch,
that pe rhaps it was a randoin shot fired from a Police
boat, how could you imagine a shot from a Police
boat could have entered that window the wharf being
so high from the water at that time of the tide?

A. 1 was not aware how the tide was at that time.

Oxe or TuE Jury. He said he had a pair of
pistols which cost five guineas, did he produce them?

4. No,

Ricuarp Frost called again.
Examined by Mr. CoMMON SERJEANT,

Q. Were you fetched to Mr. Blight's by the last
witness Wright, on the might of the Thuraday before
Mi. Blight was killed?

A. Yes.

Q. When you came to Mr. Blight’s premises did
you see Mr. lgatch there?

A. Yes.

Q. State what passed between you and Mr. Patch
then?

A. When I went I saw Mr. Patch standing in the
front parlour next the water. I asked Mr. Patch
what was the matter?—1lle said he was sitting in a
chair close by the table and was shot at. Tasked him
what he thnught of it—where he could think the

‘shot came from 7—Ile said he did not know. I asked
Lim if he buﬁpcctgd any bodyr—1lle said no. I asked



64

him if he had any fire arms in the house >—He 3aid
ves, but they were of no use for he had no ammu-
nition. I told him I would give him powder and
endeavour to find him a ball. While we were talk-
ing Kitchener came in, and said Mr. Patch there is
no candle. My. Patech made answer and said, Mr.
Frost will lend you some.—We came out of the room
Mr. Patch, Kitchener, me, and Mr. Wright and
Mrs. Wright.

Q. That was all that were in the house?

A. Yes,—we came out—shut the door, and went
to my house.—When they came to my house, I asked
Mr. Patch if he would accept of the powder and ball.
—He said never mind he would go home and go to
bed, for the villams would be there no more to night.
—He went out and Hester Kitchener with him.

Q. You told us that on Monday you got over the
fence—have you stated all you know of what passed
that evening?

. T have.

Mr. WrirrnraMm KINNARD, sworn.
Lvamined by Mr. Garrow.

You are a surveyor I understand?
I am a pupil of Mr. Lewis’s,
Was that plan prepared by you?
I drew it and took it myself.
From an accurate survey of the premises?
Yes.
Is it correct!
= Tt
Does this model truly represent the state of the
premises ?
A. Yes, it appears to me to be perfectly correct.
Q. At the extremity of these premises here there i3
the river Thames? -
A el
Q. The wharf extends on here to a paved court
which is enclosed by a wicket gate?
4. Yes,

DADLDLAAD

¥




65

Q. Having passed the wicket gate you come to the

door of the house here?

A.. Yes.

Q. Then what we call the front parlour is here?

A Yes.

Q. This i§ the window where the first pistol shot
-was fired?

A. Yes.

Q. Close to the sill?

A. 1t is about two inches and a half above the sill
of the shutter.

Q. And it has gone through close to the bottom
of the lowest pane, has it not?

It has.

Q You pass along that passage then leaving the
front room on the ngiit hand as you come into the
house, you go to the back room?

4. Xes,

Q. And that is accurately described here?

. Yes

Q. There i1s one window locking on to the wharf,
another that looks to the lane leading on to Deptord?

A. Yes.

Q. Here is the kitchen, and here the dresser close
to the kitchen door?

A Xen

Q. If you go to the privy, through the counting-
house, you go in this direction,—: describing it)

4. Yes.

Q. Have you observed the fence on this side of the
wharf? _

A, Xes. -

Q. Isthat a close paling?

2171t is.

O~E oF THE Jury. Was there any other way but
through the counting-house when the door to the
privy through the kitchen was shut up”?

Mr. Garrow. No other way.

Mr. SErJEANT BEsT. Ceriainly not.

Mr. GAarrow. If any peison stood at the angle,
must not he have seen a person get over the gate.

4. He must.

E
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Q. Is the fence on the side next the stone yard a
close fence, and at the top of it a very slight pallisadoe
that will yield to a very small force?

A kB

Q. What is the height of the pallisadoe ?

A. It is nine feet six inches.

Oxe or Tne Jury. What is the height of the
fence to the right?

A. Itis about five feet six inches

M. Garvow. Ifany person were to attemptto oet
over there, would it be strong enough to support him?

A. T think it would give way.

Mr. Wirriam KiNNagp.
Cross evamined by Mr. GURNEY.

Q. Within this paling on the inside that you de-
scribe to be about six feet high, there was a quan-
tity of ship timber that had been broken up?

A. There was when I saw it.

Q. Ts this paling six feet high, or five feet six?

A. In some part I suppose it to be six feet, in
others not five feet six.

L. C. B. Macpoxarp. Which height prevails the
most?

A. T rather think five feet six.

Mr. Gur~yey. And there are, as there must be to
support pales, inner rails running, what you call the
arras rails, against which the pales are nailed, as
this model describes ?

A. Yes.

Q. The only incorrectness I have observed in your

model (as I have scen the place) is this—this model
describes the gates to have no inner rails—now are
there not in the great gates thiee great rails, square
bars, one near the bottom—one near the top, and
one near the middle, which furnish steps, by means
of which a person may get over the gate.—Could
there be any difficulty in a person from the inside
getting over this paling in half a minute?

A. I cannot possibly say. :

Mr. Garrow. No doubt it was easier to get out
than to get in.

S S
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Mr. Wirriam Kinvarp.
Re-cvamined by Mr. GArRROW.

Q. Supposing a person to get out by this gate, and
suppose the two Miss Davis’s to be standing here—
must not they have seen him?

4. If they were walking in that space, certainly I
think they would see any body that got over.

1). Suppose any person to have got over a fence,
which I admit is easily done, the Miss Davis's to be
here, and-other persons here, must they not be visi-
ble to the persons on both sides?

A. Yes—Dbut there is a lane opposite.

Q. If they run there, they would be visible to the
person standing at the angle?

Mr. Gurney. Would not that depend upon the
degree of light? Do you mean to say that a person
fifteen yards off must necessarily see a person passing
from these gates to that private road?

A. It might be very possible they might not?

Mr. Garrow. What is the depth from the wharf
to the mud at low water?

A. I did not measure it.
). Is it considerable?
A. 1 should suppose it is five feet.

Q. You do not know the state of that mud doyou?
A. 1 do not.

Ricnarp Frost called again.

Mr. Garrow. What is the depth from the edge
of the wharf down to the mud at low water?

A. 1t is more than five feet, it is nearer ten feet,
Q. What sort of mud is it?
A. A loose clayey kind of mud.

Q. So that a person would sink in up to his
middle ?

A. No doubt of it, it is quite a clay mud.
E2
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HesTeER KITCHENER sworn.
Eramined by Mr. GArRrRow,

Q. Did you live in the service of Mr. Blight ?

A. Yes.

Q. How long did you live there?

A. About two months.

Q. The family consisted of your master and mis-
tress, yourself, and who €lse -

A. Mr. Patch boarded there, and one child of
Mris. Blight’s ; the other was at the boarding school,

Q. Do Jnu remember the circumstance of your
mistress going to Margate ?

A. She went on "31111(1;13 morning.

Q. Did she leave your master at hnnm ?

A. No, he went to Margate with her.

Q. Did he go twice from home ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember your master going from
home z};uu upon Thursday, the 19th of September ?

es,

Q. Who was left at home when he went?

A. Myself. Mr. Patch went with him in the
morniug, and returned home again.

Q. Nothing material happened till the e*.rcnlnrr P

A. No.

Q. Which room of the house did the family use to
sit in an evening ?

A. In the room facing the water.

Q. Did they do so con%tantl'.*, during all the time
you was in their service?

A. About a weck before that they used to sit in
the back parlor, and after that they used to sit in
the other parlor fucing the water.

Q. Where did they sit when you first went into
the service °

A. In the back room, they sat there for about a
week after I went; and after that they altered 1t, and

always sat of ‘an evening in the front roou..
#
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Q. In the cvening of that day when your master
went the second time to Margate, there was nobody
at home but you and Mr. Patch?

4. No.

Q. What room did he sit in that evening ?

A. In the front room.

Q. Where were you?

A. In the kitchen—in the evening at pretty near
eight o'clock Mr. Patch sent me out for some oysters.

Q. You left him in the front room ?

A Yes

Q. Iow long do you think you might be gone ?

A. It might be nine or ten minutes, I was as quick
as I could be.

Q. How far did you go for the oysters?

A. To Grove-street.

Q. How far was it from Mr, Blight’s?

4. It 'might be about twice as fdr as the length of
this room, I went for six-penny-worth of oysters.

Q. Did you have them opened ?

A. No, I got them and returned.

Q. Where did you find Mr. Patch when you re-
turned ? |

4. I found him in the yard, near the window, talk-
ing to a man and a woman.

Q. Did you atterwards learn whether they were
Wright and his wife ?

A, Yes.

Q. What passed ¥

A. He said, “Is that you, Hester, I have been
shotat!” I said, Lord have mercy upon me shot at,
whereabouts ;—said he, “ through the window here,”

“pointing at it.

Q. Had you left the shutters of the window in the
front room closed and fastened, when you weut out
for the oysters ?

A, Yes

L. C. B. MacpoNaLp. At what time of day
did you shut them up ? '

A. At duskish.

L. C. B. Macpoxarp. At what hour?

EJ
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A. T cannot tell, we have no clock, I shut them
earlier thanusual. Mr. Patch said he was very poorly,
he should go to bed soon, and he ordered me to shut
the windows, which I did.

Q. They were outside wooden shutters, were they

not -’
A Yen _
Q. He shewed you the place in the window, where

- he said he had been shot at ?
* A. Yes, then we went into the house, and Mr.
Patch sent Mr. Wright for Mr. I'rost.

). When he came, what passed?

A. Icannotrightly tell what passed, we went and
looked for the shot; we were a good while before
we found it, at last we found it underneath the win-
dow that it had been shot through.

Q. Were any observations made by any body upon
this transaction ?

A. No further than that they said 1t was a shock-
ing thing.

Q. Who said so?

A. They all said so, and they wondered what it
could be for.

Q. What did Mr. Patch say ?

A. Hesaid he did not know that he had an enemy
in the world, or Mr. Blight.

Q. Did any one ask him whether he suspected
any body *

A. Yes, 1 believe so, but I do not know what
answer he made, I did not stay long.

Q. Did any body offer to stay with Mr. Patch
that night ?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. If any thing of that sort passed you did not
hear it ?

A. No.

Q. Was any thing said about fire-arms ?

A. Not in my hearing, I was in the kitchen some
time,

Q. Where did you go to afterwards?

A. T went to Mr. Frost's to get a candle, because

1 had no candle.

.l estion s ming o
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Q. Did you all go, and leave the house without any
body in it ?

A. Yes, I was afraid to go by myself, ard so we
all went.

Q. Was any search made about the premises, to
see if any body was concealed there?

A. Not that night I Lelieve. -

Q. When you went to Mr. Frost's was there any
conversation there about fire-arms or ammunition
that you heard *

A. No.

Q. You got your candle and returned?

A Xes

(2. Mr. Patchwas used tosleep in an apartment over
the counting-house, the way to which was through a
lumber room at the end of the counting-house ?

A Yex

Q. Did he sleep there, or in Mr. Blight’s bed that
night?

A. He sleptin Mr. Blight's bed that night, because
I was afraid of stopping in the house by myself.

Q. And therefore he slept in Mr. Blight's bed for
your protection ?°

Ay Xes,

€}. How soon after this did your master come
home from Margate ?

A. He came home the next Monday about seven
o’clock in the morning.

Q. Was Mr. Patch at home ?

A. He was.

Q. Did you hear any conversation between them ?

A. No.

Q. Do you know whether Mr. Patch went to Lon-
don the day your master came home ?

A. My master went out in the morning after
breakfast, and then Mr. Patch went out.

Q. Did he go on horseback?

A Xes:

Q. Had Mr. Blight been out on horseback ?

A. Mr. Blight went out on horseback in the
Emmmg, and after he returned Mr. Patch had his

orse,
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Had Mr. Patch boots on?
. Yes,

. Did he usually wear boots?

Yes.

. After he returned, did you see him in the course
n}f]' th;u; afternoon and evening, before your master was
shot:

A. Yes, he was along with my master.

Q. 1 believe you carried in tea ?

A. 1did.

Q. Which room did they sit in that evening?

A. In the back room.

Q. In the room in which the family, for the last
seven weeks, had not been accustomed to sit?

A. No, not in an evening.

Q. How was Mr. Patch dressed in the course of
the evening with respect to boots or shoes?

A., He had shoes on.

@ What colored stockings ?

A. He had white stockings on.

Q. Did you make any observation whether they
were ribbed or plain ?

A. 1 cannot say that I did.

Q. In the evening of the Monday was every thing
made fast as usual, with respcet to the gates and all
the out premises ?

A. Yes, the gates were shut. -

Q. Shut in the usual way when the men left work?

A. Yes,

Q. Have you any doubt, that Mr. Patch that
evening when you carried in tea, had white stock-
ings and shoes on, and not boots?

A. Yes, he had.

Q. You are sure of that?

. I am sure he had in the course of the ev enmg
. Before your master was shot ?

. Yes, befpre my master was shot.

. That you are sure of ?

Y'és.

Your front door opens into a paved court,
does ' not?

Yes.

rOADAD
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Q. Does that door shut hy a spring lock that you
pull back with your hands?

A..7% es.

Q. And if it shuts nobody can open it from with-
out unless they have a key »

A Xoens

Q. Did you take away the tea-things after tea?

A. Yes.

Had they any other refreshment?

They were dr inking erog afterwards.

StilJ sitting 1n the same back room?

Yes.

And you were in the kitchen?

Yes.

The kitchen door is nearly opposite to the door
of that parlor, there is only the width of a pannel,
about the size of the door difference ?

A Yes:

Q. You could not, where you were standing, see
the parlor door?

A. No, I was standing by the fire-side, I could
not see the parlor door.

Q. How soon after they had begun drinking grog
did you see Mr. Patch in the kitchen ?

A. 1 cannot tell how long, it was a few minutes.

Q. Did you carry in the grog, or did they make it
themselves ?

A. They made it themselves, I carried in the water.

Q And in a few minates after you carried in the
water Mr. Patch came to you and asked for a candle.

A. It'was in about half an hour after I carried in
the water he came tome in the kitchen and asked me
for a candle.

Q. Now give us his own words?

A. ¢ Hester give me a candle I have got a violent
pain in my bowels.” I gave him the candle ; he
took the key of the counting-house off the dresser,
he went out of the door, 1 heard him go to the
counting-house, I heard the counting-house door
open, and I heard him slam the counting-house door
to after him, and I heard him walk across the count-
ing-house very quick.

@;@p@m@
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Q. Is there a lock to the counting-house door ?

A. If you fling it hard it sticks without locking.
I heard him step into the privy, and I heard the
privy door slam to.

Q. Have you observed whether if you open that
privy door and do not slam it, it will stand open or
tall to?

A. I never took that observation. The instant
I heard the privy door I heard the report of a pistol.
My master came into the kitchen to me before I
could get out of the kitchen ; he came in—he came
up to the dresser, and said (putting his hand to his
side) ¢ Hester, I am a dead man.” I said, Lord
have mercy! I hope not. I screamed out violently
—I run and shut the street door.

Q. What state did you find it in when you came
toit?

A. Wide open. I shut it—I was returning from
it and had got about half way towards the back par-
lor door, and I heard a violent knock at the door.

Q. Had you got further from the door than the
distance between you and me?

A, No.

Q. You have a large brass knocker at the strect
door ?

A. Yes; I returned to the door. I found Mr.
Patch at the door ; his small clothes were unbuttoned
when he came in.

Q. What colored small clothes had he?

A. Light colored small clothes.

Q. Arve you sure of that ?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. He must have been holding them with one
hand I suppese as they were unbuttoned ?

A. 1 cannot say.

). They were not about his heels ?

A. No.

Q. Is it your apprehension that he was holding
them?

A. I think he was holding them, but I cannot be
certain. He came into the kitchen to my master,
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and said, ““ Lord have mercy upon me, Mr, Blight,
what is the matter?” 1 said, my master is shot!—
my master is shot! Mr. Patch and I helped my
master into the parlor, where he had been sitting
when he was shot.

Q). Was there one candle or two in the room ?

A. 1 cannot recollect ; in general they had two;
but I do not recollect whether there was one or two.

Q. Do you recollect whether when they had tea
and grog, they had one or two candles?

A. 1 cannot,

Q. Butthey usually had two.

A. Yes. After we had assisted my master into
the room, Mr. Patch told me to go and get some
assistance. I said I was afraid to go. MNr. Patch
said, take hold of Mr. Blight's hand, and I wiil go,
I said, Oh! dear, you shall not go; I am afraid to
be left alone—if I go, I will jump out of the window.
I jumped out of the H'ill(fUW—F hurt myself on the
side—1I went to Mr. I'rost’s, and brought Mr. Frost
with me.

Q. How did he get in?

A. He jumped over the gates?

Q. Did you see any body in the course of your
going to Frost’s or returning?

A. 1did not see a person,.

@ Did you hear the conversation that passed after
Frost came?

4. I do not recollect.

Q. Your master was laid upon his bed, and a Sur-
geon sent for?

A X esl

Q. Your master died?

A. Yes, the next day.

Q. Then the Coroner’s Jury were summoned ?

4. Yes.

Q. And you were examined before the Coroner’s

Jury?

g Y

Q. Was every body admitted to that examination,
or were you examined privately?

4. Privately.
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Q. Did Mr. Patch say any thing to you, about
what you knew of this transaction, and the evidence
you was to give before the (munf'r*‘

. He said he did not know what to make of the
people; there was strange ideas; and 1 was to speak
the truth and nothing but the truth.

Q. How soon after yvour master died was the first
conversation when he spoke of the strange ideas the
people had gotr

A. 1 believe it was the night before the Coroner
sat,

Q. Your master died on Tuesday afternoon?

A. Yes; and the Coroner sat next day ?

Q. It was before you went before the Coroner
that he said this to you?

A, Yesy

Q. He was at large at that time, and was exa-
mined as a witness before the Coroner?

A. Yes.

Q. No body had been taken into custody at that
time ?

A. No.

Q. Hewas at large, carrying on the business?

A. Yes

Q. What more did he say to you at that time?

A. There was nothing more said at that time,

Q. After you had been before the Coroner, do you
reiwember his saying any thing more to you?

A. Nothing particular,

Q. Never mind whether it is particular; did he
say nothing at all to you?—recollect yourself. Do
vou remember, when your mother and Stonard were
present, Mr. Patch asking whether you knew any
ilunw of this?

A. I do not recollect his saying any thing more.

Q. Wes there any conversation about his going
to the privy?

"A. 1 do not recollect any more.

Q. Do you remember being in the same room
with him, while your mother and Chailes Stonard
were presente?
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A. Yes; we were all together in the kitchen,

€. Was that after you had been examined once
before the Coroner?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. Do you remember any conversation with him
about what you kuew, or any particular circum-
stance’

A. I do not recollect any thing more.

Q. I wish you to endeavor to recollect; and, if
you recollect any thing more—state it.

A. 1 cannot recollect any thing more.

L. C. B. MacpoNaLp. Was there any talk about
what had passed before the Coroner?

A. No.

Mr. Garrow, Had you, atany time, any con-
versation with him, about the circumstances that
accompanied your master’s death?

A. Not that I recollect. :

Q. Do you happen o know, either from your own
knowledge or from Mr. Patch, whether he had been
several times in the course ot that day to the privy?

A. No, not that I know of betore.

Q. Do you know whether in the course of the
evening your master had gone out to make water, or
for any purpose?

A. Mr. Patch and my master went cut just before
they called for water.

Q. Where did they go to?

A. Only just without in the court.

Q. For what purpose?

A. T cannot tell.

Q. Were they gone a short time?

A Yes.

Q. Was it such an absence as might be occasicned
by a person going out to make water?

2. Yes, 1 think 1t was.

Q. How long had they gone out together before
Mr. Patch camve for the candle to go to the privy?

A. A good while before that time; it was when I
fetched the water for the grog; it was about half an
hour before Mr, Patch fetched the candle.



78

L. C. B. Macpoxarp. Is there any other privy
belonging to these premises than that which you have
been speaking of?

A. No, thereis no other in the house but that.

1.6 B Macponarp. Did youever before hear
any person going backward and forwards when they
had occasion to go there?

A. You cannot help hearing them.

L. C. B. Macpovarp. And you must hear both
doors shut, must you?

4. Xes.

OxEe or TuE Jury. How do you know that all
the doors and windows were fastened in the evening
vather early?

A. I fastened them myself.

I. C. B. Macnoxarp. Were you the only ser-
vant in the house?

A. I was.

Mr. Curistorurr MorGAN sworn.
Lovamined by Mr., CoMMON SERJEANT:

Q. T helieve vou live in Globe-lane, Deptford?

0. 8. ¢,

Q Were you passing by Mr. Blight's premises on
the day when he met with this fatal accident?

A. 1 believe twenty minutes before nine I was
passing by Mr. Blicht’s gate; when I came to the
gate I received information of what had ha ppened.

Q. Was any body with you at that time?

A. Yes, a Mr. James Berry.

€. Did you go to Mr. Blight's door:

A. Ivent immediately with Mr.Berry, and knocked
at Mr. Blight's door : the servant, Hester Kitchener,
said, who is there; I said here is a friend, wishes to
render assistance.

Q. When you were admitted, what did you observe?

A. Isaw Mr. Patch advancing from the parlour
door, where Mr. Blight was.

Q. Did you know Mr. Patch before?



79

A. 1had seen him, but I never spoke to him before
to my knowledge. Mr. Patch began to relate the
circumstance of the shooting of Mr. Blight; [ told
him 1 thought no time should be lost in searching
the premises, and I broke off bhis telling me. I asked
him for a light; he ordered his servant to give me
one : he followed me to the door with a lichted
candle in his hand; pointing to an old vessel, he said,
you had better search that first: when we got on
the wharf, we found the vessel about sixteen feet,
as near as we could judge, from the wharf, and no
access whatever could be had to it.

Q. Was the water out ?

A. It was low water. I then proposed seemg if
any body had gone by the water; and we examined
from one end to the other to see if the mud was
broke, for if any person had gone that way, it must
have plunged the mud and shewn it; we examined
the whole of it, and it was not the least disturbed,
it was as smooth as ice. ]

Q. Was it possible for any person to have made
his escape that way?

A. 1 am convinced it was impossible for anybody
to have gone that way; Mr. Berryand I scarched over
the premises.

Q. Was Mr. Patch with you at the time? '

A. No. 1 should have observed, that Mr. Patch,
when he came to the door, pointed to the vessel,
and left us, and I did not notice where he went.

Q. Was the wharf at that time clean or dirty; had
it been fair or rainy-

A. I believe it had been rainy, to the best of my
recollection it was dirty: we then searched the out-
buildings, and over the yard, and in the cellars under
the house: after we had searched the premises, we
returned into the house ; we could not discover that
any body had been in any part of the premises : then
I saw Mr. Blight was laid on a bed in the parlor;
I addressed myself to Mr. Blight.

Q. Where was Patch at this time ?
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A. He was im the house, by Mr. Blight; I heard
the maid say at the door as when I went in

Q. Was Mr. Patch within hearing when the maid
said what you are about to state? _

A. He must be within hearing'; he was in the same
room ; she was standing at the door : the servant maid
said, upon Mr. Blight’s being shot, he immediately
sprung into the kirchen—said she, I was very much
agitated and alarmed ; I went out at the window to
call Frost. I then turned from her, and went to
Mr. Blight's bed.

Q. What did you say to Mr. Dlight 7

A. 1 said, in the awful situation in which you are,
it is necessary, for the sake of punishing the person
who has done so horrid an act, that you should collee
your thoughts for the sake of justice, that some
measures may be used to apprehend the person that

has done it. I pressed it to Mr. Blight whether he -

had offended any of his work-people, as he might
have a number of the lower order at work for him at
times, or whether, in any of his connexions in trade,
he had any right to expect that any person owed him
a grudge or 1ll-will ; he told me no. Ithen repeated
the question to Mr. Patch, as he was lying on his
face reaching over the bed to hold'a bottle to M.
Blight’s nose—he was in that attitude the greater part
of the time I was talking to him. I begged of Mr.
Patch to commission me to go to Dow-street; he
told me he did not see the nccessity of it: I told
him an enquiry so early as that would be of infinite
consequence. I repeated it three or four tumes,
stating that he himself was in the same danger as
Mr. Blight was, as he himseif had been shot at the
Thursday before,

R It wasacommon report in the neighbourhoeod
that he had been shot at the Thursday betorer

A. Yes it was. Mr Patch then took me into
the front parlour, to shew me where he was shot at
himself, and the manner he was sitting in: he said
he sat at the table, with his head leaning on his
hand, and that according to the direction the ball
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had taken it must have come within six inches of
his face: he said that was the seat Mr. Blicht was
accustomed to sit i, and he had no doubt that the
shot was intended for Mr. Blight, and not for him-
self: we then returned into the parlour, where Mr.
Blight was: Mr. Patch said he had a pain in his
bowels, that he found it necessary to go out, and
he said to Mr. Blight, *“ I must go to the privy;”
I do not like to leave you; he then said he went
out, and left the parlor door and the fore door open.
I told him I thought he was very wrong in leaving
Mr. Blight unprotected, without fire-arms or any
body with him ; he said he did not think any harm,
he did not see the danger. I asked him again to
commission me to go to Bow-street; 1 told him
I was certain there must be a cause; that human
nature was not so depraved, for one man to sheot
another, without a cause: he then turned to me,
and said, he had as-much right to suspect me as
any man ; that he had not the least conception who
it was: 1 then, after advising him to apply for some
assistance, in order to discover it, came away, when
I found my services were not accepted.

Q. Before Patch told you that he had gone out and
had left the doors open, had either he or Mr. Blight
mentioned whether they had any suspicion previous to
that night?

A. Yes; Mr. Patch said they had been upon the
alert, upon the look out all the evening, for that they
had expected a visit of this kind, and they had lately
been on the wharf but a few minutes before.

Q Wasitin consequence of that, that you observed
to him that it was exceedingly wrong for him to have
left these doors open ¥

A. It wasjust so; he had shewn me the hole that
was made when he had been shot at himself.

Mr. James BERRY sworn.
Examined by Mr. PooLEY,

Q. On the 23d of September, in the evening, were
ro
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you in company with Mr. Morgan, near the premisés
of Mr. Blight? -

A. I went from my own house with him.

Q. You live near Mr. Blight's?

A. Yes.

Q. When you came there what took place?

A, We were going down to Mr. Morgan’s house,
at Deptford; as we were going through the alley we
saw two boys standing by the gate.

Q. And i eonsequence of what they said to you,
you went to Mr, Blight's premises ?

A. Wedid, we went up to the doer, Mr. Morgan
knocked ; the womanservant came to the doorand said,
who'sthere? Mr. Morgan said two friends, do you want
any assistance? the answer she made was, no; we want
none. Mr. Morgan said it is an extraordinary thing
we cannot be admitted in a case of this nature, I
insist upon coming in. While he was speaking in that

-way, Mr. Patch came up to the door, heimmediately
opened thedoor, as near as I can recollect, and I think
he first began saying to Mr. Morgan; What a shocking
thing this 1s'that has taken place; Mr. Morgan said it
is not a time to talk about that now, shall I go and
search the premises for you? he said 1 will be

. much obliged to you if you will take that trouble,
While that passed I slipped into the room, where My,
Blight sat in the chair; I just saw him, and came out

"again instantly ; by that time, Mr Patch, or the ser-

*vant, had got a candle and lanthorn to give to
Mr. Morgan, in order to go and search the premises;
Mr. Patch then said to Mr. Morgan, Sir, I think the
best way for you to proceed, will be to go on board the

“vessel breaking up.—~He said, on the Thursday night

that the pistol was fired off, we thought we heard a

rumbling in that vessel, which induces me to tell you

to go that way. We were then about to proceed 1o

the vessel; Mr. Patch, the instant that we were upon
the start to go to the vessel, took a candlestick with

, & candle lighted in his hand,and went to a very remote
part of the yard by himself ; he turved to the right,

“and went down to the further cosner, néxt to the

=
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stone-mason’s }fard; I lost sight of him for a small
time: I thought it an extraordinary circumnstance, a
man going in that way by himself, I thought him a
resolute character, I thought it rash in him going
there when there was firing of pistols and killing
people going forward—he was gone about a minute
and a half, then he returned, and went into the house,
and took no notice of either Mr. Morgan or me.

Q. After he went into the house, did you endea-
vor to search any vessel at the wharf?

A. Yes, Mr. Morgan was rather a~head of me; I
came up to him instantly, and as near as [ can cal-
culate the vessel lay fourteen or sixteen feet from the
wharf, with her heel off.

Q. Could you get from the wharf into the vessel?

A. No, there was mud between the vessel and the
wharf.

Q. About fifteen feet wide?

A. About fourteen or fifteen feet wide—there was
a round balk, or something of that kind.

Q. Could you tell if any body had gone upon that
mud ?

A. We looked, and there were not the least ap-
pearance of any feet having been down there.

Q. How low down was the mud from the wharf?

A. 1 suppose it might be about as high as that
place (about twelve feet); we went round the pre-
mises, and looked in different parts.

Q. From the position in which that vessel was at

low water, could any person have fired a pistol from-

thence, and have shot into the window of that room,
so as to make the mark in the window-shutter?

A. No, they could not possibly have done it.

Q. How hLigh is the mark in the window-shutter
from the ground?

A. About three feet, I suppose, where the ball
entered. ,

Q. And a person in the vessel must have been
greatly below the wharf?
~ 4. No, not if a person had been in the vessel, at

F2

L2
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| water; I should think they would have been upon
a level with the window, if the deck was in the
vessel, but I do not know whether the deck was in

or out of that vessel. A
L. C. B. Macpovatn. What is your reason for

th:uhuw, that a person from that vessel could not
have flf:d so as to hit that window?

A. Because the vessel lay slanting a little; I do
not think a ball could have gone t]lr-:mnh the bhutter
direct, as that seemed to do; it sc.uned to come in a

different direction.
Mr. Poorey. After you made this observation

upon the vessel at the wharf, did you see Mr. Patch
again’

A. Yes, I saw him in the room with Mr. Blight;
Mr. Bllwht was then lying on a bed.

Q. W hat passed tlmu*
A. T was terrified a good deal, and did not pay

sufficient attention to what paased to answer any
questions.

Mr. JaMmEs BERrRY.
Cross evamined by Mr. SErsEaNT BEST,

Q. It was a considerable time after the pistol had

been fired before you searched the yard ?
A. It appeared to me to be about twenty minutes

before we beq&n to search.
Q. How did you get into the yard; was the cate

then open?
A. The gate was on the latch; I think it was not

fastened.

[(The sash and window-shutter brought into court. ]

Joux Pring sworn.
Examined by Mr. GArRrow.

Q. Where did you bring that sash and shutter

from ?
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A. ‘From Mr. Blight's yard; this morning
Q. Did you take them down?

A, No.

Q. Did you see them taken down?

A. No,

CHARLES STONARD sworn.
Examined by Mr. GArroOWw,

Q. Were you a labourer employed by the late Mr.
Blight ?
A, Yes.
€. At what time did vou leave your labour on the
night of the 19th—the night when tlm first shot was
fired ?
A. 1 left my labour at six o’clock in the evening.
Q. Who shut you out when you left the premises?
A. Mr. Patch did the gates up that night.
Q. Mr. Patch fastened up the gates?
. I cannot tell; Iwent out at the gates as other
people did ; Mr. Patch was there.
Q. How soon did you hear that any thing had hap-
pened in the course of that evening,.
A. Next morning I heard Mr. Patch tell the peo-
ple of it.
Q. Had you the curiosity to look at the place
where the ball had passed through?
A. I saw where the ball bad gone through the

shutter.
Q. Is that the shutter the ball went through ?

A. Tt is.

Q. Is this the sash that was shut up by that shut-
ter, and through which the ball passedr

A. Yes, this is the lower sash.,

Q. What height is this sash from the ground, when

it is in its proper place?
A. About two feet nine inches.
Q. Now hold up the shutter, and shew me the cor-

responding hole in that,

[The witness shewed the hole in the shuitter and in
the sash.] F3
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Q. Do you remember what the state of the tide
was at eight o'clock that evening. ?

A. It was low water.

Q. At low water, how far would a man have to
drop, from the wharf to the edge of the mud?

A. About twelve feet, and the mud would be above
his middle.

Q. So it was impossible for any person to escape
that way?

A. Yes, nobody could escape that way.

Q. Had you a vessel,at that time, breaking-up,
along side the wharf?

A yes.
Q. Do you know whether her decks were in her?

A. 1 cannot saywhether theywere in or not; 1 know
the deck was off; the beams were there.

Q. How did the vessel you were breaking up lie
with respect to that window?

A. It lay towards the stone mason’s yard more
that way than towards Irost’s.

Q. Could any person, placing hlmbl?]f on board
that vessel, and firing up the wharf, by any possibility
have fired thruugh that shutter and sash?

A. No, not as the vessel lay.

Q. Cnuld he being ten or a dozen feet below, and
at this distance—what was the distance’ across the
wharf?

A. 1 suppose about twelve vards.

Q). Suppose I had a mind to stand down below,
under the wharf, to fire at this window, do you thlnk
I could by any possibility take any aim so as to hit
the bottom of that window ?

A. No; if you was down below the wharf, yoa
would have to fire a great height up the house.

Q. You havea large crane upon the wharf?

A. Yes.

Q. Is there not a crane on the side nearest Frost's?

A. "Yes.

Q. Supposing T was upon the river, could I take
an aim from the river to this window with this crane
standing in my way ?

i R S e



87

A. No, not as this window was shut; you could not
stand to do it by the crane; the ball was fired sloping,
the muzzle of the pistol must have been pointed
downwards.

Q In your judgment, must the pistol have been

placed above the hole so as to haye glanced down-
wauh P

A. Yes.

Q. And that could not have been the case, if the
pistol had been fired from where the crane is?

4. No.

Q. Is there any house at the crane, where any per-
son could conceal himself ?

A. No; itis what we call a gibbet erane.

Q. buppo any person to have fired from any part
of the wharf, is there any way in which he could
get away, but over the gates?

A. There was no other way, for the gates wereall shut,

Q. Do you know the place where the Miss Davis's
are said to have stood: —the angle leading on to
Frost’s?

;f TI'L‘S,

Q. Could they from that place have an opportunity
of seeing any body if they had got over the gates?

A. qu they would.

4] Hmv soon, after your master had been shot on
the Monday, did you Lear he had been shot?

A. 1heardit the next morning when I came to work.
Who did you sleep with on the Tuesday night ?
I sat up on Tuesday night along with my master.
Who did you sleep with on W mIm: sday night?
L was above stairs then along with my master.
Were you at any time in [, LIr. Patch’s room?

A. Yes,I slept with Mr. Patch, on the Thursday

night.

‘Q. Did you sleep with Mr, Patch in the room he
usually slept inz

A. Yes, in his hed with him,

Q. Did you carry any appavel of any sort to that
reom except what you wore, and what you carried
away with you? |

4. No, F4

s SRS
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Q. Are you positively certain of that?

A. What I carried up I took awav with me.

Q. Did you carry any thing but the cloaths you
were wearing?

A. No.

Q. Did you carry, or leave there, a pair of white
ribbed cotton stockings ?

A. No.

Q. Had you any such stockings belonging to you?

A. No; what stockings I had T went up stairs with
them on, nnd came away with them on next day.

Q. Had you ever been in that room before or since?

A. I had not been in that room before, but have
been up in that room several times since the job hap-
pened.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Stafford being there to
search the premises?

A. There were some Gentlemen there.

Q. Did you ever carry any stockings and leave
them there? -

A. No.

Q. Are the pales next the stone mason’s yard stout
or weak?

A. They are weak ;—nobody can get over them in
a hurry.

Q. {)id any of them appear to be broken after Mr.
Blight was shot?

A. No.

Q. ‘r'nu remember the Coroner’s Jur} sitting there?

A. Yes

Q. Do youremeniber, upon the Tuesday before the
Coroner’s Jury sat inthe evening, being present, whea
Hester Kitchener and her mother were together in
the kitchen?

4. Hester Kitchener’s mother was there, but that
was before they went to the jury.

Q. Do you remember secing: Mr. Patch there?

A. Mr. Patch was there in the evening.

Q. Did you hear him say any thing to ' Hester >

A. As I was sitting in the kitchen, along with Mr.
Patch and Hester Kitchener, drinking a glass of grog
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together, Mr. Patch said to I-Iestiizr Kitchener, “ Now
Hester you are going before the jury, yon must speak
the truth and nothing but the truth.” IHester said she
should speak the truth. Mr. Patch said * they wiil
cross-question you, and ask you a good many ques-
tions, and if you begin upon one story, you must
keep to that story and no other; it you do not, says
he, you will get me into prison; and now they will
ask you whether you gave me a candle —you know [
asked you for a candle, and you gave me a candle.
I took the candle out of your hand and went into the
privy, and you heard me shut the privy door—they
will ask you all these questions, says he, and you
must tell them.”

QQ. This was on the evening before the Coroner’s
Jury sat?

A. Yes; the night my master died.

L. C. B. Macpo~narp. About what time was this?

A. Just before Mr. Patch went to bed.—I suppose
it was ten or eleven o'clock.

Mr. Garrow. Wasit known the jury were to sit
the next day?

A, Yes.

Q. The next day IHester was examined before the
jury ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was Mr. Patch examined next day ?

A. Yes, when he came home he camme into the
kitchen, says he, I was as near being hung as ever
was any thing in the world.

Q. How did the conversation begin ?

A. He did not say any thing about that; this is
what he said when he first came into the kitchen.

Q. Who did he address himself to?

A. There was ouly Hester and I in the kitchen.

Q. You knew he had been betore the Coroner ?

A Xes

Q He said I was as near being hanged as any
body ever was in the world ?

A. Yes, and he said, but if I had I should have
been as happy as 1 am now; some people seem to
think, says he, it was I that shot Mr. Blight.
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Q. He was at this time at large coming to his own
house, not in any custody.

A. No, he was in my master’s kitchen. He said,
Some people seem to think 1t was 1 that shot Mr.
Blight. The jury asked me whether I had a coupie
of pistols, I told them yes, I had a couple of pis-
tols, very short ones, some where above stairs in the
box ; you have seen me have the pistols, have not
vou ; I said no ; said he, they are a couple of little
short pocket pistols—I said yes, Siv, those did not
shoot mv inaster, 1t was a larger one. Damn 1t
says he, some people seem to think it was I that shot
Mr. Blight, but says he, one man shall take one of
these pistols in one hand and I will take the other,
and he shall have the first fire at me.

L. C. B. MacponvaLp. Did he produce the pis-
tols ?

A. No, I never saw them-—that is all I ever heard
him say.

GLORGE SMITH sworn.
Examined by NMr. CoMMON SERJEANT,
Q. What are you?

A. 1 am apprentice to a Shipwright.
Q. Do you livenear Mr. Blight's ?
4

A. Na. '

Q. Do you recollect the Monday that Mr. Elight
was shot ? .

A:Yes.

Q. Where were you on the evening of that
day r

A. T was passing his premises.

Q. What part of his premises were you passing at
that time 7

A. 'The fenee, very near his gate.

(). About what thue were you passing there?

A. As near as I can guess about half-pust cight;
I heard the report of a pistol or a gun. '

1l
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Q. Where did that appear to you to have been
fired ?

A. In Mr. Blight’s yard.

Q. Were there any persons near you at the time ?

A. There were three boys and five labourers with
me.

Q How far do you think you were from the gates
at that time?

A. Between ten and eleven yards.

Q. Had « any person with vou a licht at that time ?

A. One of the labourers had a link.

(2. That gives a good light?

A. Yes

Q. As you were passing by did any body come
from the premises of Mr. Blight ?

A. Not that I saw.

Q. If any person had climbed over the fence, or
come through the gateway must you have seen him 2

A. Yes, I must.

Q. How long were you within sight of Mr. Blight's
premises ?

A. I might be a minute, more or less, I cannot say.

Q. Did you hear any noise of any person halkmw
or attempting to get over the gates ?

A. No, none at all.

GEORGE SumiITH,
Cross evamined by Mr. SERJEANT DBEsT,

Q. There were three boys and five labourers, were

there not ?

A. Xen

Q. Were you ail walking together?

A. No the labourers were a-head of us.

Q. They were one party, and vou and the three
boys were another ¢

.rf. YES.

Q. Were you talking ?

A. No, not a word. The labourers were talking
to each other.
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Did you hear what the labourers said ?
I did not.

You did not stop at all?

1 did not.

You were passing on pretty briskly?
Yes, quite fast.

One of the labourers had a link~
8

ROROROXND

Jounx BrowxN sworn.

Eramined by Mr. Coxsr.

Q. Were you with Smith on the night of the 23
of September last?

A. Yes.

Q. Where were you ?

A. Almost by Mr. Blight’s gate.

Q. Did you :l’:ear the JE[}I‘Jlt of a pistol or a gun?

A Xen, I cid,
Who were there besides you and Smith?
There were five men who were just before us.
Had yvou any hight?
Yes, we hag a torch.
Were you so situated, that if any body had
fscuped from Mr. Bhﬂ'htb premises, you must have
seen them ?

A. From the part where we were we must have
seen them.

Q. Whichever direction they had taken you must
have seen them come out ?

A, Yes,

Q. Did you see any body ?

A. 1 saw no body.

Q. Was any observation made when you heard the
gun fired?

A. Yes, Smith said there is somebody shooting at
the ship- -breakers again.

Q. You did not stop there ?

A. No.

e
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Mirs. Saran BLiguT sworn.
Eramined by Mr. Garrow.

Q. You are the widow of the deceased gentleman
whose death we are enquiring upon r

Aoy e

Q. When did you first become acquainted with the
prisoner Patch.

A. I believe two years and an half since.

Q. Didany relation of his live in your family ?

A. Yes, a sister of his,

Q. Was she a servant in your family ?

A. Yes,

Q. She was your only female servant ’

A Xes |

Q. Did your first acquaintance with the prisoner
begin by his visiting that sister ?

A. Yes.

Q. After he had become thus introduced to your
acquaintance, did he enter into your husbhand’s
service ?

A. He did.

Q. What did he represent to be the state of his
own circumstances, and where he came from?

A. That he came from the country; on account
of some difficulties respecting some tythes.

Q. Do you recollect what part of the country he
represented himself to come from?

4. Ithink it was from Aylesbear, in the West of
- England,

Q. Did he engage in your husband’s service?

A. He did after some little time?

Q. Upon what terms as to compensation did he
first engage in your husband’s service?

4. At first, forty pounds a year I believe.

Q. Did he work for any time without receiving
any pecuniary salary?

A. Yes, some short time.

Q. For some time only for his victuals then-

4. Yes,
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Q. How long was that?

A. A month ortwo I believe.

Q. Did he work as other persons did, in the
breaking up ships and the other laborious parts of
your hushand’s trade?

A. L rather think he did not.

Q. Rather superintending?

A. Yes.

Q. And afterwards he was employed at the wages
of 40l. a year?

A, Yes:

Q. Yor how long?

A. One year.

Q. During that time you boarded him, I take for
granted?

4. Yes.

Q. After that his salary was raised to I believe
100/. a vearr?

R, O

Q. Did any thing happen in the vear 1805, from
which you were led to see, that there were some
embarrassments in Mr. Blight's pecuniary affairs?

4. No.

Q. Any thing respecting his credifors?

A. 1 did not know any thing of that.

Q. Did Mr. Blight deliver to you any papers to
deliver, in any given event to Mr. Patch

Ay X es, - :

Q. Was Patch present at the delivery of those
papers to your

A. No.

Q. Were you present with your husband at any
time, when those papers delivered to you ; were the
subject of conversation, between Mr. Blight and
Mr. Patch ?

4. Yes, .

Q. When, as you best recollect, were those papers
delivered to your

4. I think about six months before my husband’s
death.

Q. I am speaking of the receipt, of the bill of
parcels, and the letter?
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. A. T believe that was not above four months
before.

Q. What conversation did you hear between
your husband and Mr. Patch respecting those pa-
pers, and what you were to do with them ?

A. T was to give those papers to him (meaning
Patch) in case of being questioned respecting the
property.

(. Did you ever part with those papers, either
to the prisoner or any other persen, ull aiter your
husband’s death ?

A. No; Tkept them till after his death.

Q. You had gone out of town to Margate, and
there, received the information, of the accident that
had happened to your husband?

A. Yes,

Q. Upon your coming to town where did you
find those papers?

A. In the tin box, where Mr. Blight told me he
had put them.

). Was that in his dressing room?

A Xes,

Q. Were they in an envelope, addressed to you ?

A. Yes, directed to me.

Q. There youfound them, in that state, after your
husband’s death ?

A. Xes.

Q. Whom did you deliver them to ?

A. To a lady who was with me on a visit, and she
gave them to Mr. Patch in my presence.

Q. When were they delivered for the first time to
Patch after your husband’s death ?

4. The evening that Mr. Patch was taken into

. custody.
¢ Q. Was that after he had been examined before
‘the Coroner’s Jury?

A. Yes.

-+ Q. What did he say to you, to induce you to put
those papers into his possession ?

4., That he had been questioned with respect to
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the property, and that he had not those papers ixn
liis possession.

Q. Did he say where he had been questioned?

A. Yes; at the Acorn, where the Coroners Jury
sat.

(Q. What more did he say about these papers?

A. Nothing more that I recollect.

Q. Did he say what he wanted these papers for?

A. Nothing more than that he wanted the papers.

Q. ¥s'it true that he had from the 15th day of
July the entire possession of those papers, or had he
them at any time, till after he had been before the
Coroner’s Jury?

A. He had not had them till September the 27th.

Q. That you are certain of ?

A. L am.

Q. Your husband had originally accompanied
you to Margate I understand r

A0eE

Q. And had returned to town again, and after-
wards left London on the 19th of September ?

A. It was on a Thursday, I do not recollect the
day of the month.

Q. How soon after he had arrived at Margate did
he receive any letter (I do not ask you to its con-
tents) which induced him to come to London?

He received it on the Saturday, after he had
arr wed with me.

Q. Are you acquainted with the hand-wntmg of
the prisoner Patch?

. i

Q. Should you know the letter your husband re-
ceived if [ were to shew it your

A. Yea

Q. Look at that letter; do you believe that to be
the letter ?

A. It is. :

Q. Do you believe that to be the prisoner’s hand-
writing :

A. 1t is,

[(The Letter was read ]
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Dear Sir,

I have a very ml;ﬂlﬂnt a uhmlinfg thing to inform you of,
I last Lvening was setting in the front Roome in the chear
Mrs. Blight sits in at HI‘Ldkhlst about about half past 8
oClock lu my great supprize I hard the report of a Gun
and the Lmllenh of it came through the windo nearest the
vard Gats when the Servant bmught the lights in, 1 or-
derd her to shut the the windo’s as I intended to 20 tu bed
early so the Boll came through the ““"mdﬂ Shutter the
sid fram and nock’t the Blind all to pieces one of which
strock me on the side of my head, but am happy to say
don me no matral damage I nntmf_ginh run in the }md
but could not see any one 'unl for the present am at a loss
to jude the intenction of it, but it scems very likely to be
intended for yours or my life, I hope 1 shall” find it to be
accedentley don which will he a great sattisfaction and I
suppose to you allso but from the directions in cane is every
reason to believe it was don on the whart, if so, no doubt
but the party was disappointed to fine the windos slmt, L
do not know what Evemays you might have but for my
kvn; 1 do not know that I have offended any one by Act

ord or Deed, or even a quarrel with any one, I have had
but littal husmts: sins you was gone, and have nothing par-
ticular moor to insert but my kindest respects to vourself

and Family and hope this will meet you all in helth I shall
be happy to receive a few lines from you but much moor
to see you are the onalley Iriend I have to consuit with,

I am Dear Sir
Your humble Servt
Rich? Patch
Ttotherhithe s
20 Sept 1805—

Mr. Garrow. Ilow long was it your husband’s
purpose to have continued w ith you at Margate?

A. e intended to have come home on the
Monday. _
* Q. Did you know from any conversations be-
tween him and Patch ; in your prescunce, whether they
had at that time any money concerns depending ?

A. Yes:

Q. When he came down to visit you at "'.Idrrratﬂ,
was it his ﬂrigmal purpose to cm]tmm: some time 7

A. No; to rcturn on the Monday.

G



Q. Did you know, from conversations in the pre-
sence of Patch, that your husband and he had
pecuniary concerns then depending :

. Ees

Q. Confining yourself entirely to what passed in
Patch’s presence, what do you knbw to have been
the state ot those concerns?

L. C.B. MacvoxaLp. What did you hear them
say to each other?

A. A thousand-pound bill was depending. There
was one drawn at two months date, which was to be
paid at that time—drawn on one Mr. Goom, by
Mr. Patch.

Mr. Garrow., Who did you hear say this?

A. 1 heard Mr. Blight say this.

Q. In the presence of Mr. Patch?

A. 1 heard it often talked of between them both,

Q. F¥or what purpose did you understand that
1000¢. bill to be drawn *

A. For an estate of Mr. Patch’s, which had been
sold in Devonshire.

Q Who was to have the produce of that bill?

A. Mr. Blight.

Q. Tor what purpese and upon what consideration
was Mr. Blight to have that 1000/.?

A. For Mr. Patch to have a part of the business.

QQ. As a consideration for being let in to a part of
your husband’s business -

A Yes,

Q. Waus 1000/. the exact sum, or was there a larger
sum, of which the 1000/. was to be a part-

f’f 12504. was the sum, and 1t was reduced to 1000/,
by Mr. Blight, having 250/. paid in hand.

(. Did you ever, before your husband left town,
hear any conversation between him and Mr. Patr:h
about the money getting into Mr. Goom’s hand ?

4. Yes. When that bill fell due, it was to be paid
into Mr. Blight’s hands ; that is all I know of it.

Q. Did you ever hear your husbaud say any thing
to Patch, about this money getting into Goom’s
hands ?
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A. Yes; I heard him ask Mr. Patch, when it fell
due, why it was not duly paid.

Q. Can you tell about what time that was?

A. 1 believe, four months before Mr. Blight’s
death.

Q. What account did Patch give, upon that en-
quiry of vour husband’s ?

A. That his f'rir:ud, Goom, was not ready to pay
it—had not got 1t.

Q. What more did he say ;—did he say any thing
about any part of it ?

A. He said he could get 500/. of the money, from
Goom; but he would not take that, as he could
not have the whole.

Q. Did matters respecting that 1000/. then remain
in that state, when your husband came to Margate?

A. They did.

Q. Did your husband, upon the receipt of that
letter which has been 1carl come to London ?

A. He did. He was coming to London else on
the Monday, but he came on the Sunday evening,
instead of Monday.

Q. You afterwards heard of the misfortune that
had happened to him, and you came to town ?

. 1Yen

Q. Did you speak to Mr. Patch upon the subject
of the 1000/ ?

A. 1 did: I asked him if Mr. Goom’s bill was

aid.

QQ. When was this?

A. 1 believe, upon the Friday morning. -

Q. That was before Mr. Patch was in any custody?

A. Yes. I asked him if Mr. Goom’s bill was Dald
he mld me, yes. He said Mr. Goom had been’ there
to breakfast, on the Tuesday morning, by appoint-
ment ; he said Mr. Goom had been to the banker S,
and that the money was paid.

Q. Who did he say had been to the banker’s ;
did he mean himself or Goom?

A. I understood him that Mr. Goom had been at
the banker’s, and the money was paid.

G 2
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Q. And that Mr. Goom had breakfasted at your
house, on the Tuesday morning, by appointment?

A. Yes,

Q. Did you know the contents of those papers,
which were entrusted to your care, to be given in a
certain event to Mr. Patch?

A. Yes.

- Q. You knew they were a receipt, a bill of parcels,
and a letter addressed to Mr. Patch?

M. Yes.

Q. Did you ever hear any thing said by vour hus-
band, in the presence of Patch, as to the nature of
that transaction, or why it was done ?

A. Many times; that it was to secure his property.

Q. To secure it for whom, and against what ?

A. To secure it for himself and l]l.s family, because
our trustees perscented Mr. Blight much.

Q. In short, he was afraid his creditors would take
his property from him, and this was to protect it
against them?

A Yes, they threatened him so.

Q. Was tlmt frequently talked of in the presence
of Patch?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever hear it represented, till after your
husband died, that Patch had purchased the pro-
perty, or that fie had paid the cousideration stated
in these papers ?

A. Never.

Q. But, on the contrary, it was to cover the pro-
perty against the claims of creditors?

A. J ust so.

Q. Do you krow of any other sum being advanced
at any time, or in any shape, by Patch, to your hns-
baud, except the £v50, part of the counsideration
for cnmiug into partucrship with him?

A. Yes, one £50.

Q. Was that the whole? i

A. It was the whole.

Q. Were you so well acquainted with your hus-
bands afiairs, that if Patch bad made him large
loaus, you should have known it?
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A. Yes, surely.

Q. If from time to time, he had been advancing
money to your husband’s trade, to the amount of
£1200, or £2000, could that have happened with-
out your knowing it?

A. No.

Q. Were you present at their confidential conver-
sations about business?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever hear such a thing asserted or
insinuated ? -

A. Never.

Q. Look at these papers, and tell me whether
these are the three papers deposited by your husband
with you, and which, after his death, you delivered, or
the lady for you in your presence, to Mr. Patch?

A. "They are the same.

[They were read.]

Rotherhithe, 15th July, 1%05.

BIr. Richard Patch
Bought of Isaac Blight,

: o . .

The remains of the hull of the ship Carnatic «++ 1400 0 o0
A parcel of plank and timber lying inthe yard 240 0 o
Two boats, oars, &c.vavverienees tvevensss 70 0 O
'.l"l!i"(} cranes on t.h'!,_‘.’ ‘I."f:lﬂ.rl' A T T R IGU Ei u
The furnit‘uru and fixtures of the house as pﬂr} 35 4. 1.6

!nv{_-utﬂ]}? B Eom T E S EE oo w EE sme R R s w R

A parcel of ship breakers and smiths’ tools «-+« 17 10 ©
£2065 4 0O

“¢ Received the 15th July, 1805, from ‘;‘I r. Richard Patch,
two thousand and sixty-five pounds four shillings, being in
full for the stock in trade on my premises, sold him this

day.
' - ISAAC BLIGHT.
G J
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Rotherhithe, 15th July, 1805.
Mr. Richard Patch,

Sir,

In consequence of your taking the stock in trade
off my hands, I do hereby promise to use my best endea-
vours to piocure a renewal of the lease of the premises from
the corporation of the City of London (the petition tor the
same having gone in my name) you paying all charges and
expences on the same.

Iam, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
ISAAC BLIGHT.

Mrs. SaAran Bricur.
Cross-evamined by Mr. SERJEANT BEsr.

Q. Your husband, before he went into the ship-
breaking business, had been a merchant ?

A. A West-India merchant.

Q. As such he had failed?

A. Yes.

Q. That was in the year 18037

A. 1 believe it was.

Q. That was before Mr. Patch came to him?

A. Oh, yes, some time.

Mr. Garrow.  Was he carrying on the business
of a ship-breaker, to a considerable extent, before
Mr. Patch came to him?

A. Yes.

Q. Were his circumstances, in your Jurln'ment
when Patch came to him in aﬂnuushmg state?

A. Just so.

Mr. SErJEANT Brst. The trust-deed is in exist-
ance at this time, I believe?

" il Y

Q. 1 believe there was no dividend made under
that trust-deed?

- Mr. Garrow. 1 admit there was po dividend
made under it.
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Mr, SEryeaNT Brst. The date of the deed was
August 1803 ?

Mr. Garrow. T will admit that also. We shall
have occasion In the course of the examination of
Mr Goom to speak of a paperin the possession of
the Prisoner; we will prove a notice to him to pro-
duce 1t.

Mr. WiLLIAM SWEXDELL sworn.
Examined by Mr. GArrow.

Q. You are clerk to Mr. Humphreys, the Solicitor
for this prosecution *

4. Yes.

Q. Did you serve the Prisoner with copies of this
notice, one with a view to the projected trial at King-
ston, and the other with a view to the trial here?

A. 1 did, and 1 also served it upon the Solicitor
for the Prisoner.

['The notice read.]

Surry Lent Assizes.

The IiING, } Indicted fnr the wilful
: Richard .Patch, murder of Isaac Blight.

Mr, Richard Patch,

You are hereby required to produce on the trial of
the above indictment, on Saturday the fifth day of April
next, at the Session House, Horsemonger-Lane, Newington,
in the county of Surry, a certain draft, check, or order for
payment of money drawn by you, and bearing date on or
about the 16th day of September, 1805, for the sum of one
thousand pounds upon Stephen Goom, of Tyer’s Gate, Ber-
mondsey, in the said county of Surry, glue maker, and also
all other drafts, checks, or orders for payment of money,
drawn by you upon the said Stephen Goom. Dated this 31st
day of Mareh, 1306,

'I'o Mr. Richard Patch, Your's, &ec.

the above named Defendant, C. HUMPHREYS,
and to Messrs. Fletcher and Solicitor for the
W right, his Solicitors Prosecution,

G 4
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Mr. SerseaNT BesT. We have not got it.

Mr. SterseN GooM sworn.
Examined by Mr. CoMMON SERJEANT.

Q. 1 believe you are a glue-maker, and live in
Bermondsey-street, in the Borough ?

. Yes.

Q. Do you know the prisoner, Richard Patch?

A. 1 think 1t is from seven to ten years ago that I
emploved his brother, and he worked for Mr. Thomas
Walker, in Russcl-street, Bermondsey, in the same
line; I saw the Prisoner two or three times during
the time he worked for Mr. Walker.

Q. How long ago is that?

A. Upwards of ten years.

Q. Have you seen him since?

A. Not ull 1 saw him at the public examination at
Bow-street.

Q What is your address?

A. Tyer’s Gateway, Bermondsey-street.

Q Have you ever had any pecuniary connexions
with the man now at the bar?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever receive any money from the
Prisoner at the bar?

A.Nevex.

Q. Dbid you ever r give him any authority to draw
upon you for any amount whatever:

w1, Never,

Q. Did you ever receive from any other person
money upoci the account of the prisoner.

A. No, never.

Q. Did you ever know of the prisoner having
drawn upon you for any amount whatever till he was
taken into custody?

4. 1 never knew any thing of it till I had a notice
to attend at Bow- street.

Q. Did he ever ask permission of you to do se, or
propose that he should do so?
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A. Never ; I have not seen him from seven to ten
vears—I think it is upwards of ten years since 1 have
secin him fill the public examination day.

Q. Did you ever give any note of hand, or security
whatever to the prisoner Patch for the payment of
money ?

A. Never.

Q. Did you ever make any appointment to call at
Mr. Blight's, for the purpose of paying any money to
Patch, or did you ever breakfast there?

A. No, never; I did not, to the best of my know-
ledge, even know that he was at Mr. Blight's.

Q. Did you ever call at the banking-house of
Messrs. Willis and Percival respecting any draft pay-
able to Patch?

A. No, I never did.

Q. Or did you ever tell any body that you had
done so?

A. No.

L. C. B. MacpoxarLp. You never called at
Willis and Percival's at all?

A. Never,

Mr, Tauomas GRAHAM, sworn.
Evamined by Mr. Coxsr,

Q. Where do you live?

A. In Mile-end road.

Q. Of what profession are you? *

A. A Ship owner.

Q. You wercacquainted I believe with Mr, Blight ?

A. Twas.

Q. Do you remember being with him at his house,
on Monday the 23d September last?

A. 1 was.

Q. Were you present at any time when Mr. Patch
and he were conversing together ?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. What was the subject of their conversation, and
what was said by each of them?
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A. On the Friday I think T called at Mr. Blight's
house about a ship which I had sold him, he was not
at home, he was at Margate—M\Ir. Patch told me a sad
accident had happened.

Q. Now you are speaking of the Friday preceding,

A. Yes, Friday the 19th [ think, Mr. Patch told me

a sad accident had happened, that some person had
fn'd a pistol or a musket through the window, and
tock me in and shewed me ghe pldce I looked at it;
he shewed me the window where the shot had come
through on the inside of the house. I asked him if
he knew any reason or cause for it. He said no, he
believed 1t was an ntent upon either him or Mr.
Blight, he then shewed me in what situation he was
sitting when the shot came in, in a chair, and that some
part of the blinds of the window was driven against
his head. T asked him where the ball went to, and he
stopped and shewed me, he said it dropped about half
way between me and the window. 1 looked and ob-
served part of the blind lying upon the floor, and some
bits of things that had flown from the window. I was
astonished at their not having been moved, but he
said he wished they ahﬂuld lie there till Mr. Bl:ﬂht saw
them.

L. C. B. Macpo~xarp. This was the day after
the accident had happened?

A. Yes, the shot had been tired in the night, T think
he said about nine o’clock. I asked him if'he had got
any suspicion upcn any person to.do such an act?
He said no, he had not, that My. Blight had had some
words with a person that was about fimshing some
kind of a ground, or a dock, or a wharf, or some-
thing of the kind on the other side of the water, that
was the only person he could think of.

Q. Did he mention the name of that person.

A. Yes, Ithink he mentioned the name, but I
do not recollect it at this moment.

Mr. Garrow, Should you know the name if you
heard it?

A. Yes, I think I should.

Q. Was it Thompson, or Johnson, or Clarke?




107

A. T believe it was Clarke, I think that was the
name; he said that he would write to Mr Blight to
cone up to town immediately, for he was rather
uneasy about 1t.

Mr. Const. Was any thing else said?

- A. No, I do not think that there was. On the

. Monday following I called, 1 was going to look at a

- ship at Greenland-dock, I asked whether Mr. Blight
was come home? He said yes, he was come, but was
gone up to town, I said I was going to see a ship, and
would call again as I came back. I came backabout
one o'clock, and then he was just come from town, I
askzd him for the payment of tl e vessel, he said he
was just come from town

@ while you were in the room, did Mr. Patch
come into the room?

A. He was on the wharf when 1T went, he asked me
to go in and take a snack of something to eat, we
were to meet the next day.

Q Pass over what passed between you and Mr.
Blight till Patch came, relate only what was said in
Patch’s presence?

A. Isat down to have something to eat with him,
and when I was sat down Mr. Patch came into the
room, he said Mr. Blight, ¢ Pray where are your
spurs.”

* Q. Had he at that tune, boots or shoes on?

A. DBoots. e pointed across the room, and said
* They are lying there on the chair,” and Mr. Blight
said to him “ Patch do not you return without the
money.” Says he “ You may depend upon it I shall
not return while it is got all settled.” He went out, and
that was all that passed.

Q. He then wentaway?

. Yok

Q He did not return while you were with Mr.
Blight?

A. No, he did not return while I was with Mr.

Blight,
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o
Mr. Ricuarp Percivar, sworn.

Lramined by Mr. PooLrey.

Q. You are a partner in the house of Messrs. Willis,
and Co. the Bankers ?

. (Y es,

Q. Did Mr. Patch in the-month of September last,
open an account at your house ?

A. He did.

Q. What time in September ?

A. About the 7th.

Q. Amongst other cash, did he pay in at that time
any draft?

A. Yes, he paid in a draft.

Q. Upon whom?

A. A draft for 1000/, drawn by Mr. Patch upon
Mr. Goom.

Q. When was that payable?

A, On the 16th of September, he paid that very
draft in, on the very day he opened the account.

Q. Before that draft becaine due, did he call at
your shop agam?

A. He did.

Q. For what purpose?

A. To say that Mr. Goom was not prepared to pay
the draft on the 16th, that he would take the draft with
him, and send us another for a future day.

Q. Did he send you another?

A. He did.

Q. Have you got it?

A. T have.

L. C. B. Macpoxarp. Was ita draft or a pro-
missory note, or what?

A. A draft drawn by himself upon Mr. Goom, it

was just the same, only the date altered.
Q. When was that other sent?

A. 1 do not know the day.

Mr. Poorey. Was it before the 16th?

e — e _n
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A. T cannot say, perhaps Mr. Willis my partner
may recollectit, he had a conversation with Mr. Goom
on the subject.

[The Note was read.]

No. 20th Sept. 1805.
I. Gooms, Esq. at Tyer’s Gateway, Bermondsey,
vay to Messrs. Willis, Wood, and’ Co. or Bearer, Oue

Thousand Pounds.
RICHARD PATCH.
£1000. :

Mr. Poorry. Before that draff’ became payable,
did you receive any letter from Mr. Patch -

A. Yes, on the 19th. /

Q. Is that the letter you hold in your hand ?

A. Yes, this is 1it.

Mr. Garrow. We will now read this letter ?

Mr. GurxEY. It is not proved to have come from
the Prisoner. '

Mr. Garrow. Did you receive it from his hand
personally ?

A Na.

Q. Do you know his hand writing?

A. Inever saw him write,

Q. Have you transacted business with him in con-
sequence of seeing his hand-writing ?

A. We have paid his drafts.

Q. Do you believe that to be his hand-writing 2

ek e

Mr. Garrow. Then we read it as his writing ?

[ZThe Letter was read. )

¢¢ Messrs. Willis, Wood, Percival and Co.
¢ I. Gooms, sq; the man I gave you a check upon for
£1000 on Friday next the 26th inst called me to-day, in-
forming me he :jmnld net be able to face it to-morrow, 1n
consequence which 1 have taken his note pavable 1st Qcto-
ber next, which hath civen me full satisfaction, as before |
had no security from him. I will call on you Saturday or
Monday next and take up the check, and give you the note,
I am, Gentlemen,
" Your humble servant,

TRotherhithe, RICHARD PATCH.”

19 Sept. 1805, '
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Mr. Poorey. In the conclusion of that letter he
says, that he will eall upon you on the Saturday or
Mumlm » take up the check, and give you the note—
did he do so }

A. He did not.

Q. Did you know Mr. Blight ?

A. 1 did.

Q. Did Myr. Blight eall at your shop on the 23d of
September, which was the day he was shot?

A. Yes, he did.

Q At what time in the morning ?

A. About ten o'clock,

Q. For what purpose did he call there?

Mr. Gur~xey. That must have been by conver-
sation, which of course we cannot know—it was all
i conversation.

A. Yes, it was.

Mr. Garnrow. We propose to ask, did he call in
respect to his pecuniary concerns?

L.C. B. Macpovarp. That is a fact, it is a
common enquiry, for what purpose did he call?

Mr., Poorey. Did he call respecting his pecu~
niary concerns?

A. He had no account at our house,

Q. Did he call to enquire after a note?

A. He did.

Q. What note.

Mr. Goryey. Isubmit to your Lordship that my
learned friend is not entiticd to ask that qtlt‘atlﬂﬂ the
object of the call was expressed by conversation, and.
the prisoner was no party to that conversation.

L. C. B. Macpoxarp. It is part of the res gesta
his going there to enquire after the note.  Any thing
which hesaid, and which another man said, and so
on, I willnot take down, but this I taketobe eudence.

Mr. Gurxey,  With great deference to your
Lordship, I submit, that the only fact independent of
conversation, is, that Mr. Blight did call upon the
witness, his mnrivf: for calling, if stated to the witness,
was stated in conversation, to which Mr. Patch was
not privy, and for which he therefore cannot be
made answerable.
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L. C. B. Macpoxarp. But after all it is a fact,
it is partof the res gesta, if he were to proceed, and
say Mr. Blight said so and so to me about that note,
I would not take 1t. But the naked fact, that he
went there, and asked about the note, I see no ob-
jection to.

Mr. Garrow. We are content to take it much
short of that, the witness says first that Mr. Blight
had no account with them, and next that he came
to enquire after something, he came to vour house
to make enquiry concerning something -

A. He did.

Mr. Garrow. We will not ask what it was.

Mr. Poorey. Have you got Mr. Patel’s book?

A. Yes, this is it.

Q. Isthere any entry made in that banking-book
by Mr. Patch?

A. Yes, the last entry is written Mr. Patch.

Q. What is that entry ?

A. * Messrs., Willis, Wood, Percival, and Co. will
please to place the above biil to the eredit of the exe-
cutor of the late Mr. Isaac Blight.  Richard Patch.”

Mr. Garrow. Will you be so good as to tell us,
what that is, which is erased.

A. l1tisthe second draft on Mr. Goom, for 1000/.
which was withdrawn.

Q. Who made that erasure?

A. We did.

Q. It being withdrawn, you erased it?

A. Xes,

Q. Was that last entry made in your book since
Mr. Patch has been in custody under this charge?

A. Yes, the first draft was written in, and made
returned ; the second was written in, and as it was not
to be transferred to Mr. Blight’s account, we erased it.

Q. Not becoming effects in your hands, you struck
1t out? 4

A. Yes,
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Mr. Wirriasm WiLris, sworn.
Eramined by Mr. Garrow,

Q. You are in partnership with Mr. Percival ?

A. Tam.

Q Did you hear the account Ar. Percival has
given of this transaction *

A. Yes.

Q. You are more acquainted with Mr. Patch’s
hand-writing, than Mr. Percival, I understand?

A. I took in the account, and saw him write his
name.

Q. That was the signature, by which you were to
regulate yourselves afterwards:

A, Yes

Q. Have you any doubt, that that is Mr, Patch’s
hand-writing ?

A. Not the least. :

Mr. Gagrrow. There is a head of evidence I am
ready to go into, but I do not know whether your
Lordship will permit me to go into it to prove an alibi
on the part of Webster ;1115 Clarke, who were stated
by the prisoner to be suspected of having shot Mu.
Blight,

Mr. SErJeaNT BEsT. I do notobject to it.

Tuomas WEBSTER, sworn. .
Livamined by Mr. Garrow.

Q. In what way of business are you?
A. A sawvyer.

Q2. Do you happen to recoliect where you were on

Monday. the ¢3d day of September last?

A Xes

Q. Did you know the late Mr. Blight?

oL X es .

Q. Did you hear at any time that he had been
killed ?

A. Not till Tuesday morning.

Q. When did you hear that he had been shot at?

4. Never before the Tuesday morning.

S —

et e e i
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Q. On the Tuesday morning you heard he had
been shot at,—on what day?

A. The night before.

Q. Where were you on the night before, that is to
say the Monday ?

A. At home.

Q. Where had you been in the day?

A. At Lavender-yard, at work.

Q. Whom had you been working with?

A. One Mr. Chalk, a ship-breaker.

Q. When did you leave your work ?

A. At six o’'clock.

Q. What did you do with yourself then?

4. 1stopped at the Swallow Galley till about seven,
then I went home.

Q. Hew far is your own house ?

A. Four or five hundred yards.

Q. Did you leave your own house after that ?

4. No. _

Q. How long did you sit up?

A. T did not sit up above twenty minutes.

: Q.:‘ Are you sure you did not sit up longer than
that :

A. Yes. My daughter was in labour, and I went
to bed out of the way, instead of being among the
women.

Q. Did you go by Mr. Blight's house after that ?

A. No.

Q. Had you been near Mr. Blight’s house ?

A. I was obliged in coming home to go by that
house.

Q. That was at six o'clock?

A. About half past six,

Q. Have you a son?

A Yes.

Q. What is his name ?

A. William Webster.,

Q. Did he ever abscond on any occasion whatever?

. Mo

Q. Was your son in London at the time Mr. Blight
was killed ?

A. No ; in the Downs.

H
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Q. Was he a sea-faring man ?

A. He has been at sea.

Q. He is here to tell us hiumself, is not he ?

- A. Yes.

Q. When did he go away to the Downs?

A. He went away the last day of August. -

Q. Did he return before or after Mr. Blight was
killed ?

A. About a fortnight after, I believe.

Tuoymas WEBSTER, _
Cross-examined by Mr. SERJEANT BEsT,

Q. He was absent at the time?

A. Yes,

Q. Was that the first voyage he had made?

A Xes,

Q. He was not a sea-faring man before?

A. Yes; he was a sea-faring man before.

Q. I thought you told me that was the first time?

A. Yes; that was the first time of his going
away.

Q. Had it so happened, that your yard had been
searched before that?

A Xes.

Q. On a suspicion of your having some property of
Mr. Blight?

A Yes,

Tuoxas WEBSTER,
Re-examined by Mr. Garrow,

Q. Who caused that search to be made?

A Mr. Patch. 1 was not at home when it was
searched, but my daughter was,

Q. Do you know of Mr. Blight's having any thing
at all to do with it?

A No; I do not.

Q. Was your son a seaman, or what had he been?

A. He was a sawyer.

Q. Was that search made before or after your son
went away -
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A. Tt was after my son went away,
Q. Was any thing found ?
A. No ; nothing at all.

WirLriam WEBSTER sworn.
Examined by Mr. ComMoN SERJEANT,

Q. Are you the son of Thomas Webster?

A Yen.
Q. What business are you?
A. A sawyer.

Q. Where did you use to work ?
4. I worked at Mr. Brent’s, and I have worked at

Mr. Blight’s.

Did you leave London at any time.

I left London the last day of last August.
Where did you go to?

To Deal.

When did you return ?
About a fortnight after Mr. Blight was shot.

Were you in London at any time between the
latter end of August and a fortnight after Mr. Blight
met with his death ?

4. No.
Q. Were you nearer to London than Deal?

A. No, I was not.

@h@?@%@

Harr1ET WEBSTER Sswora.
Eramined by Mr. Coxnsr.

Q. You are the daughter of Thomas Webster who
was here just now?

A. Yes.
Q. Do you live in his house now?
A. No, not now, but I did at the time the acci-

dent happened.
{ Ffaw happened you to be there ¢
A When my husband went away I went to live

there with them.
Q. Are you Wllham Webstm s wife ?

A, Yen,
H2
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Q. Do you remember your sister-in-law being
brought to bﬂd?

A. 1 was in the house—it was the very night that
Mr. Blight was shot.

Q. Do you remember your father-in-law eoming
home?

4. Yes—he had been at the Swallow Galley drink-
ing, and he came home rather in liquor about se-
ven o'clock ; he went to bed about eight o'clock; I
called him to get up between three and four o’clock,
to get out of that bed, that my sister might get into
that bed.

Q. Was he ever out of that house from seven
o'clock ¢

A. No, not till five o'clock the next morning.
We never knew any thing about this business till at-
terwards.

Josern CLARKE sworn.
Lxamined by Mr. Poorey.

Q. What 1s your business?
A. A labourer—a labouring man.
Q. Do you recollect the {Lly on which Mr. Blight
was shot 7
A. I cannot justly recollect the day—I believe 1t
was on a Monday.
Q. Do you know where you were on that day ?
4. T was at the Red Lion, at Poplar.
. When did you go to the Red Lion?
. 1 went about five o'clogk in the afternoen.
. Did you cross the water fram Rotherhithe ?
. Yes, I crossed the water.
. Who was with you?
. John Cox.
. How long did you remain at the Red Lion?
. I remained there as much as an hour and a

=~

RAOMCAD

ha’li
Q. At what time did you leave it?
A. Itwas, I believe, about half after eight o'clock.
Q. Where did you go to next ?
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A. To the Green Dragon at Poplar, and drank a
pot of beer there—we stopped there only a few mi-
nutes.

Q. Where did you go next?

~ A. To the King’s Head in Limehouse Causeway.

Q How long did you remain there?

Till about half after nine o'clock.

Q. Was Cox with you?

A. Yes, he was with me the whole of the time.

Q. Were you near Mr. Blight's pwmlscs any part
-of that day ?

4. 1 was not.

Q. Had you any quarrel with Mr. Blight about
repairing a wharf?

A Yes.

Q. You are the same man.

A. Yes, but that was a long time ago.

Joux Cox sworn.
Evamined by Mr. PooLEY,

Q. Were you with the last witness on the day on
which Mr. Blight was shot.

A. Yes, I saw him about seven o'clock in the
mmnmg, anedd he was not out ot my sm'ht till nine
o'clock at night—his wife came and fetc,hul him
home from me at the King’s Head at Limehouse,
about nine o'clock.

Q. She thought he had had enough,

A. Yes, he was very tipsy.

Q. He was there on his own business?

A. He was on my business—he had been at the

brick-fields at Stepney,

Mr. WriLrtay Joxes sworn.
Livamined by NMr. Ganrow.

Q. I will not trouble you with a long account of
this Gcntiemaus death--—:,ou were the surgeon wha
was called 11 ?

g -1 am.

H3
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Q. Do you remember secing the Prisoner Patch
there ? :

A. 1do.

Q. Had you known Patch before?

A. 1 bhad known him about a year and a half' and
Mr. Blight for a year.

Q. D;d Mr. Patch generally wear boots ?-

A. Speaking generalh he did.

Q. Did you see him on the bed after Mr. Blight
was in his d]ﬁtlE%b, after the wound he had recewed ?

A. Isaw him on the bed and in different situa-
tions in the house.

Q. Are you able to state to my Lord and the Jury
whether he had shoes or boots on that evening ?

A. He had boots on in the evening, but not when
I was called in as a surgeon to Mr. Blight.

Q. Atwhat time did you see him in boots as usual ?

A. From half past five to six I was in the yard.
conversing with Mr. Blight about the shot that had
been fired on the premises on the preceding Thursday.

Q. How long might you remain with them then?

A. I remained with Mr. Blight about a quarter of
an hour—say twenty minutes.

Q. At that time Mr. Patch had his boots on as
usual?

A. Mr. Patch was not with us the whole time;
he rode into the yard, then he was booted.

" Q. At what time were you called in in conse-
qence of the fatal accident?

A. The message came to my house about a quar-
ter of an hour——

L. C. B. MacpovaLp. At what time did you
arrive

A. T made all expedition, and T consider myself
as having been there before nine o’clock.

Mr. Garrow. In what place did you first see
Mr. Patch ?

A. Mr. Patch hearing that I was coming, met
me between the parlor door, in which parlor Mr,
Blight was, and the bed on which he was lying; he
told me what had happened, and pointed Mr. Bllght
out to me,
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Q. Mr. Patch continued offéring him all atten-
tions while you remained there ?

A. Particularly so—Mr. Blight never would be re-
~moved while in bed but by Mr. Patch’s assistance—
he had occasion to be removed in bed frequently in
consequence of pain.

Q. All the assistance and relief he had from his
wound, and the pain in consequence of it, he had
“from Mr. Patch?

A. Yes.

Q. You had a very good opportunity of secing
how Mr. Patch was dressed?

AT -

Q. What was the color of his small cloaths?

A, They were the same color as mine—I believe
nothing but the scissars parted them—DMr. Patch or-
dered them of the same tailor, and they were cut oft
the same specific piéce.

Q. What was the color of his stockings?

A. They were white.

Q. He was so habited while you remained in the
house, and was so at the time you were sent for?

A. I cannot say that he was so when I came, but
he was so when Mr. Blight was put to bed at eleven
o'clock.

Q. Had he any opportunity of changing them be- .
tween these times?

4. 1 went for Mr. Astley Cooper—I was absent
two hours.

Q. When did you first observe the color of his
stockings?

A. In the night when he was kneeling on the bed
assisting Mr. B!urht

Q.* At what hour?

A. It was between eleven and twelve that I first
observed it—he was not put to bed till eleven o’clock.

Q. You do not know whether he had stmkmgs or
boots on when you came to the house at nine o'clock,
because you do not recollect that you made any nh-—
servation upon it; but when you observed him after
Mr. Astley Cmper came there, you observed that he
had stockings and shoes on.

A. Yes,
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Q. And the color of his small cloaths was light, and

nothing butthe scissars had parted them fromyour own?
A. No.

Q. Did you make any observation whether his
stockings were ribbed or plain ?

A. It made some little impression on my mind,
and I think they were ribbed, and think I mentioned
that in my declaration before the magistrates.

Mr. Garrow. Ihave in my har.t(% the agreement
of the 31st of August, which I will prove by the at-
testing witness, the consideration of which is stated
to be 1250/ and it will not be immaterial that that
sum of 1250/ was to be paid,

Tuoxas Musk sworn.
Examined by Mr. CorxMoON SERJEANT.

Q. Look at that agreement, and tell me whether
you witnessed the execution of it?
A. Yes, Idid,

(It was read. )

“ This Agreement, made the Slist day of August, 1803,
between Isaac Blight and Richard Patch, both of the
parish of St. Mary, Rotherhithe, ship breakers.

“ Whereas the aforesaid Isaac Blight is now in possession
of certain leasehold premises belonging to the Corporation
of the City of London, on which he carries on the business
of ship breaking, and also a stock of tunber, parts of ships,
and other matters valued together, with the lease, by agree-
ment, at the sum of three thousand seven hundred and fitty

ounds : he the said [saac Blight agrees with the aforesaid
%lchurd Patch to dispose of onethird ot the above to him, for
the sum of one thousand two hundred and fifty pounds, and the
business, from the date of this agreement, shall EE carried onin
the name of Richard Patch alone, in proportions as follows:
Say one third part or share to him the said Richard Patch,
and two third parts or shares to him the said Isaac Blight;
that the said Richard Patch shall reside on the premiscs,
and keep a regular set of books, which shall at all times be
open to the inspection of both parties; and it is further
agreed, that all money put into the business by either of the
parties, over and above the proportion above named of
three thousand seven hundred and fifty pounds, shall bepr
an interest of five per cent. and the party putting in
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such money shall be always at liberty to draw it ont, on
giving thirty days notice of such his intention; all rents,
rates, taxes, and other expences whatsoever, that may be on
the premises for the benefit of the business, to be charged
to the trade in equal proportions as above stated : and it is
further understood and agreed, that the business shall con-
tinue in the joint aceount, and in proportion as above stated,
so long as a mutual good understanding shall exist between
“the parties; but in case either should wish at any future time
to deciine the business, six months notice shall be given by
the party wishing to decline, and at the expiration of the six
manths the stock in trade, together with the remainder of
the lease, shall be sold by pubiic or private auction, and the
money arising from the sale to be divided in proportions as
atoresaid, afier all debts and demands on account of the
concern are discharged, and also in the same manner ia case
of the death of either of the parties,

“ The atoresaid Isaac Blight agrees to use all dilizence to
get g renewal of the lease fromy the Cnrpormion, and as soon
as 1t is accomplished to give the said Richard Patch a coun.
terpart of such lease, to secure to him his interest of the said
one third share as above mentioned : and also to aid and
assist, and do his best endeavours to procure suitable <hips to
supply the demand of the yard, and in every other way to
promnote the interest of the parties aforesaid ; and the said
Richard Patch also agrees, on his part, to use his best en-
deavours and exertions on the premises, in breaking up and
dispusing the materials of such ships, and other matters as
may be under his care for the joint account and benefit of
both parties, in proportions as atoresaid ; and to this agree-
ment both parties have set their hands and scals, the day
and vear above written.

ISAAC BLIGHT,
Witness Thomas Musk, RICHARD PATCH.

MARY SALTER sworn.
Evamined by Mr. Garrow,

Q. Are you a washerwoman by business?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you wash for Mr. Patch?

A. Yes.

Q. He lived at Mr. Blight’s, did not he?

A. Yes,
Q. Do you remember hearing of poor Mr. Blight's
death? : il A

4. Yes.
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Q. What day did you hear that Mr. Blight was
dead?

A. T heard it on the Tuesday.

Q. How lately before that had you received Mr.
Patch’s linen to wash?

A. On the same day that the accident happened.at
night.

5Q That is to say, on the Monday that Ml Blight
was shot.

A Yes.

- Q. At what time in the day did you receive Mr.
Patch’s linemn.

A. About eleven o'clock in the morning.

Q. Did you receive it weekly, or how?

A. 1 han:{ had it only once before, and that was, I
think, at the distance of about a month or tive weeks.

Q. What is the manner in which vou laundresses
mark the linen sent to you, so as to (IEStlnﬁ'umh the
linen of one person from that of another.

A. We maik them sometimes with one sort of
worsted, and sometimes with another, different peo-
ple’s linen.

Q. So that your people, whether they can read or
not, can tell my linen from this Gentleman’s and that
Gentleman’s by the worsted ?

4. "Xes,

L. C.B. MacpoxarLp. You have different colors
of worsted for different people?

A. Yes, if you were a new customer, I should
mark your linen.

Mr. Garrow. If I was an old customer, you
would get acquainted with my linen, and need not
mark it.

A. Yes.

Q. My initials may be W. G. and this Gentle-
man’s W. G. and this other gentleman’s W. G. so that
the initials might not pmnt out whose linen it was ?

A, Yes.

Q. Had you ever any white cotton stockings to
wash for Mr. Patch?

A. I cannot say that I remember washing any white
cotton stockings for Mr. Patch,
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Q. Look at those stockings which that Gentleman
has in his hand, and see whether that is the way in
which you mark your new customers linen?

A. 1 do not see any mark.

Q. Youare not looking forit, you are avoiding it,
is this the way in which you mark the linen of your
new customers?

4. Yes.

Q. You had had Mr. Patch’s linen only once, be-
fore that Monday r

A. Only once.

Q. So that you had not become acquainted with
his linen.

A. No, Ihad not.

Q. Look at that mark; upon the oath you have
taken, do you believe that mark to have been made
at any time, while those stockings were in your
possession ?

A, 1 cannot say; I cannot take upon me to say
that I ever washed any of this kind.

Q. Is that the way in which you mark ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you usually mark both the stockings, or
only one of' the pair?

A. 1 generally mark both of one pair of stockings.

Q. Did you look at any of the linen you had on
the Monday from Mr. Patch?

A. Yes |

Q. Did you look at it, after you heard that Mr.
Blight was killed 7

A. T had it before Mr. Blight was killed.

Q. Did it remain in your possession after Mr. Blight
was killed ?

A, Yes.

Q. What is become of it ?

A, Mr, Patch has got it.

Q. It was either in its foul state or in the weton the
Tuesday ?

A He had not it on the Tuesday; he has had
it since ; I do not begin washing till the Wednesday.

Q. What you had from him on the Monday was in
its foul state on the Tuesday ? ’

4, Yes.



124

Q. Will you look at that mark, and tell me whether
you have a belief, one way or other, that that was made
on your premises?

~ A. 1 do not know—it might,

Q. What do you believe ?

A. I cannot say, it might be made by me, I do not
remember washing any stockings like these.

Q. Do you, or do you not believe that they were
marked by you?

A. 1 do not know, 1 am sure, whether they were or
not, we have linen come sometimes, marked by other
people.

Q. Does that worsted mark appear to have been
frequently washed, or only once, in your judg-
ment ?

A. The color is all washed out of it pretty well,

Q. Do you know what color it was at first ?

.. No, I cannot say that I do.

Q@ Then you hardly can take upon yourself to say
what color is gone ?

A. T had only one pair of stockings with the last
linen,

Q. What color were they ?

A. They were brown; that was all the stockings
I had in that parcel.

Mry. Joux Starrorp sworsn.
Evamined by Mr. Garrow,

Q. Where did you find those stockings ?

A. 1 found them in a cioset in the prisoner’s bed-
ro0Iim, '

Q. In what state were they at the time you found
them 2

A. They were folded up, and the top of one of them
turned over, having exactly the appearance of a pair of
clean stockings.-

Q. In the manner in which one receives them from
the laundress ?

A Yes

Q. You were not so well satisficd with outside ap-
pearances, but opened them ?
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A. 1took them in my hand, I thought there appeared
an unusual hardness, and I opened them,

Q. In what state did you find them ?

A. 1 found the feet of them very dirty, just in the
same state in which they are now, except that the dirt
is more hard and worn out, and the Jegs are now very
dirty.

Q How did the upper part of them appear at that
time?

A. The upper parts were very clean at that time, but
they have become dirty in consequence of opening them
and folding them together.

Q. Had they at all the appearance of having been
worn under boots ?

A. No, not at all.

Q Will you now open them and describe the situa-
tion in which 1hey were ?

A. The dirt drops off every time thy are opened ; it
is quite in clots on the feet,

(They were shewn to the Jury.)

Q. Anthony was with you at the time you found
them?

A Ten

Mr. Garrow. I suppose it is not negessary
that we should call Anthony to confirm Mr. Stafs
tord ?

Mr. SErRJEANT Brst. Certainly not.

Mr. Garrow. Was it in the bed-rcom over the
counting-house and privy that you found them ?

0% e

OxeE of the Jury. Those stockings are not marked
with any initials 2

A. No, they are not; he told me himself that was
his bed-room; [ found there all his wearing apparel,
and a bank note, which he claimed.

Mr. Joux STAFFORD.
Cross evamined by AMr. GURNEY,

Q. What day was it when yecu found the stock-
nws?
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A. 1 believe it was the 30th of September; it was

the Monday following Mr. Blight’s death,
Mr. Garrow. It was after Mr. Graham the magi-

strate had taken some pains in this business ?

A. Mr, Graham was with me in the room. Mr.
Patch was in custody previous to that time, and he had
mentioned this as his room.

Q. That bed-room he had described as his ?

Ay Xes

Mr. Gur~NEY. He was taken up on the Thursday or
Friday ?

A. Yes.

Q. And on the Monday following you found these

stockings in that closet ?

4. Yes.
Mr. Garrow. As Anthony is in the box I will just

ask him one question,

Mr. WiLLiaMm ANTHONY sworn.
Lyamined by Mr. GARRoW.

Q. You were present when those stockings weie

found ?
A. Yes.
Q. Were they found as Mr. Stafford has de-

scribed ¢
A. Yes, they were.

Ricuarp MurcH sworn.
Ervamined by Mr. ComMoN SERJEANT.

Q. Were you employed to search the privy belong-
ing to Mr. Blight’s house ?

P s .

Q. On what day ?

A. On the Wednesday,

Q. Do you mean the next Wednesday after Mr.
Blight was shot?

4. Yes.
Q. What time of the day did you make that search ?

A. Between the hours of three and five.
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Q. In the afternoon?

A Xes.

Q. Did vou find any thing in the privy ?

4. 1 found a ramrod in the trunk,

L. C. B. Macvo~arp. Describe what you mean
by the trunk. |

4. A trunk leading from the water-closet, or some-
thing of that kind, six inches square.

Q. Do you mean a funnel, at first large and grow=
ing less?

A. Yes, it led down into a bog-hole

Q. Was 1t #he ramrod of a gun or pistol 2

A. Of a pistol.

Mr. Coummox SERrJEANT. You found nothing
else ?

A. No.

Q. Have you it here to produce ?

A. Some of the Gentlemen have had it of me.

Q. Is that the ramrod you found in the privy 2

(Shewing the witness a ramrod.) ;

A. Yes.

Q. Was it dirty, or how?

A. It was about so much dirty in the bog-hole.

Q. The worm was about two inches deep in the
soil ?

A. Yes, and the wadding was about it.

Q. At which end was the wadding ?

A. At the worm end, in the soil.

QE I suppose you frequently go on this sort of busi-
ness ?

A. Yes, I have frequently gone.

Q. Did you make any observation on the
trunk, whether there was any appearance of any body
having ‘been there who had a looseness in his
bowels ?

A. There was nothing of the kind ; more to the con-
trary.

Q. There was no appearance of any perscn having
been there who was troubled with a looseness f

A No, not in the least, but more to the con-
trary.
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Q. Did you afterwards see Mr. Patch at the time his
sister was in company with him?

A Yes, I saw him at the Acorn at the time of the
Coroner’s inquest.

Q. Was the inquest then sitting ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you observe any body speaking to his sister ?

b

Q. At the time she was talking to somebody did he
call her aside ?

A Yes.

Q. I want you to state what he said to her, but not
her answer ?

A He called her aside and said, Sarah, was not
there such and such Gentlemen asked you some ques-
tions.

Q. Do you recollect what names Mr. Patch men-
tioned to her?

A. No, I cannot; he asked her if there was not such
and such Gentlemen asked her some questions. She
replied, yes; he said be cautious of what you say;
the report is of me, they can bring no proof against
me.

Q. Was that all that he said to her?

A Yes, it was.

Q. Did you mention to Mr. Patch, at any time,
that you had found this ramrod ?

A. No, only just on the premises when I found it.

Q. When you found it on the premises Mr. Patch
was acquainted that you found it ?

A He was at the Acorn when 1 found it, to the
best of my recollection ; I was below at the bog-hole.

Q. What passed with him on the subject?

A. He said nothing to me; he was not acquainted
with me, nor I with him.

Ricuarp Murcn,
Cioss examined by Mr. SERJEANT BEsT.

Q. This was the first time you had been down there ?
. TeL
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Q. Then you did not know whether thére were any
reports against him or Vo sk

“A. No.

[.. C. B. Macpoxarn. You say the soil in this
funnel was of a hard consistency ?

o e i

(). Was there any passage down?

A Yes, but it could not get any farther on account
of the hardness of the soil.

Q. Was there a passage by which fresh soil might
get down to the bog-hole ?

Voo : '

Q. The hard stuff tlien was sticking to the sides ?

A. Np, sticking to the bottom, there was nothing on
the sides.

Q. Did it form a pan or any thing of the kind ?

A. Yes, it.could not get down into the cellar.

Q. It choaked up the bottom ¢

A Yes.

Q. From your experience can you say whether, if a
a man had been frequently there.on the Monday, there
‘must have been some appearance of that.on the Wed-
nesday ?

A, There was not the least appearance of it

Q. Must it have been apparent if a person had been
there five orsix times on the Monday ?

A. Yes, there must have been an appearance, but
there was not the least appearance there,

- MARY SMITH sworn)
Emc‘rmmcd by Mr. Coxsr.

Q You w::re servant at the Brown Bear, Bow- strcet?‘

A . Yes,

Q. That was “thc hcu&: wh"n: Mr. Patch was can-
“fined some time ?

kW, 55 -7 | '

Q. Was it your‘l:-usnness to wait upon him?

b i 3.1

Q. Do you remember whether at any time he said
any thing to you, by way of message, to be delivered
to Hester Kitchener ?

A. Yes, I
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Q. When was that?

A. 1do not know the day.

Q. While he was under examination, during the
time he was at your house ?

A. Yes, he asked me how his servant was ; T un-
understood him, but whether he said his servant or
the servant I do not know : he asked me to take her a
glass of wine, and give his compliments, and for me to
tell her not to fret, for they only kept her confined to
frigchten her, to see whether she would alter her story.

NOAOAE

Did any thing more pass?

No.

Did you deliver that message ?

Yes I did.

%;hat was the only message you took ?
€s.

Aaron Grauam, Esq. sworn.

LEyamined by Mr. GArRROW.

Q. Will you be so good as to cast your eve on
that, and tell me whether that examination of the
prisoner, of the 28th of September, was taken in your
presence ?

NORONORON

Yes.

It was taken from himself in your presence?
Yes, '

Was it read over to him afterwards ?

Yes. :
Did he perfectly understand the contents of it?
Pertectly.

Will you look at this.of the first of October ?
I say the same of thus.

Q. Here is another of the third of Qctaober, on the
same paper as that ot the first of October; will you
look at that likewise 7

A. That was taken under the same circumstances.
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[The following evaminations were read :]

MipprLesex.—The Evaminations of Richard Patch,
Foreman to the late Mr. Blight, cy"
Rotherhithe, in the County of Surry Y
Ship-brealker,

Who savs, on Monday evening last, he drank
tea with Mr. l:iltrht in the back p-'uluul next
to the lane, dh{]llt six o'clock, and after tea Mr.
Blight said, he had brought his will home from
tow! n, and he read it to lo:«mnumnt, he said there
was but one thing he wished to have altered,
which he would do on the morrow, and write it
over again. Mr. Hugin was named executor, and
Mr. Blight said, he thr}unht he was a man that
would not give himself much trouble about it, and
therefore he would alter the will: after he had read
the will, he saul, I want to make water, will you go
with me; Examinant said yves, and went out with
him; the} returned together and sat down upon
their chairs, close tug-:*ther, where they were sitting
before; he then proposed taking a glass of grog,
and going to bed, as he found himself tired by being
up all mght; they had each a glass of grog, and sat
talking, \l.h-:,n Examinant, hmmw a Lmnplamt in his
bowels, found it necessary to go out; Examinant had
been several times during the aftﬂnﬂm], and once
since tea; Fxaminant went into the kitchen and got

a hght, nm:l the key of the countipg house, and went
ﬂut at the door, and throu ¢h to !’Iizf. counting-house,
to the necessary, as fast as he could, being very ill, and
obliged to make haste; Examinant had just sat down
when he heard the report of a gun or pistol, and
directly ran, with his bteeches in his hand, to
the door nf the house, which was shut-to just as
rxaminant reached it; Examinant knocked at the
door, and the servant opened it, Examinant asking
what was the matter; the servant said her master
was shot, and Examinant found him in the kitchen
leaning with his arm on the dresser; Examinant said,
my dear Mr. Blight, what is the matter, and took
him by the hand; he said, my dear friend, 1 am a

12
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dead man; Examinant then, assisted by the maid,

took him into the parlor; the maid, after some
little conversation, went out for asalstance; Exami-
nant understood she jumped out of the kitchen win-
dow. Mr. Frost was the first person that came, and
he went for Mr. Jones, the surgeon, who came and
looked at Mr. Blight, and then went for Mr. Astley
Cooper, after consulting with Mr. Younger, another
Surgeon, who was present: Examinant attended Mr.
Blight from the time of the accident until his death;
Examinant asked him if he had any suspicion who
could have done it, and he said he could not
tell, unless it was Webster and Clark, the former of
whom had been accused of robbing the yard of tim-
ber, and had his house searched; and with the latter
he had had a violent dispute about the repair of a
wharf; Examinant says, that Mr. Blight had, upon
heaime; of the attempt on the preceding Thurwday, €x-
pressed himself in the same manner about those twa
persons. After the death of Mr. Blight, on Tuesday
evening, Mr. Jones’s assistant went, by the mail
coach, to Margate, to acquaint Mrs. Blight with the
accident, and they came tg tmvn together in a post
chaise, on Thursday morning; Examinant, when he
went to the privy, was so plessed that he unbuttoned
Lis breeches in going through the counting-house,

and he seated himself and drew-to the door after him
the moment he got into the privy, and had scarcely
made a discharge when he heard the report and the
maid servant scream; he jumped up, and with his
breeches in one hand, and the candle in the other,

made all the haste he could to the street door, which
he saw the servant shut, so that he thinks she could
not have got half-way back to the kitchen before he
knocked and called (open the door, open the door)
to be let in; to knock at the door he let go his
breeches, but kept fast the candle in his other hand,

~and carued it with him into the kitchen, where, when

he arrived, the fore part of his shirt was tucked into
his blLBEhEE, but the hind partnot, the breeches,
were not buttoned at all, but he was c:blaged to keep
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them tip with his hand till he began to assist M,
Blight back to the parlor, when, he believes, he
contrived to get one of the buttons fast, but the shirt
was still hanging out; Examinant led Mr. Blight into
the parlor and sat down in a chair, taking Mr. Blight
upon his knee, in which position they continued for
about a minute, and then he placed him in a chair,
still keeping hold of his hand; Mr. Blight grasped
Examinant’s hand very hard, and though he shifted
hands, yet he held fast by one or the other until
Frost knocked at the door; after letting Frost in,
Examinant went back to Mr. Blight, who took him
by the hand again, and continued to hold it fast till
a bed was brought down to the parlor for him to
lie on, at which time there were several people in the
room. Mr. Frost’s brother, a Mr. Matthews, and
others, whose names Examinant does not now re-
collect.

“ On the Thursday preceding the death of Mr.
Blight, as Examinant was sitting in the front parlor
of Mr. Blight’s house (having sent Hester Kitch-
ener for some oysters for his supper,) a gun or pistol
was fired through the window, the ball, which the
maid-servant found on searching the floor after her
return with the oysters, came through the window
shutter, broke the window and the Veunetian blind.
Immediately on hearing the report, Examinant

t up and went on the whart in front of the
ﬁguse as fast as possibly he could, having been struck
on the head with a part of the Venetian blind. Ile
was sitting at the table, with his head leaning upon
his hand almost haif asleep, when it happened, having
had very little rest the night before, by reason of
keeping awake to call up Mr. Dlight to go to the
Margate Coach. LExaminant looked about upon the
wharf, and seeing no one, immediately went to the
gate, on opening which, a man and his wife came up;
they were at the gate the moment Examimant opened
it, and appeared to be coming from Grove-street;
they were the first persons Examinant saw after hear-
ing the report. . Examinant asked them if they had

I3
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seen any one jump over the fence: They said No.
Examinant asked them if they had seen any one run-
ning or seemingly in a bustler They said they had
not seen any one, or heard any thing but the report
of a gun or a pisto], exeept a man lying, apparently
drunk just below the house. Examinant asked them
where they thought the report came from? They
thought, they said, it was quite close to them, and
must be upon the wharf. The man said is there any
thing the matter, Mr, Blight? taking Examinant for
Mr. Iilltrhr Examinant told him what had happen-
ed, and clﬁlxt’d him to walk i ; he said he would, and
him and his wife came in: there was no person pre-
sent at this conversation, nor did any one pass du-
ring the time after the man and his wife came in.
Examinant described to them how he was sitting in
the chair, and what had happened. The man asked
him it he should eall any one, as he thought Exami-
nant had better lmvesmnehml_} with him? Examinant
desired him to yun and call Mr. Frost, being the near-
est neighbour.  Ile went, and Mr. I'rost came back
with him; the maid rcturned with the oysters just
before the man went for Mr. Frest  LExaminant de-
scribed to Mr. Frost how he was sitting, and told
him what had bappened.  Mr. Frost said it was a
very alarming circumstance indeed, and they then
all went into the room.
“ When Mr. Blight met with his accident, and
talked over what the intent of the thing could be,
some one observed they thought it must  be with in-
tent to shoot LKxaminant, .-.mcl then rob the house.
Examinant cannot recollect who made this observa-
tion. Examinant said he did not think it could be
intended for that purpose, for they would not have
alarmed the house first if they bad intended to rob
it, unless they bad made certain of killing Exami-
n;mt for the ball was very well directed, and might
have killed both Mr. Blight and Examinant if they
had been sitting together as they generally did. This
conversation passed in the back parlor, and Exami-
nant then asked themn to take some grog, which the
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man and Mr. Frost did, and the woman took 2 little
brandy ; they all sat in the back parlour an hour or
better in conversation after they came in. They then
talked of going, and Examinant said he would im-
mediately go to bed ; the maid-servant said she had
no candle in the house ; Mr. Frost said if she would
go with him he would lend her some for the night.
They then rose to go, and Examinant said he would
go with them for company for the servant ; we then
all went out together: Mr. Frost, the man and his
wife, the maid, and Examinant. It was very dark,
and rained much ; it was very dark when the pistol
was fired, and, except when it lightened, a man could
hardly see his hand when he held it up before him;
the rain did not begin until after the pistol was fired.
Examinant sat down at Mr. I'rost’s and drank a glass
of grog; the maid was present. Mr. Frost asked
Examinant if he had any fire-arms in the house. Ex-
aminant told him he had a brace of pocket-pistols, but
no ammunition. Mr. Frost said he would lerd Ex-
aminant some; Examinant said he would not have
any for that night, but go home and go to bed im-
mediately. Examinant knew that his pistols were
not in good order, as he had not used them for two

years before. Examinant then went home in company

with the maid, and went to bedin a few minutesafter-
wards, Examinant slept that night in Mr. Blight’s
bed in consequence of what had happened. The
bed room where Examinant generally slept is over
the counting-house, adjoining Mr. Blight’s dwelling-
house, and at that time there was no internal commu-
nication, but persons going from the dwelling-hquse
to the counting-house were obliged to go inta the
vard. Since Murs. Blight came home she had a door
opened, which: leads fromi the kitchen into the count-

g house ; it was a counsin of Mrs. Blight’s that di-

rected this door to be opened. The reason why Exe
aminant did not have it done was, because he did

not like to make any alteration; but when it was

done he had no objection tu it, as it was a convenie-
ence, and prevented them going qut in the dark,
I4
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Examinant further says, that when Lé sa€ with Mr.
‘Bhight in the parlor, who grasped his hand as he has
desc:}bed' he took an opportunity of tucking his
shirt into his breeches, pulling themn up a httlt: aml
‘buttoning them, as Mr. Blight somictimes held one of
his bands, and sometimes the other, and sometimes
Examinant held bun by the hand. Fxaminant further
says, that the  window-shutters of the -parlor'in
which he sat on the Thursday night were not in ge-
neral shut until bed-time, but as he was very tired,
and intended to go to bed very soen, he told lhrﬂ
maid te:fasten the windows: when she brought the
candie,s which was abonthalf past six. Examinant
then had his tea; intending to go to bed immediately,
but Mr. Edrldﬂ*e, a mppusnuth from town, and a
gentleman called vipon Lim My, Edridge and Exa-
minaut drank a glass of grog,and the other gentle-
man took a glass of wine ko e ater; theystay ed bet-
ter than an hour ; and when they “.\El]t away “Exami-
-nant found his stomach quite faint and empty, not
having eat any thing with his tea, and after drinking
-the g_,mg, which Examinant thought gave liim an ap-
petite, he fancied, and sent the maid for, some
n},stms.

RICHARD PATCIL,

~ rﬂ:]\'El'l h{'fﬁ:‘ﬂ me this Y o
£8t11 day of September, 1805. $
' A GRAHAM. J

J..

«MIDDLIEE*{ AT e, ﬁu*ffwr Eramination of Richard
I foabitin Cl§bag Patch,

- Savf;, Iﬂ:snld an estate called Knutwall, near F‘{Etﬂ‘
for 7350 that Messrs. Shantsand Rarses ofi Lthtr
attornies, drew the convevance which was made to
‘one Parsons, and received the money forit; they deduct-
‘ed the mortgage money nearly 300/ and paid exami-
-pant the balance, about March last that he received
about 770/, or 80/. more of Dhake for cogn and other

y "
r‘ "
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things, when the estate .was disposed of': savs; thas
he had also at his ﬁlstcnmmwmtu Mr. Blight's service
about 1200/ in cash by lnm, that from time to time
he has lent most of that sum with other sums of
money to Mr. Blight, until they had a final settle-
ment on the 15th July last, when Mr. Blight assigned
and made over to him the property mentioned in the
bill of parcels produced by Tixaminant, and gave
him the receipt for the amount, being in the w hole
2065¢. 4s. dated 15th July last, ancl Fxaminant tool
possession and began the husiness on his'owitacéount
the next day. Fxaminant gave Mr: Dlight ' the
hill-of palc&ls and the receipt on the 15th Jui'v,r and
the next day gave him the letter promising to procure
a lease of t]lt,, premises,  Examinant has had the
pussession” of all the three papers, namely, the re-
ceipt, the bill of parcels, and the letter ever since,
uutil he produced them on his former examination:
s, thaton the day the accident happened to Mr.
Blight, he came to town about some business relat-
ing to the yard, some timber to Mr. Grey of Water-
lane, Tower-street, who had had some oak plank
trom the yard. Examinant called to know how much
more he wanted, but Mr. Grey was not at home.
Examinant rode to the office and asked 1f Mr. Grey
was at home; they said no. Examinant did not ¢ome
on any other business of more importance to Mr.
Blight, or any business at his request. Examinant
(lues not know that any thing brought Mr. Blight
to town from Margate, E‘{E{,'pt the letter he sent
stating the accident that had happened to him on
the Thursday night. Examinant is certain he dul
npt_come to town on the 23d on any business of
Mr. Blight's..  Examinant says he knows a man of
ﬁhﬁn&IHE of Goom, but has had little or no trans-
agtions with him ; he'did ' not come to Gonm on
that day ; he never-had'a bill drawn on and ac-
d by Goom, or ever said so to Mr. Blight:
].}g,never ‘had a check from Mr. Goom, ora Bill on
any banker from him: Me Blight dil not el

Ii'xamipant not ;ﬁ.lﬂumu_ ‘hack without the moeney,
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or without having it settled. When Examinant got
the spurs of Mr. Blight, and left him at that time,
nothing passed with him and Mr. Blight about
a cheek ; there was no money transactions of any
consequence between him and Goom. Examinant
never told Mr. Blight about any money Examinant
expected from Goom—if Examinant did expect any
money from Goom, Mr. Blight bad nothing to do
with 1t.  Mr. Graham was in ¢ompany with Mr.
Blight, when Examinant went into the back parlor
to ask Mr. Blight if he could do any thing for him
in town. Examinant positively says, that he did
not on the Monday come to Goom about a
check, or tell Mr. Blight that he meant to do so,
neither did he ever give Mr. Blight any check or bill
of Goom’s. Examinant admits he did tell the Banker
he expected a check from Goom, but Mr. Blight had
nothing to do with it, it was Examinant’s own pro-
perty. Mrs. Blight knew of Examinant’s baving the
receipt and bill of parcels, and it was with her con-
sent that Mr. Blight gave them to Examinant, but
Examinant cannot say whether she was present when
Mr. Blight delivered them to him or not. Lxaminant
is certain that Mrs. Blight knew every particular of
the business and that he had the papers—cotisequently
she must know that Mi. Blight had delivered them
to himonthe night the accident happened. Examinant
had a pair of light coloured breeches on, the same he
has on now, thinks he had boots on, cannot be cer-
tain whether he had on boots or choes, believes he
had shoes on and dark colourcd stockings, has no
other except two or three pair of old white enes,
which he has not worn for some time, except some
times on a Sunday, he cannot be certain what stock-
ingshe had or, some of his stockings are marked some
are not Examinant did not know that the maid
had jumped out of the kitchen window until she came
back, when she told him; he did not hear her jump
from the window; the parlor window was shut early.
Examinant did not desire them to be shut—says the
stockings now produced are not his, he does uot re-
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collect making any stockings so dirty as these are,
looks at them again, says that most of his stockings
are marked with common ink, and he does not think
these are his. Charles a man who works in the yard,
slept with Examinant on the Wednesday night after
Mr. Biight's death. Examinant recollects it was after
Mus. Blight came home, therefore it must be Thurs-
day night.

RICHARD PATCH,

Taken before me this }
1st October, 1805.
A. GRAHAM.

MIDDLESEX, jeeren
to wit., 3 The said Richard Patch further says,

““ That he went to the privy two or three times
after Mr. Blight was laid down on the bed, but
he took mo one to the privy with him, there
were several people about, and he cannot be cer-
tain whether any body went into the counting-
house or not—he is quite uncertain and cannot
recollect whether the maid Hester Kitchener went
into the counting-house with him or not, that
might be—canuot say one way or the other, but to
the best of his knowledge he thinks she did not—he
does not know that she did —Says that the receipt
and bill of parcels which Mr. Blight wrote and deli-
vered to Examinant (as a form) was intended to pro-
tect Mr. Blight's family from the operation of a deed
of' trust which had formerly been executed when
‘Mr. Blight was under some embarrassment in his
circumstances. Examinant, according to the agree-
ment, was to have one third part of the stock and
business for 12504 which he has paid to Mr., Blight
at different times when the account was opened by
Examinant at the Bankers. Mr, Blight said it was 2
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small account, and could not T pay a check in to
make it look better upon the face of it.  Examinant
replied he could not tell. Mr. Blight said if I was té
oive a check in to make the account look better, it
could be of no harm if it was not paid—it would not
be paid he said if there was no effects. In consequence
of this conversation; Examinaut drew a check upon
Goom for 1000/. upon a piece of plain paper which
he paid into the bankers. Examinant had no con-
versation with Goom previous to his drawing the
check upon him, nor had Goom any eftects of Exa-
minant’s in his hands, M. Blight knew as well as
Fxaminant that the check was not to be paid, it was
his plan to make the account at the Bankers look
better. LExaminant never told Mr. Blight that the
check was paid—Examinant never told Goom that
he had drawn a check upon him, it never was pre-
sented for payment. Examinant gave the Bankers
notice, with Mr. Blight’s knowledge, not to present
it for payment. Examinant says, that the reason
he gave a former account so different to what he
has given now, was with intention to protect My.
Blight’s family ; Mrs. Blight, knew all the particulars;
and so did Mr. Jones the surgeon, Examinant told
AMi. Jones before Mrs. Blight, he thinks on the
"Thursday after Mr. Blight's death. -

RICHARD P:ETCIL

Taken before me this } .
3d of October, 1805.

A. GRAHAM.

Mr. Garrow. Wasnot therea fourth examination
taken ?
A. I cannot recollect at this distance of time.



141

* Myr. Jou~ Srarrorp called in again.
Exramined by Mr. Coxsr.

Q. Was there any other examination of Mr, Patch
besides these three which have been read ?

A. Yes there was one, which was a continuation
of that of the 28th of September; we had left off,
and then there were some fresh questions suwo'ested
» Q. Was this that further examination ?

A. Yes it was.

Mr. Garrow, (fo Mr. Granan.) Was that taken
pefore you under the same circumstances ?

A. Yes it was,

[The following Examination was read : |

Mrippresex, } The further Evamination of Richard
: fowit. ' Patch,

“ Who says, that no money transactions have
passed between him and Mr, Blight within this
month except a few Dbills which he has paid for
Mr Blight; only small bills. That he never paid
any money into Mr. Blight's bankers, and was
not to have paid any considerable sum lately
—Mr. Blight never intrusted him to pay any money in
his bankers, nor was he to pay any money in on his
account. Thatabout six weeks ago Examinant opened
an account with Willis, Percival and Co. bankers,
Lombard-strect, and paid in about 2000/ in cash
and bills, 1400/ of which Examinant received in
bills of Mr. Blight, and gave him an undertaking to
pay a bill drawn on and accepted by Mr. Blight in
favour of Mr. Annin for the puulnsc of the ship
Manship, which Examinant believes will become due
about the 10th of next month.—Examinant never
saw the bill,—the book will shew when Examinant
received the bills he had of Mr. Blight, as he paid
them into his Bankers, the day after he received
them of Mr. Blight.—300/ of the other 600/ is
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also in bills, which Examinant had of Mr. Blight
and gave him cash for them ; the other 500/ or
thereabouts was in cash, when Examinant says cash,
he mears money and Bank of England notes which
he had by him, the produce of sales of timber, iron,
&c¢ which his book will shew the particulars of; the
book he left in the back parlor ; pait of it was eash
Examinant had by him, but he cannot tell the
amount of it ;—he had this part before he made any
sales of the materials or stock that Mr. Blight made
over to Inm.

Examinant further says, that on Weduesday even-
ing after he was discharged from the Coroner, he passed
about five or ten minutes at the Dog and Duck with
a cousin of his and another man his acquamtance,—
they are both servants:—a Mr. M‘Duff called upon
Examinant there, and he went home with him, Fx-
aminant not having eat any thing after he had his
breakfast, and having drank part of two glasses of
orog, found himself rather intoxicated.

RICIHHARD PATCH.

Taken before me this ?
98th of September, 1805. §

A. GRAHAM.

Mr. Jou~x STAFFORD.
Cross-evamined by Mr. SERTEANT BEst.

Q. Who has got the pistols which were taken from
Patch—you have them, have you not?

A. No.

Q. What sized pistols were they?

A. Fmall pistols—screw-barrelled pistols.

Q. Not such pistols as that ram-rod which has
been produced would fit.

A. No, thiey were such pistols as a ram-rod is not
used with; they were screw-barrelled pistols.

Mr. Garrow. That is the case on the part of the
Crown.
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L. C. B. MacpvovaLp. Prisoner, if you wish to
say any thing in your defence, now is the time,

Prisoxer. If your Lordship pleases, I must beg
permission for the Ofiicer of the Court to read this
for me.

The Clerk of Arraigns read the Defence put in by
the Prisoncr, as jfollows :

My Lorp,

Your Lordship will, T hope, allow me to offer you
my sincere thanks for the great pains you have taken
to protect an obscure, a most unfortunate, and per-
secuted man, from the prejudice that has been raised
against him. Whatever be the event of this pro-
secution, 1t must afford to the public the hizhest
satisfaction to know, from your Lordship’s conduct
on this occasion, how anxious one of the first of their
Judges 1s to secure, tothose who stand accused before
him, a fair and mmpartial trial.

Gentlemen of the Jury,

I could not enter upon my defence without ex-
pressing my acknowledgment to his Lordship for
causing you to be summoned to this place to decide
upon my guilt or innocence, instead of impannelling
for thatpurpose twelve of the Gentlemen who atiended
as Jurymen during the assizes at Kingston. I do not
mean to insinuate any thing to the discredit of those
Jurymen ; I doubt not that they were just and good
men, who brought with them the best dispositions
faithfully to perform the important duty with which
they were charged : but by the various aggravated
statements of this case in the news-papers, such an
mterest had been excited respecting it, and so much
was it talked of in all places of public resort, that
no one, who had remained a single day in an assize
town, could come to the box with a mind sufficiently
new to the subject on which he was to decide, as to
be qualified to act as a Juryman. I could not then
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find the least chiffice of an unprejudiced hearing, if
the learned Judge had not directed a listof Gentlemen
who had net sat on the Jury to be made out, and
that those sheuld be called fresh from their several
homes to serve on my trial. This was the only course
that could be devised to try me, by men who had
Hot already eanvassed and decided on my case 5 but
alas T am afraid that even this precaution will not
be sufficient: ntelligence of whatever passes in the
capital 1s circulated thrnuwh every p*'ut of the King-
dom, and so.much kas the . lrberty of the press been
abused, that I am afraid there is SL&ICDI} a man in
England whose mind bas not been set against me.
1 have been represented as a man C&i}dl}lﬂ of every
crime, and held up as an object of public indignation,.
You will forgive my fears, that these things may have
an effect on your Judrr|11{311t I know you will en-
deavour to prevent their influence, but I feel how
ditficult it is for the human mind to free itself from
any error to which it has once submitted, and 9
separate the account of a transaction laid before it
in evidence, from that which i1t has heard from com.-
mon report.

Gentlemen, ‘the laws of England place those to
whom the guilt of felony is :mputed in a situation of
embarrassment unknown to any other Country. The
prosecutor is permitted to avail himself of the assist-
ance of counsel to lay his case before you, in the or-
der most advantageous for the success of the pro-
ceeding, and to make such observations as are ealcu-
Tated to give the greatest effect to the evidence ad-
duced by him. ‘This privilege is denied to the ac-
cused ; t%m law does not permit my Counsel to speak
10 you in my behalf; antFI am myself a plain unlet-
tered man, unused to Courts of JustmL and unaecus-
tomed to speak in public. I am in no eondition te
give any answer to the observations that have' been
made to- -day, or to explain all the circumstaneces
which have been argued upon by the learned Counsel
for the Prosecution. My defence was mecessari
prepared before my trial began, and could be af}plﬂﬁ

&
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¢ only to what I recollect of the case as it appeared be-

fore the magistrate; it being impossible for me to
know of any other ‘facts that were to be proved, or

- to anticipate any of the arguments that were to be

raised on them, I must entreat you to bear this circum-
stance in yuurmmds as you may otherwise think, there
are points, that [ ﬂught to have explained, to which I
have not adverted. It is with this view that I make
these observations, as I am far from meaning to in-
sist that the law which denies a prisoner the “full as-
sistance of Counsel (if rightly understood,) ‘is liable
to the objection of severity or injustice On the con-
trary, it is founded on the same justice and humanity
which distinguishes the whole code of English juris-
prudence.  The principle on which the practice
stands is this:—That all felonies were originally pu-
nishable with death, and no man was to be subjected
to that dreadful sentence until the crime was estab-

- lished against him by such satisfactory proof, that

the ingenuity and eloquence of Counsel could raise
no doubt in his favor. If this rule has any other
meaning or intention, it ig. unworthy of a civilized
state, and fit only for a barbarous and inhuman Go-
vernment, that delights rather in the blood and mi-
sery of its subjects ‘than in their security and happi-
ness. If mine be 1ts true construction, see how
clear, how satisfactory, in all its points, how unan-
swerable must the case that is brought against me
be, before you can convict me.

Gentlemen, the case is merely c1rcum%tant:a1 ; 1t is
not pretended that there is any thing which affords
direct evidence of my guilt. No one but the deceased
saw the man who ﬁred the pistol, and the testimony °
he has left behind him clearly acquits me of being
that person.

There 1s no one circumstance, nor anyv chain of cir-
cumstances proved which necessarily shews me to be
the person who fired the pistol; on the contrary, there
1s positive evidence to shew that I could not be that
person.  Although jurors have sometimes thought
themselves warranted in convicting on circumstantial

K
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cvidence, it has been when there was no direct proof
to combat the cire umstantial, and where the circums-
stances proved were such as excluded all possibility
of innocence, and which therefore demonstrated the
guilt of the accused as clearly, and satisfactorily, as
if he had been seen to do the deed. And, indeed,
even in some of the strongest of these cases, after the
unhappy prisoner has phui the forfeit of his supposed
crime, it has been ascertained that it had been com-
mitted by some other person.  Often, after such con-
victions, has accusing conscience forced from the
murderer’s breast a,aemct well calculated to give the
nmst solemn warning to those who are appmntu! to

try offenders, to move with fearful caution in lhﬂ
course that leads to death.

- Gentlemen, when you consider that circumstantial
evidence consists of a choice of proofs connecting, b
the interposition of various facts, two things whifﬁ
have no connection with each other, you will readily
perceive how dangerous it is to rely on a case proved
by such evidence. If any one link be defective, the
strength of the whole chain fails, and although the
broken members may be sufficient to excite suspicion,
the}f can in no rational man’s mind induce convic-
tion. All hope of that moral certainty which alone
can authorize juries to say on their oaths a man is
guilty, is gone the moment the least disagreement in
the connecting points is discovered, or the least
doubt of the existence of any one of- them is excited.

Reflect on the various circumstances o which the

strength of each link depends, and see if it be
scarcely possible, that a chain cousisting of so many
facts, as to require a long day to lay them hefore
you, and these proved by 1lurtv or forty witnesses,

can be perfect.  Remember that upon each circum-

stance however minute, vou are to satisfy vour-
selves of the credibility of the witnesses deposing to
it, upon the accuracy of his first observation of it,
upon the correctness of his memory, at the time he
relates it—upon 1ts agreement with some other cir-
~cumstance in the chain of proof, and upon the

1
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justness of the inference drawn from it, to establish
guilt.—If you, or any one of you, are not satisfied
on cither of these pmnts (for the whole twelve must
agree in every thing necessary for conviction) the
uniuu which alone givas strength to such a case, is
dissolved, and the presumption of guilt is destroyed.
But allowing every circumstance stated to be true,
still the charge against me remains unproved, for I
might have said all that I am supposed to have said,
and done all that I am supposed to have done, and
still be innocent. Referring to what passed before
the magistrate, for my kllﬂwlﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂ of what is to be

ttﬂmpted in proof against me t]ns day, I take it to
consist in the establishment of these three proposie
tions, First, That I had a motive to induce me to the
commission of this murder; Second, That I had an
opportunity of committing it; and lastly, That no
other person could commit it.

With respect to my having a motive to commit
such a crime against a person with whom I lived on
terms of so much intimacy and affection, God knows
I shrink back with horror at the idea of it! Itis
painful as death to me, to be obliged to discuss this
proposition.  No thought injurious to him ever for
an instant presented itself to my mind; so far from
intending him mischief, if my own life could have
saved him from the assaﬂsin, it should have been made
a willing sacrifice, instead of my having any motive to
(lestrm.r him ;—not only past acts of mutual kindness
had formed an attachment which no clashing of in-
terest could ever impair, but-at the time of his
death, his life was absolutely necessary to the wel-
fare of myself and my family. My interest, as well
as my regard for him, were sure pledges for his secu-
rity From any injury from me.—My success in life
depended on his living. At this time I expected
from his support a return for the time I had em-
ployed, and the money I had embarked in his con-
cerns.

[ was just admitted to a share of his busmess——a
stranger in this part of the country

)
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with the persons with whom MNr. Blight dealt;
that share became of little value in the event of his
death. Credit and connexions were essentially ne-
cessary to the carrying on of this business. The life
and friendship of Mr. Bligiit secured to me both
these advantages—by his death I was deprived of
them, and my chance of success in trade rendered
desperate. Let it not be supposed that my interest
in this trade could have been enlarged by his death.
—His representatives would have been entitled te
his share of the capital, and as the whole capital was
necessary for the carrying on the trade, their share
of it would have given them the same proportion of
the profits which Mr. Blight himself would have re-
ceived, whilst the whole profits would have been
lessened by the want of his assistance and support.—
So far therefore from his death affording me any ex-
pectation of advantage, it presented to me the cer-
tain ruin of all my prospects in life.

It has been suggﬁsted against me, that I was
driven from my native place b}r poverty and distress.
It 1s true, that I was mvolved in a suit about the
tythes of my estate, which subjected me to some tem-
porary embarrassment; but it és nof frue that I was
reduced to a state of ruin, or that I had not property
sufficient to establish myself again in business. I
had an estate in lands, and I had a- well stocked
farm, when I left the country. I went back again
after I had first come up to Mr. Blight’s, and sold
my stock—and last spring I sold the estate, and the
money was remitted to me in London.

But I have suffered a long imprisonment; the ex-
pences of myself and my children, (of which I have
four) together with the necessary expences of my
trial, have disabled me from bringing up a number
of witnesses from Devonshire, who could have proved
that I had property, which has long since been con-
verted into money, and which I have, at different
times, advanced to Mr. Blight. With this property
in my pocket, I determined to acquire a knowledge
of the business of ship-breaking, and with this view,
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and not for the mere purpose of supporting myself
by my labour 1 entered into the service of Mr. Blight.
It appears from the whole of the evidence, that ai-
though I submitted to be in the situation of his set-
vant, I had lent him several hundred pounds; and
if I had no more property than the prosecutors give
me credit for having advanced to him, even that was
enough to have phu,ed me in some sort of business,

and to have relieved me from the necessity of work-
ing for my bread. My choosing to become Mr.
«Bltﬂ’ht servant under these circumstances, is no
pmnf of my poverty, or of my being unequal to pay
for the share of his business which I afterwards
purchased. I had more than 1300/ and actually

advanced to Mr. Blight 1250/ Dbefore the execution
of the agreement of ' ‘the 315t of August, by which
one- thud of his business was secured to me. The
death of my brother, who was the only friend I had
in London besides Mr. Blight, whom I consulted on
my affairs, has deprived me of positive evidence of
these facts. Mr. Blight (and he only) ever knew
that it had been advanced to him, and as my claims
on him, on account of such advances, were satisfied
by his assigning me the third part of his business, no
{luect pmut that he ever received such money has
been preserved. If any of you were to lend money,

when the debt is cancelled by something being given
in satisfaction of it, you would no lmlu'er preserve
any voucher for the loan.. The transaction of the
31st of August being a complete liquidation and
settlement of what he owed me, you see that I can-
not be now prepared to produce anj.r memorandum
of the original debt.

But there were many circumstances connected
with the affairs of Mr. Blight, which rendered it
impossible that any person but himself should know
of these sums being advanced to him, and which
would prevent any evidence of such advances re-
maining on his books. He had many private ex-
pences of which, even Mrs. Blight was not informed.
He had natural children whom he supported, he

K3
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was a man of gallantry, and expended considerable
sums on women. Before he got into the ship-break-
ing business, he had been a merchantand failed, and
he was frequently pressed by the creditors of his for-
mer concern, he executed several instruments, and
made various alterations in the state and accounts of
his property, for the purpose of protecting it against
their claims. From the papers of such a person, no
satisfactory evidence can be expected; on his state-
ments as to his claims, or his declarations as to the
validity of any instrument, no reliance can be placed.
Many apparently solemn instruments were undoubte
edly fictitious, as for example, the assignment of the
15th of July, and all other papers connected with
that transaction. Insuch circumstances, who can say
what instruments were genuine, or what was the ac-
tual purpose for which any document was made; but
in the midst of this darkness, one can discern proof,
that the consideration for the purchase of the busi-
ness was paid him, before that business was assigned
tome. On the 15th of July, when he conveys to me
all his property for the purpose of protecting it from
his creditors, he values it at 2065/ 4s. the real value,
as appears from the agreement of the 31st of August,
was 8315/, it would have been valued .0 me m the
transfer of the 15th of July, at the price of 33154
had it not been understood between us, that I had
before that time paid to him, 1250/ which added to
20652 makes up the 33154, As he had received from
me the 1250/. 1 was to have an interest to that amount
in the business, and the sum of 2065/. was men-
tioned in the transfer, to shew the share that remained
to Mr. Blight, ard which I was to revest in him,
when we came: to a final settlement.

On the 30th of August, when that settlement
took place, he takes two-thids for his 2065/ and
leaves me one-third for my 1250/ From neither of
these instruments is there any appearance of any
thing remaining unpaid on my part; on the contrary,
the plain import of all the documents is, that every
thing respecting the transaction was closed. But,
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it is supposed, that the 1250/. was pmd in part, by
a check on Mr. Goom. It is a thing incredible,
that Mr. Blight, who had been a merchant all his
life, should take a post dated check drawn by me
on a person whom he did not know, in payment of
1000/ ; and that too, without ever enquiriug of
Mr. Goom whether I had awny right to draw on him,
or whether it was likely to be pai{l at the day it was
drawn for. But thereis afact, which showsbetter than -
any speculation, that no part of the 1250/ was paid
by the check on Goom; and that fact is, that the
.check was not in existence (or even tlmught of)
until near two months after the transactions of the
1250.. was compleatly settled. I think I have pro-
ved by the assignment of the 15th of July, sup-
ported by the agreement of the 31st of August, that
all that money must have been paid antecedent to
the 15th of July, and the check was not made until
the 7th of September, when it was deposited in my
name at the Binkers’; as appears by their account
and the testimony of Mr. Percival. 1f this check
had been drawn for the purpose of paying any pant
of the purchase money, agreed by me to be paid for
my third of the bmmtsa, would it not have been
drawn at the time I was put in possession of the
business?

There is another circumstance that I trust will
satisty every one that the check was pever made for
the purpose of paying Mr. Blight. The business
was valued at 8315/ of which 1 pm{,hased one third
at 1250/ © That 1250/ could not be intended to
form a part of the capital of the business, but was to
go into the pocket of Mr. Blight, where in fact ‘it
had gone, by advances made by me to him previous
to the 15th of July. If it was to have been added
to the capital of the business, I should have had for
my 1250/ a third share of a capital of the value of
4565(. which it is clear neither of us could ever have
intended. The 1250/ being for Mr. Blight’s sepa-
rate use, and not a part of the capital of the trade,
none of it could have been paid into the Bankers’

K 4
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under my name, and therefore the 1000/ check
which was paid into the Bankers’, could not have
been part of the 1250/ as is pretended on the part
of the prosecution. In fact, Gentiemen, that check
was only one of the many fictitious papers which the
state of Mr. Bliclit’s affairs induced him to make.
It was drawn for no other purpose than to keep up
appearances with the Bankers, and to conceal the real
state of the cash balance; and whatever Mr. Blight or
myself may have said respecting it, was said merely to
give credit to those appearances. A merchant, sur-
rounded byclerks, who record every concern relative
to his business, would be enabled by the evidence of
those clerks, to lay before yousuch a statement of his
affairs, as would shew the amount of the property
that he was at any time possessed of. But can this
be exper:ted from a man that has no such assistance ?
Would it be charitable or just to presume that such
a man is poor (when his poverty is to be urged as
proof of his being guilty of a capital crime) because
he cannot, by a 1en'ui<u debtor and creditor account,
establish the exact amount of his property? If I had
advanced my money to persons now living, either by
way of loan, or for the purchase of any articles sold
tome, 1 might have called those persons to prove
such advance.

But I cannot call Mr. Blight from the grave to
shew what I have advanced to him; or when, and in
what manner he received it. What more then can
I do than I have done, viz. advert to the instruments
of assignment of the busmess, which prove that he
did sell me the third share of it, and that what was so
sold had been paid for. 1 should hope you would think
this a proof of property, and of the application of
the property, in satisfaction of all demands of Mr.
Blight. ‘That is not to be shaken by vague declara-
t'mn, or loose or idle conjecture. If you feel this, you
will perceive I had no debt to cancel, no interest ta
advance, by the killing Mr. Blight. That, on the
contrary, his murder was death to all my hopes, by de-
stroying the business in which I had embarked my
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property, and for which I had abandoned every
other concern.

The next proposition advanced, and proof of my
guilt is, that I had the opportunity of killing him.
Opportunities T have had enough, if ever I could
have been tempted to so wicked an act. Irom the
circumstances in which we lived together, I could
have done it, when no one was near, and when no
vestige of my guilt would have remained. I knew
when he was at home alone, and when and where he
went abroad. Regard for my own security would
have taught me to choose any place rather than his
own house, and any other time than that when
it was known that I was at home, and when there
was another person close at hand to detect my guilt.
I, who could at any time get near enough to him to
have employed any means of killing him that I
chose, should have used a more silent instrument
of death than a pistol; the report of which I must
know would alarm the neighbourhood, and summon
persons to apprehend me. Dut any person, who
fatally bent on Mr. Blight's murder, had not the
same continual access to his person that I had, would
seize the first moment that seemed to present itself
for the accomplishment of his horrid purpose, without
regarding the means for his detection which that
moment afforded. The man who murdered Mr Blight
did not know that he should have been able to get
into the house; much less did he know, that Hester
Kitchener was sitting within five yards of the spot
when he fired the pistol. He expected only to be
able to repeat the experiment of firing into the win-
dow, and with this view came armed with a pistol,
which was the last weapon he would have used, if he
had known he could have got close to the person of
Mr. Blight, (as being for the reason I have already

iven) the most likely to lead to his detection. But

e found the outer door as well as the parlor door
open, owing to my having gone to the necessary,

and was led by the light to the room in which Mr.
Blight sat.
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So far from my having the opportunity of killing
Mr. Blight, according to ‘the evide nce, it is impossible
that I could have done it. Hester Kitchener 5ays
that I was in the privy when the pistol was fired.
From that place you will perceive by the model I
could discharge no pistol that could hit Mr. Blight
whilst sitting mn the parlor. I'rom the distance, and
from the turns necessary to be made in my passage,
and the doors that I must have opened, I'coald not
have got to a situation from whence I could fire at
him for a considerable time, IFrom the situation in
which Iester Kitchener was placed, she must know
whethier it was possible for me to get from the privy,
after she heard me shut the door, to Mr. Blight’s
parlor before the -pistol was fired, aud she has said
that the shutting the privy door, and the firing the
pistol, were at the same instant. The kitchen, where
she sat, was directly between the privy and the spot
from which the pistol was fired, and her situation was
only a few feet from either of these places, she had
therefore the fullest means of knowing distinctly what
she has said upon that subject; and I solemnly pro-
test that her account of it 1s correct, that I had nog
the opportunity, that I was not the murderer.

It must be admitted, that if Hester Kitchener's ac-
count of sceing the flash and hearing the report, in-
glantly on he.nmﬂ* the shutting of the necessary door,
be corvect, i is impossible that I could be guitty,
But it may be said, that people often measure time
incorrectly. True, Iadnut it, 1f the interval between

the two events be long; but if one thing happens at

the same instant with another, there can be no mise
take, 1f this were a mere civil enquiry, only affecting
the property of an individual, her evidence could not
be so explained as to be reconciled with the idea of my
guilt. But you are assembled on a case of life and

death, and where positive proofs in favor of a prisoner

mustuot be refined away by ingenious subtilties. Her
evidence stands, (and you will presently find it con-
firmed by the conduct of the deceased himself,) as
direct proof that I was not the person that fired the
fatal pistol,

Much stress has beep laid on my language and

P
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demeanor soon after the shot by which Mr. Blight

was killed. Is no allowance to be made for the
-agitation of mind consequent on such a scene?
And does not the language and demeanor of every
person, afford mifn:ient f,onclusmus, accordinz to
the medium through which they are viewed. If the
whole of my conduct be viewed thr ough an impartial
medium, it will be seen that I could Ilﬂt be guilty.

Should I have called in the neighbours ? should
T have suffered any one to see him? should I have
run the risk of what he could or would say te
those neighbours? It is not in the nature of things
that one who had proceeded so far in the work of
murder, as to have completely forfeited his own life,
should stop until he had completed it, or that he
should call in witnesses to see what he had done.—
Yet, as soon as the shot is fired, and not only
before Mu. Bllgl]t is dead, but while he retains his
senses and his speech, I sent off Hester Kitchener to
alarm the nﬂighlnmrlmud. Did any man ever hear
of a convietion of murder upon evidence which
shewed that the supposed murderer had given the
first alarm, and that, whilst the man attacked by
him was in a state to give evidence against him ?

But, Gentlemen, IILStt‘l IKitchener is not the only
witness to my nnocence. The deceased has left
behind him testimony which outweichs all the evi-
dence which has been adduced avainst me  The
man that shot him must, whiist in the act of shoot-
ing, have been full in the view of the decéased.—
The door of the room, in which the deceased was
sitting, opens from the left hand, and he sat in a
part of the room opposite to the right hand side aof
the door. To enable a person to fire at the decease
with his right hand, the door must have been opened
wide enough to present to the deceased the whole
body of the person firing. It is well known that I
make use of my right hand on all occasions, and
therefore, if I had fired the pistol, the door must
have been open wide enoush to have exposed mny
person to the view of the decessed. If, as is most
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probable, the murderer, for the purpose of making
sure of his mark, advanced nearer to the deceased
than the door, the observation that he must have
seen the person who shot him is stil stronger.—
Mr. Blight knew my person well, and had seen me
but a few minutes befire he got his wound, and
must have known, if I had fired the pistol, that I was
the person from whom he received that wound.—
Yet he never expresses the least suspicion of me ;
on the contrary, he continued, till the moment of his
death, to shew great regard and fondness for nie—
alppearecl uneasy whenever I left him—and, by his
will, the last solemn act of his life, sealed his con-
viction of my innocence and the confirmation of his
opinion of my integrity, by appointing me an
executor.

The third p!t}pﬂﬁltlﬂrll is, that no other person but
me could have done it. The evidence in support of
this proposition completely fails. Both on the Thurs-
day night and Monday night, it appears that there
were sufficient opportunities for the person who fired
the shots to escape from the premises of the deceased:
the timber in the yard afforded many places for him
to conceal himself. On the Thursday night the
premises were not searched, nor on the Monday
night, until some time after the pistol was fired; not
until after the maid servant had gone and procured
assistance, and until a considerable time had been
employed in attending to the deceased. During
this interval, what was thereto prevent the murderer
from guttmg away with case and safety over the
gate or the pales, trom which no less than three

passages would have conveyed him out of the reach

of suspicion; one directly facing the gate, a second
to the right hand, and a third to the left. Itis, I
think, most pmbahlﬂ, that on both nights he stood
some short time in the yard, because he must have
heard the persons passing by in the lane, particularly
the five persons with the link on Mﬂnda} night, and
must have expected that they would have stopped
him had he got over the pales immediately on the

i i
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report of the pistol.  But, supposing him to have
waited, as he naturally wnuld when he heard persons
in the lane, in the hiding places which the yard af-
forded him for a few moments only, there was no-
thing either night to prevent his getting away. The
persons who were in the lane did not continue there
for any length of time: the young women, of tiie
name of Davis, after stopping (;13 they say) two
minutes on the Thursday night, passed on, and
Michael Wright and his wife, the unly persons near,
went into the house with me and left the gate open
for him. The persons who were going by on the
Mounday night did not stop a moment, but, as one of
them says, went on quickly, by which every avenue
was left clear. This part of the prosecution depends
on the supposition that the murderer must have at-
tempted to get away immediately: if that supposition
is negatived, the whole body of proot is disposed of;
this suppmltmn isnegatived by the probability that the
noise and light in the lane, would whilst they con-
tinued there arrest his flight, and also by the conduct
of some of the witnesses who thought it right, when
it was too late, to search the premises. I cannot
leave this evidence without pointing out to you a
contradiction which shews the inaccuracy of the ob-
servation or recollection of the witnesses, and affords
a proof of the danger of relying on a case made out
by a long string of facts, none of which, taken
separate]y as they occur to the witnesses, make very
strong or lasting impressions. The two Miss Davis’s
say they stnppt:d {wo minutes in the lane, that they
heard no noise except the pistol, nor saw any person
come out of the premises.  Wright says he heard the
pistol near the. watch-box; that he was at the gate
in half @ minute, and ﬁ}und me standing there with
the gate open.

As the proof, that no one but me could have fired
“that shot, depends almost entirely on the testimony
of these persons, this contradiction is suflicient fo
shew you how little you can depend upon such
testimony. If you consider well this evidence you
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will see that it is not suificient so to shut out the rest
of the world, as to leave to me alone the possibility
of doing the act. No man’s enemies can be num-
bered, nor can the causes of enmity, or the lengths
to which 1t will carry those who feel it, be ascertained,

Gentlemen, it will not be expected tfrom me that
I'should touch upon every little point, or explain
every expression that 1 may be charged to have
used. I trust I have satisfied you on the oreat lead-
ing featuresof the case; and, having disposed of them,
all circufnstances of less impm'mtlce will, I am sure,
vanish from your observation. You will not rely on
loose broken parts of conversations. No conversa-
tion can be trusted to, unless you know the whole
that was saild, and the circumstances under which it
was said.

Gentlemen, my fate is now in your hands—as you
decide, I live or die. So completely subdued am I
by the long imprisonment that I have endured; so
galled and mortified by the slanders with which my
ears have every day been assailed during my confine-
ment; that, looking to myself alone, success and
failure are alike t:mpt',r sounds. But I have four
voung children, whose destinies are linked with mine,
who, if I live, will depend on my labour for support ;
if 1 fall will be left to complete absolute beggary. 1
know their ruin could not and ought not to avert my
fate, if the case were completely proved against me.

But if there exists a doubt as to my criminality, let
their misfortunes claim the advantage of that doubt,
and restore to them their natural prutectar. Nothing
turther remains for me to trouble you with, but to
assert, which I here most positively and solemnly do,
my innocence of the dreadful crime imputed to me.
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. EVIDENCE FOR THE PRISONER.

Mr. Jos1as SLEE sworn,
Examined by Mr. SErjEANT BEST,

Q. Where do you live? ;

A. At the bottom of Tooley-street.

Q. What are you by business?

A. An ironmonger.

Q. How long have you known the prisoner at the
bar?

4. About two years and a half.

Q. During the time you have known him, what
has been his character?

A. 1 have never known any thing amiss of him.

Q. Has he borne a good and respectable character?

4. T have never known any thing to the contrary.

Mr.JosEra Hurram sworn.
Exvamined by Mr. SERJEANT Brsr.

Q. What are you?
4. A stationer and ship chandler, and a dealer in
ship stores. ~
Q Where do you live?
A. In Tooley-street.
g Q. How long have yon, known the prisoner at the
ar? |
A. I think about three years.
Q. During the time that you have known him,
~what has been his character?
A. From everything I have heard from Mr. Blight,
every thing that was honorable.
L.C. B. MacponaLp. What has been his gene-
ral character? ,
A. His general character I only learnt from M,
Blight from a very particular circumstance,
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Mr. Ricuarp PoorE sworn,
Examined by Mr. SERTEANT BEesT.

What are you?

I have been a builder.”

Where do you live?

In Bermondsey. :

How long have you known the prisoner?
From the middle of last September twelvemonth,
Have you known him intimately ? -
Q. Not intimately, no otherwise than dealing at

the yard.
- A. From what {;ﬂu have known of him, what has

been his general character? .
Q. 1 always looked upon him to be an industrious -
careful man. A
A. What character has he borne as to humanity?
Q. T never heard any thing against him; I have
heard him talking with the men in making a bargain,
and he seemed very humane to his workmen in mak-
ing a bargain. _
(Several others were called, but did not appmg )

CROXDND

Mr. SeryeanT Best. We will not trouble your
Lordship with any further witnesses, as they do not
seem to be in immediate attendance.

Printed by H. Teape, Tower-hill. I
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SUMMING UP.
Lorp CHieF BaroN MACDONALD.

Gentlemen of the Jury,

It has been very truly stated to -you, in the ex.
tremely perspicuous opening of this case, that it is
one which requires more attention perhaps than ever
presented itself to a Jury; at least, in the course of
my observation I have never met with one that re-
quired more,

Gentlemen, before I proceed to lay this evidence
in a connected state before you, I will make a few ob-
servations upon the nature of the evidence that has
been adduced; it is true, it is what is called circum-
stantial evidence; that is, it is evidence no part of
which is direct proof of the fact being committed by
the individual charged; but that must often be the
case; and it is very frequently the case in the crime
that is imputed to the prisoner at the bar: for few
people do these things when other persons are
present; they take all the care in their power that
no distinct witness shall be in the power of the pro-
secutor to produce.

Now when those circumstances connect themselves
closely with each other, when they form a large and
a strong body, so as to carry conviction to the minds of
a Jury, it may be proof of a more satisfactory sort
than that which is direct. In some lamentable in-
stances, it has been known that a short story has
been got by heart by two or three witnesses; they
have been consistent with themselves, they have
been consistent with each other, swearing positively
to a fact, which fact has afterwards turned out not
to be true. It is almost impossible for a variety of
witnesses, and speaking to a variety of circumstances,
§O to concert a story, as E} impose upon a Jury by a
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fabrication of that sort, so that where it is strong,
cogent, and powerful, where the witnesses do not
mntmdlct each other, or do not contradict them-
selves, it may be evidence more satisfactory than
even direct evidence; and there are more instances
than one in which that has been the case; whether
this is a case of that nature; namely, whether the
witnesses are in the first place consistent with them-
sclves ; secondly, whether they are consistent with
each nther, and thirdly, whether they lay before you
a body of evidence of a kind such as carries positive
conviction to your minds, will be the questions you
will have to decide.

Gentlemen, on the part of the prosecution, for the
sake of perspicuity, your minds have been called to '
attend to three distinct subjects; the first is, a system
of fraud and deception upon the dECE‘B.SCd and the
inference drawn from that, is, that no gﬂﬂd case can
possibly have so rotten a foundation. ‘Lhe prosecutor
‘means to bottom himself in satisfying you, that fraud
and demptmn was carried on for a considerable time
upon the deceased, Mr. Blight. The second is, that

e firing of a pist ol upon Thursday the 19th, was en-
tirely a contrivance, and was an introduction to the
fact that happened afterwards upon the 23d, namely
the firing of a pistol in reality hostile, and the firing it
with fatal effect.

These three points yon will have the goodness to
attend to, as 1 read the Evidence; and I should men-
tion to you, that the motive which is ascribed to this
man 1s this, that he being a man in poverty, had
wurked himself into the good graces of his master,
to the degree of being 1dm:tted a partner to a third

share of the bumne&s, that 1250/ was to be paid for
this; that he had paid 250/ but that there was a con-
tinued series of deception with respect to the payment
of the 1000/. and that when it came to the pinching
day, on which Mr. Blight came to town and insisted,
as one of the witnesses has told you, that he should go

- and get this money, or not come back again without
it, he formed the desperate hope of gt.ttmg the share
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of the business without payment of that 1000/, at all,
by referring to the contract of the 15th of July; that
that was the motive which influenced him to get rid
of Blight, intending to get this one third share of the
business, and never to pay that 1000/ at all.

The first witness called, is Richard Frost; he says
that he keeps the Dog and Duck, public house, near
the premises of the deceased, within sixty yards; that,
between eight and nine o’clock on the 23d, Hester
Kitchener, the maid servant of the deceased, came to
him; he went directly to Blight’s house, and found
the gate fast; that he did not try the wicket, but got
over the gate; that he made next towards the front
door; he does not remember whether that was open
or shut; he saw Blight in an arm chair on the left
hand side of the fire place, in the back parlour, and
Patch was in the room; he did not see any other
person; that Blight was apparently in pain, supporting
himself by his hands upon his chair. In a minute or
two, the prisoner desired him to go for Mr. Jones, a
surgeon; he accordingly went, and afterwards staid
with him, only going out at some intervals, from time
to time, till he died, which was at three in the after-
noon of the next day. .

Mr. Astley Cooper says, that he was called in by
Mr. Jones; I believe he has had experience in the
army in gun-shot wounds, and was therefore called
in; that he came about three hours after Mr. Blight
had been shot; that he found him lying upon the
floor in the back parlour; that Mr. Jones pointed out
the wounds upon his body; that the room was in a
very crouded state,and Mr. Blight was lying in a very
inconvenient posture; that he ordered every bodyout of
the room, excepting Mr. Jones, the surgeon; Mr.
Younger, another surgeon; the prisoner, and a Mr.
Ferguson, a friend of tie deceased; that he then exa-
mined his wounds, and found one on the fore part
of the body about two inches from the navel, on the
right side, and another on the loins ; the character of
a gun-shot wound was visible; that he saw the con-
tents of the bowels pass out of each wound; he there-

L2



164

tore pronounced the wounds to be mortal, and ordered
him to be kept as free from pain as possible by opiates;
that he staid till next morning; that he thought it ne-
cessary to make some enquiry as to the person who
might have done this; and that, in the presence of
the prisoner, he said to Blight,  Is there any person
you suspect!” *“ No,” he answered, “ God knows, I
never did any body an injury which should lead him
to wish to take mylife;* but that the prisoner, anxi-
ously said to him, that he suspected a man of the
name of Webster; that he turned toward Patch, and
said, “ Who is this Webster?” The prisoner answered,
“ He is suspected of having robbed these premises;
a search warrant had been granted, and his premises
searched, and his son has since absconded.” This was
evidently meant with a view to shew that there was
no great degree of improbability -in some of the
family having robbed the premises, and fired this
pistol and absconded. Mr. Cooper says that he said,
“ Surely you should send to Bow Street, and the
premises should be again searched.” The prisoner an-
swered, “ No; for nothing could be found, and if no-
thing 1s found, 1 shall certainly be shot, or they will
certainly shoot me,” ;

Gentlemen, the observation made upon this, is,
that it would have been the most natural thing in the
world for one friend coming in, and being told that
his friend was murdered, when a proposition was made
for making the earliest possible enquiry, instead of
feeling an indifference about it, orinstead of having an
anxiety about himself, fearing that he himself should
be shot in case nothing was found upon the search,
that he should have felt an anxiety to discover the real
author of the mischief.

Mr. Cooper goes on to say, that he suggested to Mr.
Blight the propriety of settling his affairs; that he
said he had the draft of a will which was not signed,
and needed alteration; that the will was brought in
by the prisoner; and Mr. Blight expressed a desire
that the name of the prisoner, and that of Mr, Ro-
bert Ferguson, might be added as executors to the
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person already mentioned in his will ; that some inter-
lineations were made, and then Mr. Blight, with much
effort, signed the will; that he then went to bed, and
that soon after six o'clock the next morning, the
prisoner came to him (Mr. Cooper) and told him, that
Mr. Blight was in great pain, and wished to know if
he could do any thing to save him ; Mr. Cooper an-
swered he feared not, but rose and went into his room,
where he found Mr. Blight in a great deal of pain ; that
he soon afterwards went to town, and returned at
four in the afternoon with Dr. Babington to Mr.
Blight’s, but found he was dead; that he afterwards
opened the body; and he says that the wounds which
Mr. Blight had reccived were undoubtedly the cause
of his death; a fact which must be proved to you.
Mr. Cooper says, that upon his observing that the wiil
should be put in proper custody, the prisoner took it
readily out of his pocket, and it was sealed up and
deposited with a gentleman of the name of Brent.

Upon his cross fexamination, he says that this ha
pened two hours after Mr. Blight's death; that the
prisoner was present in Mr. Blight’s room the whole
of the evening, whenever he was there himself.

Gentlemen, having ascertained what was the cause
of Mr. Blight's death, we come now to the first trans-
action, which was the firing of the pistol on the 19th
of September; with respect to that, several witnesses
have becn called to prove that they were in such a po-
sition, that had any persons come out of these pre-
mises, they must necessarily have seen them, the
ways in - which any person could come out are
described to you, and they undertake positively to
say that no person did come “out of the premises.
The inference from tlie comparison of their evidence
therefore is that it must have been done by some
person who was on the premises.

"The particular witnesses tell you these facts.

Ann Louisa Davis says, that on the 19th of Sep.
tember, she was coming by these premises between
eight and nine o’cdlock in the evesing; that it was |
dark; that after she had gone beyond the gate to-
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wards the corner of the alley, she could just see the
gate; that there were three other women in company
with her; that she saw the flash of a pistol, and heard
a very violent report ; it appeared to her to be on the
right hand of Mr. Blight’s wharf; she could not .
judge on what part of the wharf, that upon this, she,
and those with her, stood still two minutes, but
they neither saw or heard any one on the wharf;
that if any body had got over the pales after the pis-
tol had been- fired, she thinks she must have seen
them, but that no one in point of fact did get over;
that she heard no noise in Mr, Blight’s house ; that
she went on towards Rotherithe ; that she saw some
men at the Dog and Duck, and saw nobody but those,
and that no one came from the house, or the wharf.

Her sister Martha Louisa Davis says, she remembers
the pistol firing, she saw no one stirring on the pre-
mises, or coming from them ; that from the situation
in which she was, she must have seen them, if any one
had been passing from the premises.

Michael Wright says, that he lives in Russell-street,
Rotherithe ; that he was returning from Deptford on
this night; that about ten or twelve minutes after
eight o’clock, he went by Mr. Blight’s house; that
sixty or seventy yards before he came to the gate,
he saw a man who was lying drunk ; that he had some
conversation with some other person, who said, that
he had tried to get him home, but could not ; that at
this time he heard the report of a pistol ; that he did
not see any one but Patch at the gate; that Patch
asked him if he had met any body running down the
alley, and that he must have met any person who at-
tempted to escape that way, but that he saw no one;
that Patch asked him to step in with him, for he had
been fired at, saying, ¢ I wish you would step in ’till the
servant returns;’” that accoidingly he (the witness)
went in; that Patch said, “ I will fetch a candle
and shew you where the ball went through;”
that he took the candle, and the witness saw
a hole through the shutter and the lower part of the
window frame ; that he (the witness) took the candle
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to see if the ball could not be found, and by that time
the maid servant came in with some oysters.—Patch
said to her, ¢ I have been fired at, or shot at, since you
have been out ;7 that Hester Kitchener pmked up a
ball three or four feet from the window ; that it ap-
peared to be a half circle, as if it had been cut or Hat-
tened against something, and that the prisoner and he
then went into another parlor.

Then, Gentlemen, there follows another circum-
stance, which has been much remarked upon, -as shew-
ing that there was no real apprehension in the pri-
soner’s mind at this time, but that on the other hand,
it is a circumstance shewing, that this was a pretence
that he was conscious that there was not any real firing
at him by a stranger.—Mr. Wright says, that he asked
Patch if he should fetch any body to sleep in the
house, for it was very alarming, but that he said, he
need not give himself that trouble ; the witness said,
<5 1n1ght be from a police boat chasing a Smugﬁ%‘lmg
boat ;” the prisoner answered, he did not think so, if
it were, he should be content in his mind there would
be no more of it; the witness said, “If 1 were you, I
should advertise it by hand bills the next merning,
and likewise in the public papers,” towhich the prisoner
replied, ¢ you may depend upon it I will, and 1 will bid
fifty pounds reward,” which never was done. Wright
says, he then fetched Fr ost, and he asked the prisoner
if he had any fire arms in the house; he said,. he
had a pair of pistols which cost him five guineas;
Wright said, they must be very good ones at that
pn-::e ; the prisoner said, he had no ammunition;
Frost said, he would hupply him with some, and they
went all together to Frost’s to get some ammunition
and a candle,

Upon his cross examination, he says, that the watch
box at which he stood, is about sixty or seventy yards
from the gate ; that he passed on immediately towards
the gate, when he heard the pistol, which took him
about half a minute; that the road to Deptfmd i5 on
the left, that to RDthﬂhlthe is on the right, and there
is ancrther facing the gate leading to a public road;
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there are no houses in this road till you get toa house
on the public way; that he was more than half an
hour employed in this examination ; that the prisoner
shewed him a house at the end of that road, but that
is at a considerable distance ; that he cannot say, whe-
ther a person standing at the bend in the lane, could
see any person coming out of Blight’s gate.

Richard Frost is again called, he says, that he was
fetched by Wright on Thursday night; that he saw
the prisoner there ; he saw him standing in the front
parlor, and asked what was the matter; he said, he
was sitting close to the table, and had been shot at ;—
Frost asked him where he thought it could come from;
he said, he did not know ; that he asked him if he
suspected any body ; he said no; that he asked if he
had any fire arms; he said he had, but they were of
no use for he had no ammunition; that he (¥Frost)
told him he would give him powder, and endeavour to
find him a ball; at this time the maid servant came
in, and said, “ Mr. Patch, there 1s no candle,” he an-
swered, “ Frost will lend you some;” they all came
out and went to his house ; that he then asked the
Erisungr, if he would accept of powder and ball, but

e said, “ never mind, I will go home and go to bed,
for the willains will be there no more to-night;”
that he went out, and the maid went with him.

Mr. Kinnard then proves hisown plan,describing the.
premises ; he says, that that part of the fencing of the
housewhich is palisadoed,isextremely slight, and would
bear but a slender weight; that there was a close paling
towards the wharf ; that the outside paling is nine fect
six inches, and that the paling on the inside is some of
it about six feet high, and other parts about five feet
six inches ; that within the paling there is a quantity
of old ship timber, that if a person was standing at
the corner, h€' would command a view of the gate;’
that you might pass to the cross road and not be seen
at ten yards off; that the depth from the wharf to the
mud at low water 15 about five feet, but it turns outto
be considerably more; Frost says ten feet, and that the
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mud is very loose, and a person would sink up to the
middle.

Hester Kitchener says, she had lived with Mr. Blight
about two months ; that the famﬂ}r consisted of her mas-
ter and mistress, one child, the prisoner, and herself ;
that her mistress went to Margate, and her master
also; that her master returned and went from home
again upon the 19th of September ; that the family
used to sit in the front parlour, and had done so for
seven weeks before this time; that when her master
was gone, she and the prisoner only were at home;
that the prisoner sat in the front room ; that she was
ordered to go out for oysters at near errht at rlght 3
(this still continues the story of the prev Tous evening)
she was gone about nine or ten minutes;  that it was
much about twice the length of the room we are
sitting in; she got the oysters and returned, and found
the prisoner talking with a man and a woman close
to the window ; these turn out to be Mr. Wright and
his wife ; the prisoner said, ““1s that you Hester? I
have been shot at;”” she said, “ Lord have mercy upon
me, where!” he said, thrcm h the window,” pointing
to it ; that she had fastened that window by his direc-
tion earlier than usual’; the prisoner said, he was very
poorly and should go to bed early ; that he'sent for
Frost the publican ; that Wright went for him ; that
they then looked for the shot, and at last found it un-
derneath the window it had come in through; that
the prisoner said, he did not know that he or M.
Bli l? had any enemy in the world that they knew
of : that they all went to Irost to get some candles,
and left no one in the house ; that there was no search
whatever made that night that she knows of.—The
prisoner usually slept over the counting-house, but
that night he slept in Mr. Blight’s bed for her pro-
tection ; that Mr. Blight returned on ‘the Mﬂnc ay,
about seven o’clock i in the morning, went out in the
morning, and after that the prmuner went out on
horse-back ; that the prisoner had boots on; he nsu-
ally wore boots ; that she saw the prisoner : 11{}11* with
her master in the back room, where they had not sat

r
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for seven weeks before; that the prisoner then had
shoes on she believes, and white stockings; that
she did not observe whether they were ribbed or
plain stockings ; that the premises were made fast as
usual, the gates were made fast when the people left
their work; that the front door shuts by a spring lock,
and opens by a key from without; that the pri-
soner and the deceased had tea, and grog afterwards;
that the kitchen door is nearly opposite the door of
the back parlor ; where she was sitting she could not
see the parlor door ; that half an hour after she had
carried in some water, the prisoner came into the kit-
chen and asked her for a candle, saying, that he had a
violent pain in his bowels, and it was necessary for him
to retire immediately ; he took the key of the count-
ing house off the dresser, and went out of the door,
and she heard him go and open the counting house
door, and heard him slam that door after him, which
sticks if you throw it pretty hard without locking ;
she then heard him go across the counting house v

quick, and heard him slam to the privy door, which
slammed in the same manner as the other did, and
her words are, that the instant she heard the privy
door slam in this manner, she heard the report of the
pistol ; that her master immediately came into the
kitchen, came up to the dresser, and said, pulting his
hand to his side, Hester, I am a dead man ; that she re-
plied, “ Lord have mercy, I hope not!” She screamed,
and ran to shut the front door, and found it wide
open, and as she was returning, when she had got half
way to the parlor door, she heard a violent knock at
the door ; that she returned, and found the prisoner
at the door; that his breeches were all unbuttoned
when he came in, they were light coloured breeches;
she supposes he was holding them in his hand, but of
that she cannot speak positively ; he said, ¢ Lord have
mercy upon me, what is the matter ”’ upon which she
said, “ my master is shot:"—that the prisoner
and she led him into the parlor; that they usually
burnt two candles, but she cannot say whether they
had one or two at that time; the prisoner said, he
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would go and got some assistance ; she said, * you can-
not go, [ am afraid to be left alone, if I go I will, jump
out of the kitchen window ;”” she did so, and went
to Mr. Frost, who came back with her, and jumped
over the gate ; that she did not see any person in going
or returning. :

That they were examined privately before the Co-
roner’s Jury ; that the prisoner said, he did not know
what to make of the people; that there were strange
ideas the people had got, and that she was to speak the
truth, and nothing but the truth; this was the night
before the Coroner’s Jury were to sit on the Wednes-
day; that the prisoner was then at large; that she
recollects being in the kitchen with her mother, the
prisoner, and Stonard ; but that she does not recollect
any talk of what had passed before the Coroner’s In-
quest ; that the prisoner and her master had been out
half an hour before the prisoner came into the kitchen;
that they were out as long as might be occasioned by
their making water.

Now, Gentlemen, a great deal depends upon the
sense that shall be put upon the words that this wo-
man used with respect to the time, at which these
things oceurred. It has been truly observed, that
there is nothing we are so little in the habit of, as
measuring with any degree of correctness, small
portions of time. I am persuaded, that if any one
were to examine with a watch, which marks the se-
conds, how much longer a space of time a few se-
conds or a few minutes really are than people in ge-
neral conceive them to be, they would be surprized;
but, in general, when we speak of a minute, two
minutes, or an instant, we can hardly be understood to
mean more than thatit was a very short space of time;
how short, it is impossible for us to say; therefore we
must conceive this woman fo mean, that a very short
space of time elapsed, between the noise of the privy
door and the report of the pistol. It will be for you
to judge, whether, attending to the distance which
you see marked out, observing that there are several
turnings to go through, and two or three anart-
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ments, that the door of the counting house was to
be unlocked, and he was to return again from the
privy to the place where the wound was given, in
that space of time which the witness represents as
elapsing between the shutting the privy door and the
firing the pistol, that time was or not suflicient for
the purpose. I do not know whether the distance
has been measured. _

MRr. Gurxey. I understand it is sixty-four feet.

Lorp Caier BaAron Macponarp, that may be run
in a very short space of time indeed, considerably with-
in a minute. Another remarkable circumstance in
the evidence, given by this woman, is, that notwith-
standing there had been, as the prisoner would have
vou to understand, and as Mr. Blight undoubtedly be-
lieved, a firing upon the Thursday preceding, yet this
door was left open ; certainly, if that person who went
out, had a mind to make the coast as clear as it could
be, for the purpose of a quick return, he had prepared
it for that purpose. If speed and expedition were
desirable to the prisoner, and he was the person who
actually fired that shot; he certainly contrived to
leave the door open, so as to meet with no embarrass-
ment from that quarter. |

The next witness is Christopher Morgan ; he says
that he lived in Globe Lane, Deptford ; that he was
passing by Mr. Blight’s premises twenty minutes be-
tore nine upon the 23d of September ; when he came
to the gate he received information of what had hap-
pened ; that Mr. James Berry was with him ; that he
immediately went in with Mr. Berry and knocked at
the door; the servant asked “ Who is there !’ he said,
““ A friend wishes to render assistance!” that he saw
the prisoner advancing from the parlor door where Mr.
Blight was, and that he began to relate the circum-
stances to him (Mr. Morgan) of Mr. Blight’s being shot,
but that he was a little startled at his beginning to tell
a long story, and interrupted him, by saying, that
no time should be lost.in searching the premises;
that he (Mr. Morgan) asked for a light ; the prisoner
ordered the servant to give him one; on that he fol-
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lowed him to the door with a candle in his hand, and
pointing to an old wvessel, said, “ You had better
search that first -’ that when they got to the edge of
the wharf, he and Mr. Berry judged that the wvessel
was about sixteen feet off, and that there could be no
access to it; that it was low water; that he examified
whether any body had broken the mud, and examin-
ed the whole length of the whart, but it was as smooth
as ice, not the least disturbance upon it. You find,
therefore, Gentlemen, this circumstance, that the pri-
soner, who must have known perfectly well what was
the actual situation and condition ot this ship that
was breaking up, and what was her distance, directed
their attention first to that vessel which they found
to be in such a situation, that it was absolutely im-
possible that the shot could have come from her.
'They then proceeded to search over the premises, he
thinks it had been raining, and that the wharft and
yard were dirty; they searched the outbuildings,
the yard, and the cellar under the house ; that Mr.
Blight was then laid on a bed in the parlour, and that
the prisoner was by him; that he (the witness) ad-
dressed himself to Mr. Blight, and said, ¢ In the aw-
ful situation you are, you should collect your thoughts,
that some measures may be used to apprehend the
person who has done this:* that he asked him whe-
ther he had offended any of his work people, as he
had a considerable number of the lower order at
work for him; or, whether he thought that anv
person among his connections owed him any il
will : that he answered, “ No:” That he repeated it
to the prisoner, as he was lying on his face reaching
over the bed, holding a bottle to Mr. Blight’s nose,
which he did the greater part of the time that he
(the witness) was talking to him; that he begged the
prisoner would commission him to go to Bow Street.
. Gentlemen, this is extremely well worthy your at-
tention; he said he did not see the necessity of it;
the witness said, “ An enquiry so early as that would
be of the greatest consequence:” and that he repeat-
ed this three or four times over, stating, that he (the
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prisoner) was in the same danger, having been .shr:tt at
the Thursday before; that the prisoner took him into
the front parlor, and shewed him the manner in
which he had been shot at; that he told him he was
sitting at the table with his head leaning on his hand,
and, that, according to the direction the ball had
taken, it must have come within six inches of his
face ; that that was the seat where Mr. Blic%ht usually
sat, and he had no doubt it was intended for him ;
he then returned to where Mr. Blight was ; that the
prisoner said he had a pain in his bowels, and found
it necessary to go out; that the prisoner, when he
went out, said to Mr. Blight, “ I must go to the privy
—I do not like toleave you :” that finding the parlor
door and the front door had been left open, he, (the
witness) said it was very wrong toleave Mr. Blight un-
protected, without fire-arms, or any body with him; to
which the prisoner answered, * That he did not think
any harm of it—he did not see the danger:” That he
asked him again, if he would commission him (the
witness) to go to Bow Street; that he was certain
there must he a cause, for human nature was not so
depraved as that one man should kill another without
a cause; that he then turned to the witness and
said, “ He had as much right to suspect him as any
man ; that he had not the least conception who it
was :”” That he advised him again to apply for some
assistance to discover the person, and then he went
away, finding that his services were not accepted ;
that the prisoner said, “ That the deceased and he
had been upon the alert all day, for all the evening
they expected a visitor of this kind, and had been on
the wharf a few minutes before.” Now, Gentlemen,
so far from having been on the alert, you hear from
the maid servant, that Blicht came home tired, hav-
ing tl':l\’{:'].led all ﬂight_;, that he had rode to town in
the morning ; that during the afternoon he was sit.
ting with Mr. Graham, and part of the time with
the prisoner, and that there had been no examination
:-: tlleh?;_ha;n; or any part of the premises in the even-

& - Morgan tells you, that in consequence of
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his saying this, that they had been upon the alert, the
witness said it was very wrong to leave Mr. Blight,
and it was more wrong a great deal to have left the
door open, and leave Mr. Blight unprotected ; this he
said, with full a persuasion, from the account that
had been given to him by the prisoner, that the shot
on the Thursday evering was a genuine shot, and
that that was the occasion of his remark; that it
was extremely wrong to have left the deceased with
the door open, he having stated that the deccased
and himself had been upon the alert all day.

James Berry, a Gentleman who accompanied Mr.
Morgan, says, that when they got up to the door
Mr. Morgan knocked, that the servant girl came
to the door, and askmg who was there! they an-
swered, “ two friends, do you want any assistance
that the girl answered, that they wanted no assist-
ance. That Mr. Morgan and himself insisted upon
going in; at this moment the prisoner came to the
door, and immediately let them in; that he began,
by saying to Mr. Morgan, “ what a shocking thing
this is that has taken place!” that Mr. Morgan said,
“ this 1s not a time to talk about that now, shall I
search the premises?” he said, “ I shall be much
ebliged to you, if you will take that trouble,” that
he (the witness) went into Mr. Blight’s room, and saw
saw him sitting in an arm chair, and came out immedi-
ately; that the prisoneror the servant, by this time, had
got a candle and lanthern, which they gave to Morgan;
thatthe prisoner said, ¢ ithe best way to proceed, will be
to go and search the vessel; on the Thursday, when
the pistel was fired, we thought we heard a rumbling
i that vessel;” that the prisoner then went with a
candle, to a remote part of the yard by himself, to-
wards where the stone mason’s yard was ; the witnfﬁ
took the more notice of it, because he thought it a very
. extraordinary circumstance ; he thought it rash in him
s0 to do, when there was firing pistols and killing
people going forward; that he was gone abount a mi-
nute and a half, and that he then returned and went
into the house without taking any notice of hini-or
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Mr. Morgan; that they went to search the vessel; -
they found it lay fourteen or sixteen feet from the
wharf, with her heeling off towards the river; that
they could not possibly get to the vessel for the mud ;
that there were no signs of any one having gone on the
mud ; that from the edge of the water to the top of
the wharf was fourteen or fifteen feet perpendir;uhr 3
that no person from thence could shoot into the win-
dow, where it was marked with the shot; and that
the vessel lay in such a position, so much further to-
wards Rotherhithe Road, that it was impossible a shot
from her could have struck where this mark of a shot
was ; that he went into the house, and found Mr.
Blight lying on a bed.

© On his cross examination he says, that it was
twenty minutes after the pistol had been fired before
they began to search the yard, and that he thinks the
gate was then on the latch.

John Pring, thea produced the shutter lying before
you, which he had brought from the house.

The next witness is Charles Stonard, a labourer of
Mr. Blight’s; he says, that upon the 19111 he left his
wc-rk at six o'clock, that the prisoner shut the gates

p, that the next morning he heard that a shot had
been fired in the night before at the window, that he
looked at the place; he then looks at this shutter
and the sash, ‘and says, they were those which the
ball had passed through; that it was the lower sash,
that that sash was placed only two feet nine inches
from the ground; that at eight o’clock that evening
it was Jow water, that at low water a man would
have to drop about twelve feet, that a person could
not get that way without being up to his middle in
mud, that a vessel was breaking up there ;—whether
the decks of the vessel were oft or not, he cannot say,
but the beams were there;—being asked how the
vessel lay in relation to the window, he says, she lay
towards the Stone-mason’s yard; you will observe,
Gentlemen, if that is so, it is inpossible that the shot
should have come from the deck of that vessel if she
had a deck ; he says, that any one in that vessel could
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not by possibility ‘shoot through that window ; that
the distance across the wharf is about twelve yards,
and that being ten or a dozen feet below the wharf,
a person could not hit so close to the ground as two
feet nine inches, but that it would be necessary for
the ball to go to a much greater height ; that there
18 a large crane there; that the hole in that window-
shutter, slants in a direction, showing that the muzzle
of the pistol must have been pointed downwards;
that this crane has no house belonging to it, that there
1s no place of concealment at this cranc; that any per-
son, in order to have escaped, must have got over the
gates which were all shut; (the Miss Davis’s telling
you that if any person had got over the gate they
must have seen it); that on Tuesday night he sat up
along with his master, and on Wednesday night also;
that on Thursday night he slept with Patch in his
usual room. That he carried no apparel with him
but that which he brought away again, that he left
no white stockings; that he had never been in the
room before, but has been since that; he never car-
ried any stockings and left them there ; that the pales
towards the Stone-mason’s yard are extremely slight,
that a person could not go over them without break-
them ; that none of them appeared to be broken after
his master was shot. ‘

~ 'That on Tuesday, before the Coroner’s jury sat, Hes-
ter Kitchener and her mother, were together in the
kitchen, and that the prisoner and he were drinking
grog there; that the prisoner said to Hester Kitchener,
“ Now, Hester, you are going before the Jury, ycu
must speak the truth, and nothing but the truth ;”
that she said she. should speak the truth.——I agree
in the observation that was made to you, that if the
conversation had stopped here, it would have fur-
nished nothing of great importance; I should not at
all wonder at any man fgelin{‘ an interest in the
matter, saying that ; but why he should suppose himself
to be the person suspected, we have not the least
reason to know; the observation is that you have it
first from himself that hfi was suspected, for there
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nesses, the least suspicion expressed of him, certainly
none bjf Mr. Blight himself ; but then there are ma-
terial expressions that fmllnw, they are certainly in
the nature of leading questions, in the nature of sug-
oestions which prompt the answers themselves, for
I goes on to say, they will cross question you, and ask
you a good many questions, and if you begin upon
one story, you must keep to that story and no other;
if you do not, you will get me into prison; and now
they will ask you whether you gave me a candle,
you know I asked you for a candle and you gave
me a candle; I took the candle out of your hand
and went into the privy, and you heard me shut the
privy door. They will ask you all these questions,
and you must tell them so. That this was between
ten and cleven o’clock, upon the 24th, the very day
after Mr. Blight died. It certainly does appear sin-
gular, that he should have come into the kitchen and
converse with this girl in this way, calling to her me-
mory, and suggesting to her matters that might be
material with respect to his safety; at that time no
one creature having expressed the slightest suspicion
of him ; that the next day after the examination, be-
tore the Coromer’s jury, he came into the kitchen,
and said—“1 was as near being hung as ever was
any thing in this world,” that there were no others
besides the Prisoner nnd Hester and himself, in the
kitchen, at that time that the prisoner added, * but
if I had I should have been as happy as 1 am now.”—
What those words import you will consider ; I can put
no precise construction upon them. ‘They may mean
that he was so distressed at the loss of his master, that
he would almost as scon have lost his own life, or
that he was extremely wretched in his own mind,
and could not have been more so if hehimselt had been
the nbject of this crime ; which of those constructions
you think ought to be put upon the words, you will
judge. That the prisoner added, some people seem
to thi ink it was I that shot Mr. B]lght ; the jury asked
me whether I had a mul:-le of pistols, I told them I
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had a couple of very short ones somewhere above-
stairs in the box, you have seen mée have the pistols,
have not you?—Those pistols, you observe, Gentle-
men, are pistols which could not posssibly have been
used upon this occasion, because they were pistols
which had no ram-rods, they were screw barreled,
and the pistol used. upon this occasion most proba-" .
bly had a ram-rod ; that he (the witness) replied, it
was not this that shot my master, it was a larger one,”
upon which he said; “ damn it, some people seem to
think it was I that shot Mr. Blight, but one person
shall take one of these pistols in one hand, and I will
take the other, and he shall have the first fire at me,”
meaning that those pistols would be very fit for such
a purpose as this, and that if any one dared to charge
him, he would make uvse of them in that way; I sup-
pose that was what he meant. .

George Smith tells you that he is apprentice to a
shipwright, that the evening on which Mr. Blight
was shot, he was passing the premises, and that wﬁen
he got to the fence very near the gate, he heard the
report of a pistol or gun. 'That it appeared to be
fired in Mr. Bight’s yard, that there were three other
boys and five labourers with him at the time. That
they were only ten or eleven yards from the gate,
and one of the labourers who happened to be going
before him had a link, which gave a good light ; that
no one that he saw came from Mr, Blight’s, but that
if any one had crept over, or jumped over, he must
have seen them; that he might be a minute more or
less within sight of the premises, that they heard no
noise occasioned by any person walking, or attempt-
ing to get over, that they did not stop at all but kept
going on.

You observe, Gentlemen, that the gates and the fence
are such, that a person might with great ease get
over on the inside, for there were pieces of wood
lying on the inside; that they might easily have got
up; but this witness, and several others in different

parts say, they must have seen any person who at-
tempted to do so. '
. M 2
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John Brown says, that he was with the last wit-
ness, that when they got almost by Mr. Blight’s gate,
they heard the report of a pistol or gun; that five
men were just before him; that on the path where
he was, he must have seen any one coming out of
Mr. Blight's premises in any direction, that is, either
going towards Rotherhithe, Deptford, or acrossto the
back-road, which leads to the public highway. That
Smith said, “ Oh! they are shooting at the ship-
breakers again,”” which shews their aitentron was
drawn to this. These witnesses you obscrve, there-
fore, Genlemen, undertake to say, that in the posi-
tion in which they were, they must have seen if any
body had at that time attempted to make their escape
from the premises of Mr. Blight.

The next witness is Sarah Blight, the widow of the
deceased, and you observe that the defence which has
been read to you, as well as the account that was
given in onc of the examinations before the Magis-
trate, presents this state of matters as between the de-
ceased Mr. Blight and the Prisoner, namely, that he
was iny no degree in debt to Mr. Blight ; but that on
the contrary, he had, at different times, lent Mr.
Blight, of his own money, 1,200/, and upwards; you
have heard the condition in which he originally came
to Mr. Blight ; he states, however, that ig{'e had lent
him considerable sums of money, that all that ac-
count, however, was settled upon the 15th of July,
1805, by . a sale out and out by Mr. Blight, and
possession given in consequence of that sale, and the
documents handed over in consequence of that sale,
by which all accounts were made clear between
them; and that this 10004 draft, which you have
heard so much of, had nething to do with any ac-
count between Mr, Blight and the Prisoner, but was
purcly money that was to go into Blight’s own
pocket.

In order to contradict that account, Mrs. Blight is
called, and she conpletely refutes that account, if you
believe her testimony. What she says is thisy that
she first becanie acquainted with the prisoner about
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two years and a half since, that a sister of his lived
wwith her as a common servant, her only servant; that
he began his acquaintance with her by visiting - that
sister. That hesoon after entered: inte. Mr. Blight’s
service; that he said ke had come out of the country on
account of some difliculties respecting some tithes; what
difficulties respecting tithes should banish a man from
his estate in the country, and afterwards make him
sell it, it is a little difficult to conceive, but we have
no confirmation of any part of this story, there is no
proof whatever of any dispute respecting tithes.
‘That he came from Devonshire, and that he was after
some little time engaged in Mr. Blight’s service at 40/
a year,having at first worked for a short time for his
victuals and drink. That he was at that time employed
in superintending. That he worked for one year at
the rate of forty pounds a year and his board, and that
his salary was then raised to a hundred a year. He
certainly had acquired the good opinion of Mr. Blight
to a very great degree; she says that four months
before the death of Mr. Blight, he gave her some
papers to deliver to the prisoner upon certain condi-
tions; that she was to give those papers to the prisoner
in case of being questioned respecting the property ;
that she kept them in her own custody till Blight’s
death; that she was at Margate when the accident
happened; that she heard of theaccident that had hap-
pened to her husband, and immediately came to Lon-
don. That she found those papers on her return in
the tin box where Mr. Blight had put them four
months before; that they were directed to her (Mrs.
Blight) written upon the envelope; that she delivered
them to the prisoner the evening he was taken
into custody, which was after he had been examined
before the Coroner’s Jury; that he said he had been
questioned with respect to the property at the Acorn,
which was where the Jury sat; that he wanted the
papers; that he never had had them till that evening,
which was the 27th of September; his account being
that he had them in his custody from the time of their
execution. That Mr. Blight came from town to Mar-
M3
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gate on the Thursday; that he receiveda letter on the
Saturday, which induced him to come to town; she
produced that letter, and the letter is this.

(‘His Lordship read the Letter.)
Vide Page 97.

Upon this letter it is observed to you, Gentlemen,
that although the time was running very hard when the
second note for this 1,000/. should have been paid,
which according to the withess’s account was a note
 Mr. Blight was to reap the whole benefit of, yet not

a word is said upon the subject in his letter; the se-
_cond note [ think should have been paid on the Fri-
day; she tells you that Mr. Blight intended to have re-
turned on the Monday. That she had heard the 1000.
‘bill drawn by the prisoner talked of several times by
“the prisoner and her husband. That he represented it
as the purchase money of an estate sold in Devonshire;
that Mr. Blight was to have the produce of that bill,
and that the prisoner was to come into a share of Mr.
Blight’s business, for which he was to pay 1250/; that
250/. was paid in hand by the prisoner. That she has
many times heard her husband and the prisoner talk
_on the subject of this money; that her husband asked
the prisoner why when it became due it was not paid?
that this was four months before his death, and that
the prisoner said his friend Goom was not ready to
pay it; that he couid get 500/ of the money from
Goom, but he would not take that, as he could net
have the whole; that matters were in that state when
Mr. Blight came to Margate; and that on the receipt
. of the prisoner’s letter, he came away on the Sunday
evening; that when she herself came to town, she
spoke to the prisoner on the subject of the 1000/ and
asked him whether Mr. Goom’s bill was paid? this
~was on the Friday morning; it was before he was
~taken into custody; and that he told her, that Mr.
Goom had been there to breakfast on the Tuesday
morning by appointment, and that Mr. Goom had
been ta the Banker’s, and the money was paid; that
she knew the contents of the papers, which she was to
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deliver to the prisoner; and that those papers were
made to secure her husband’s property, because the
Trustees persecuted him very much. That all which
she has now repeated, was frequently said between
Patch and Mr. Blight; consequently it must have
been all in the prisoner’s presence. That she never
heard till after her husband’s death that the prisoner
had paid 1250/L; that she knows of no other sum
being advanced by the prisoner to her husband, except
the 250/ in part of the 1250/, and 50/ which he had
advanced to Mr. Blight. That if he had advanced
20651 or 1250/ from the knowledge she had of her
husband’s business, she must necessarily have known
it.

Gentlemen, the receipt and the bill of parcels I will
read to you.

(His Lordshife read the Receipt and Bill of Parcels. )
Vide Page 101. :

These were accompanied with a letter to him in
these terms.

( His Lordship read the Letter.)
Vide Page 102. |

Upon her cross examination, she says that her hus-
band had failed as a West India merchant in 1803 ;
that a deed of trust was executed in August, 1803, and
that no dividend had been paid upon it, but that he
was carrying on business as a ship breaker to a consi-
derable extent before the prisoner came to him. °

Now, Gentlemen, you find here a complete contra-
diction to that which had been stated betore the Ma-
gistrate, and that which has been stated in the defence
to day. With respect to the transaction itself, you
find that Mr. Blight, being in difficulties, masked this
property to.give it the appearance of belonging to the
prisoner, and that for that purpose he made a deed,
purporting to be a transfer ot the whole of his property
for this 20654 ; but Mrs. Blight tells you that that
never was acted upon ; that it remained in the box in
her possession, and that i'E,:I never was so much as de-

. 4- _
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livered; that the true intent and meaning of it was,
that if the creditors should at any time press him
more successfully than they had done before, then
this was to be produced to malke the property appear
to be not Mr. Blight’s, but the prisoner’s; these papers
however he converts into his defence before the Ma-
gistrates; stating that he had actually bought this pro-
perty; that he had taken the business, and had actually
carried it on before this time, and he also states that
he had been before in possession of these very papers.
Mrs. Blight, on the other hand, tells you, he never
had those papers till the 27th of September, when
she herself delivered them to him.

Stephen Goom says he is a glue-maker, and he
gives his direction, which corresponds exactly with
the address upon the bill of 1000L; he says that he
had employed the prisoner’s brother, and that several
years before, he had known the prisoner himself, but
had not seen him since; and that he never had any
pecuniary connection with him whatever; that he
never received any money from him, or any person
on his account, or gave him authority to draw for
any; that he never knew any thing of it till the pri-
soner was taken up; that he never gave any security
to the prisoner; that he never made an agreement to
call at Blight’s to pay any money, nor ever was at
Blight’s, and that he never called at Willis and Per-
cival’s the Bankess.

Mr. Thomas Graham is then calledl: he says he knew
Mr. Blight, and was with him in his house uvpon the
23d. 'That on the Iriday before he had called for
some money that was due for a ship he had sold to
Mr. Blight; that he was told Mr. Blight was at Mar-
gate. ‘The prisoner then told him of a shot that had
come through the window, and took him in and
shewed him the window; that he asked him if he knew
any cause for it; that he said no, but he believed it
was intended for him or Mr. Blight; that he shewed
him the place where he sat; and said the blinds had
been knocked down, and part came against his head;
that he said the ball had stopped half way between
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him and the window;- that he (Mr. Graham) ex-
pressed surprise at the splinters being then lying about
the house; the prisoner said he wished Nr. Blight to
see them; heasked him if he had any suspicion of any
one; he said no; Mr. Blight had bad some words
with a person about a dock, and he thought the
name of that person was Clark; he said he should
write to Blight to come up to town immediately, for
fie was rather uneasy about it.

That on the Monday following he called again about
one o'clock; Mr. Blight had just then come from town;
that while he was there, the prisoner came inand bor-
rowed Mr. Blight’s spurs; he then had boots on; Mr.
Blight said, * Patch, don’t you return withcut the
money ;' to which he replied, “ you may depend
upon 1t I shall not return till it is settled;” and then
the prisoner went away.—This you recollect he has
denied himself to have said upon his examination.

Mr. Percival says, that on the 7th of September, the
prisoner had opened an account with them; that he
paid in a draft of 1000/ drawn by himself upon Mr.
Goom, payable the 16th of September, and that be-
fore it was due he called again, saying that Mr. Goom
was not prepared to pay the money, and that he would
take that draft, and send another for a future day.
That he accordingly sent another, dated for the 20th;
that before that became payable, they reccived a letter
trom the prisoner, dated the 19th of September, but
he did not take up the bill and give them another
note; that on the 23d of September, Mr. Blight called
at his shop about ten o'clock, and made some en-
quiries. He then shewsan entry in the banking book
in the prisoner’s hand-writing, to this effect, « Messrs.
Willis and company will place the above bill to the cre-
dit of the Executors of the late Mr. Isaac Blight.”* and
it is signed by himself; that the second draft was
erased by the Bankers in their ordinary course of
business.

Gentlemen, here you have another contradiction;
for the prisoner says that Mr. Blight never did go to
town on that day; be certainly did, and was at M,
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Percival’s shop; vou find that he went there; that.this
note which the prisoner had said should be taken up,
. he never did take up at all; but that he wrote a let-
- ter, “which has been read to you, saying, that it was
.. not convenient to Goom to pay it, but that he himself
" had taken a note of Goom’s for it, which he would
call an:! leave with them, which, however, he never
did. '
The two persons, whose names had been men-
tioned, Webster and Clarke, were then called, in
order to prove that they were in diiferent places at
that time, and thesuspicion which the prisoner was
the first to sugzest with respect to them, could not be
at all founded in fact, for they proved themselves to
have been in totally different places.

Thomas Webster says, that he heard, on Tuesday,
that Mr, Blight was killed ; that on the Monday night
he was at Lavender Yard, at work, till six o’clock;
that he stopped at the public house till near half past
seven, and then went home, and never left his home
afterwards that evening, but went to bed about eight
o’clock ; that his daughter was in labour, a circum.
stance sufficient to make him remember the day,
and he thought that the best way was to go to bed
and get out of the way; that when he had passed
by Mr. Blight’s house, that evening, in his way home,
it was about half past six; that his son never had ab-
sconded, that he had gone to sea the last day of
August, and did not return till a fortnight after Mr.
Blight’s death, so that what was called his absconding,
which now turns out to be his going to sea, could
have nothing to do with this matter; that his yard
was searched ; that the prisoner was the cause of its
being searched; that he does not think Mr. Blight
had any concern in its being searched. 'The search
was made after his son went away, therefore he could
not possibly have absconded on that account. You
find, therefore, Gentlemen, that immediately on the
prisoner being asked whether he could cast a suspi-
cion on any one, he does cast a suspicion on Web-
ster, an account of his yard having been searched ;
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‘but, in Webster’s estimation, Patch himself was the
man who caused that search in his yard, and not Mr.
Blight.

William Webster, the son, says, that he left Lon-
don the 31st of August; that he went to Deal, and
returned about a fortnight after Mr. Blight was shot.

Harriet Webster, the daughter, says, that her
father came home about seven ; that he went to bed
about eight, and that she had occasion to call him up
between three and four, for her sister to get into the
bed into which he had gone.

Joseph Clark says, that he is a labouring man;
that on the day on which Mr. Blight was shot, he
himself went, at five o'clock in the afternoon, fmm
Rotherhithe, across the water, to the Red Lion at
Poplar ; that John Cox was with him ; that they staid
there about an hour an half; that they then went to
the Green Dragon, and then to the King’s Head on
Limehouse Causeway, where they remained till about
half past nine ; that John Cox was with him the whole
of the day; that he had had something of a-quarrel
with Mr. Blight about repairing a wharf, but that
that was a long time ago, and that they were not
near Mr. Blight’s premises in the course of that day.

John Cox intirely confirms this witness, stating the
same places, and saying, that he was never out_of his
company in the whole of the day.

Then the agreement was put in merely to shew that
1250/. was to be paid into the business, upon which
the business was to be separated and the prisoner was
to have one third of the business, and of the stock
belonging to that business.

Mr. Jones, the Surgeon, is then called ; he says
he saw the prisoner at Mr. Blight’s; that he had
known him about a year and a half; that he generaliy
wore boots, and that he saw him on the bed, and in
different situations in the house, the evening of the
accident ; that he had boots on in the evening when
he called first, but not when he was called in as a
Surgeon ; that Jbetween half past five and six he was
with Mr. Blight, and the prisoner rode into the yard,
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he was then booted; that he was called in as a Sur.
geon and arrived befnre nine o’clock ; the prisoner
met him between the door of the parlour and the bed
on which Mr. Blight was lying; that he told him
what had happened, and pointed out Mr. Blight to
him ; that all the assistance which Mr, Blight required
“he would have only from the prisoner, so much was
he in the favour of Mr. Blight; that the breeches he
then had on were light coloured like his own, and
the stockings he had on were white, he thinks. they
were ribbed stockings.

Mary Salter says, that she washed for the prisoner;
that she remembers hearing of the death of Mr.
Blight ; that she had received from the prisoner his
linen on that Monday, about eleven o'clock in the
morning ; that she had had his linen only once be-
fore, and that was at the distance of about a month;
that different persons stockings are marked with dif-
ferent coloured worsteds; that she cannot recollect
having any white stockings from the prisoner on that
day ; there is a pair of stockings shewn to her, she
says they are marked like the manner in which she
: marks them for her new customers, but she cannot
say she marked these in particular; that the linen she
had from the prisoner on the Monday, was foul upon
the Tuesday, and was washed on the Wednesday, and
afterwards delivered to him, so that you do not get
these stockings identified by this w nman, or to have
come to her from the hands of the prisoner.

Mr. Stafford is then called, he says he found a palr
of stockings, which were prm:luced by him, in a closet
in the prisoner’s bed-room: That they were- folded
up, and one of them turned over, having exactly the
appearance of a pair of clean stockings ; that the hard-
ness on the inside induced him to open them, and he
found the feet in the state in which they are now;
that the upper part was very clean though now it ap-
pears dirty; that the room in which he found themn
was that over the counting-house and privy, which is
proved by the other witnesses te, have been his
room ; there are no initials on the smckmgs
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* On his cross examination he says, that he made this
discovéry upon the 0th ofSéptember, so that from the
28d to the 30th, a whole weck, they must have re-
miged there ; the evidence upon this point amounts
to this, that a pair of stockings were found in his
room in a situation in which one should not at all ex.
pect to have found them ; that they had about them
the marks of a person having been walking without
his shoes, where there was a great deal of mud,
and 1t 1s said, that that mud was of the sort which
lay a good deal about this yard, and these are the
sort of stockings which Mr Jones saw the prisoner
wear between eleven and twelve that evening.
Richard Murch was then called, and he speaks toa
remarkable circumstance. He says that he was employ-
ed to search this privy on Wednesday, the second day
after Mr. Blight’s death ; that he found a ramrod of
3 pistol in the trunk which led to the wvault, about
~two inches stuck in the soil, and there was wadding
to the worm end of it, the rest of the ramrod was
perfectly clean ; that there was nothing in that place
which looked as if any person having a looseness had
been there, but more to the contrary; that he saw
the priscner at the time of the examinations before
the Coroner, his sister was there also; that some one
was speaking to the prisoner’s sister, and the prisoner
called her on one side, and said, ¢ Sarah, have not
such and such Gentlemen been asking you questions?*’
that their names were mentioned, but he does not
recollect them; that she answered, ¢ Yes:” wupon
which he said, “ Be cautious of what you say; the
report is of me, but they can bring no proof against
me.” That when he found this ramrod the prisoner
was at the Acorn; that this was the first time he had
been there, and he had not heard whether there were
reports against the prisoner or not. Upon some ques-
tions from me it turns out, that the place was of this
description, that the soil which he says was very hard,
operated as the bottom of a pan, and kept from sink-
ing or falling any thing from the top, that it could
find no passage. This witness also says, that if a
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person liad been several times on the Monday making
use of this place, who was affected with a louseness,
he is able, from his experience, to say, that he must
have perceived it; he certainly went there so late s
eight or nine o’clock on the Monday, according to the
testimony of one or two of the witnesses; and this
workman says, that if any person had been even
once, much more if he had been t'here more than
once, havirg a looseness, it is impossible but that he
must have discovered it in the soil, and that no per-
son in that situation could have made use of this
place, for that there was nothing that indicated a per-
son having been distressed in the way in which the
prisoper states he was, but quite the contrary.

Mary Smith says, that she was servant at the Brown
Bear, where these persons were waiting to be called in
their turns for the purpose of examination; that the
prisoner asked her how the servant was, meaning
Hester Kitchener, and desired her to take a glass ot
wine to her, and to give his compliments and tell her
not to fret, for. that they only kept her confined to
frichten her, to see whether she would alter her
StOry. ‘

‘Then Mr. Graham is produced and he gives yow
the examinations.

Gentlemen, not to weary you too much with these
examinations : I think I can take upon me to repeat
what is the substance of them. There is, first, an ac-
count of the transaction of the 15th of July, which
he represents as an entire settlement of all accounts
whatever, and that in consequence of it the deeds hag
been delivered over to him, and he had then began
business on his own account : The next is-with respect’
to this note ; he says, that never was a true note at
all; but entirely a fabrication suggested by Blight;
that Blight was no way interested in it, but that
Blight who had no cash himself at Willis and Perci«
val's, thought it would be a2 good expedient, and ad-
vised the prisoner to sepd this fictitious 10004 draft
in for the purpose of vapouring and making some
better figure in VWillis and Percival’s books. Now,
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what better figure such a draft could have enabled
the account to make, it seems very difficult for any
mortal man to find out; if Mrs. Blight tells you the
truth, it was, on the  contrary, considered to be a
good bill, and payment was expected upon it by Mr.
Blight, and, in corroboration of that, Mr. Graham
tells you, that the prisoner was ordered not to come
back without the payment of this bill.

This is the whole of the case on the part of the Pro-
secution.

Gentlemen, the substance of the defence of the pri-
soner, as well as I could take it, was this. In the first
place, that the destruction of Mr. Blight would be the
ruin of himself ; certainly the trade might not go on
with the same prosperity as if Mr. Blight had lived
but you will recollect, that the representatives of
Blight, might have carried on this trade on the same
terms as if he had lived. It appears to have been
Blight’s intention, not to have concerned himself as he
had done, in the business ; but to take this very active
young man in, who had ingratiated himself very much
with him: and in all human probability, he proposed
to take him in, in order that the prisoner might take
the labour off his shoulders, by undertaking the active
conduct of this business ; so that if he had paid this
1000/, or made them believe that he had paid it, the
business would have been carried on, by the Executors
and himself, It certainly does not necessarily follow,
that that business would have been broken up, in con-
sequence of Mr. Blight’s death. The defence then
goes on to state, that a dispute about tythes, was the
cause of his selling an estate in Devonshire : we have
however, no evidence of his having had any such
estate whatever. He then insists upon advances made
to Mr. Blight ; and insists upon it, thar Mrs. Blight
knew of those advances. Mrs. Blight, however, swears
directly to the contrary; and insists upon his owing
this 1000/ at the time of her husband’s death. He
further insists upon there being a valid purchase, on
the 15th of July, of Mr. Blight’s whole property ; that
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there was an actual and valid assignment ; and that the
déeds were delivered over to him at that time but
Mrs. Blight insists upon itthey never were delivered, but
remained in that same tin box in which they were first
deposited, until the 27th day of September. He says,

that this 1000/ composed no part of the capital at all ;
but was mere cash to oo into Mr. Bhght’s pocket ; hav-
ing no connexion with the business, and not to be so
much as brought into the trade. The contrary ap-
pears from all the rest of .the evidence, and by the
agreement itself ; from which it appears, that 250/
was paid, as part of the 12504 which was to be the
purchase moncy, for the cne third share of the business ;
but of which the 1000/ had not been paid ; he says,

that the circumstances respecting the chec,k, were
known to Mrs. Blight; and he still persists in that
statement, that it was a matter merely to keep up ap-
pearances, and which was never considered at all as va-
lid money ; that she knew that this was concerted be-
tween Mr. Blight and himself.—You have heard the
account she has given, which is very different.

Gentlemen, thc prisoner has called to his character,
two or three witnesses, who have known him for the
last two vears and a half, or thereabouts.

Mr. Slee says, that he has known him about two
years and a half; and that he has never known any
thlng arniss of him.

Mr. Huffam says, that he has known him about
three years; that every thing he heard from Mr.
Blight of him was honourable ; that he knows nothing
but what he heard from Mr. Blight.

Mr. Poole says, that he has not known him inti-
mately, but only by dealing at the yard ; he consider-
ed humn to be a careful, industrious man ; and humane
in making a bargain with his workmen.

Now, Gentlemen,uponthe whole ofthis evidence,you
are in the first place, to consider with yourselves whe-
ther you are satisfied with respect to this1000. note
whether there was or was not, a complete deception
carried on upon Mr, Blight with respect to thaty whes
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ther there was not in Mr. Blight’s mind, a perfect por-
suasion, that this 1000/ a part of the consideration for
a third of the trade, was good and effective money ;
and would actually be paid as part of the considera-
tion. The evidence, in that respect, seems to be ex-
tremely clear; and in no way to be affected by the
suggestion, that Mr. Blight was desirous of keeping up
a foolish appearance; not with his own cash, at his
own bankers, but with respect to the prisoner’s cash,
at his bankers. If you think that that is so, then the
next question is, does any man deceive in this manner,
time after time, without some ulterior object in view ;
and then the question will be, whether he had the ul-
terior object of destm}ring this Gentleman.

The next step in the business is, the transaction upon
the 19th ; now that consists of these circumstances. He
himself orders the windowto be shut, at an earlier hour
than usual, namely, at half past six. Vhe effect of that win-
dow being shut, would be, that no one could see whe-
ther any one was or was not sitting in the room, when
the pistol was fired at the window. It is proved, that
it was impossible that any one could see the light
from the outside. Now we must suppose, that if a
stranger had shot off this pistol, it must have been
either a man who knew the state of the family at that
time, or did not ; if he did not know the divided state
of the family, he must think that Mr. and Mrs. Blight
and the prisoner were all in the house together; and
that the maid might be passing, or visitors have come
in. If you suppose he could not know whether any
body was in the room or not; or not knowing who
was in the room, you suppose him to have fired this
pistol, taking the chance of whofi' it might strike, it
seems to be a very inexpert way, that any person in-
tending to take away the life of any particular indi-
vidual, should fire through the window shutter, and
take the chance of that individual being in the seat in
which he usually sat, or near it, when it was iinpos-
sible that he should know whether he or any other
person, or what person, :::;IS in the room; and if he

. ]
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awas, could not tell in what part of the room he might
happen to be. ol ¢

If that person knew that the prisoner alone was in
the house, how should he know that he was gone to
_ it in Mr. Blight’s chair, the window shutters being
shut ; he could not see whether he or any one was
there or not. It should appear, from the firing be-
ing towards the situation in which Mr. Blight sat when
at home, the design must have been to fire at M.
Blight, and not at the prisoner; but if you suppose
this was all a stratagem, every thing seems to have
been correspondent to the purpose. Mr. and Mrs.
Blight were out of the way, at Margate; the maid
was sent out for oysters ; the coast was perfectly clear;
and even if there was a candle in the room it could
not be seen whether he was there or not; that fact
seems to make it somewhat unaccountable that it
should be a stranger who can have fired this pistol ;
then there is added to that, a negative of its being any
other person than the prisoner, by the witnesses who
have stated, that they were so situated at the moment,
that they heard the pistol fired off, that no person
could have come over the paling, without their having
observed it; and that with respect to a part of the
paling, it was so very slender that they could not have
gone over without breaking it; and that no such
breaking appeared upon the palings.

‘Then the third step is the fact itself; with respect
to that, I have already observed to you, that the door
when he, went out of this place, was certainly left
open, which might be to afford an opportunity of his
returning quickly, for the purpose charged by this in.
dictment. You find that there was no anxiety what-
ever with respect to making any search, or makin
any enquiry, or any of that sort of bustle, which it 1s
to be expected will shew itself upon such an occasion,
in one who had so much regard for the deceased as the
prisoner expressed. Then you have it from the same
sort of evidence as that respecting the former occasion,
that no person was seen to go from the house; none
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whatever. One should almost have expected the pets
son who had shot Mr. Blight, if a stranger, must have
been seen by the prisoner himself, on his return from
the privy; you find also, that in this necessary to
which he says he had frequent resort, there is not the
east appearance of any man having resorted there, in
the circumstances in which he stated himself to be.
You find that there is an instrument for charging a
pistol, not exposed to view, but intended to be con-
cealed ; namely, the ramrod, sticking in the soil ; we
know that there is some small difliculty in returning a
ramrod into the small circle which receives it in a pis-
tol ; and it appears probable, that a person in a hurry
might stick it in this place, or in the first place he came
to, and go on with the pistol to perpetrate his pur-
pose. You find that there were stockings, such as he
was seen with between eleven and twelve that night,
afterwards discovered, all over mud, in the closet of
the room in which he slept.

- Now in opposition to this, there is the demeanor of
the prisoner in other respects. That demeanor con- °
sists 1n his having shewn considerable attention to Mr.
Blight, during the whole time after he received the
shot, till he actually expired. But that might be part
of that hypocritical mode of conducting himself,
which formed a part of the plan imputed to him. To
be sure, if that attention was ingenuous and sincere, it
goes against the idea of his being himself the very hand
that occasioned the death; but we do certainly know,
that these things are sometimes concerted with great
art ; and carried on so as to deceive the persons who
have been present.

Gentlemén, you are to decide upon the whole of
the circumstances ; whether you are satisfied that this’
was a transaction on the part of the prisoner, which
was bottomed in fraud originally ; which was carried
on by the entire deception of Mr. Blight ; and ended
at last in his murder; taking into consideration the
evidence of Hester Kitchener, with respect to the space
of time that was necessary for the prisoner to have

N 2
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come from the necessary (where she says she heard
hiin, and in the counting house) to the apartment
where Mr. Blight was ; and to have been the person
who actually fired that pistol. If you shall be of opi-
nion that this case is fabricated, it is the most long-
headed, and the best constructed case that one can pos-
sibly conceive ; but many of the circumstances are un-
accounted for, unless upon the supposition of his guilt. ;
you will consider whether they are or are not satisfac-
tory to you. The nature of circumstantial evidence
being this, that the whole body of it must be such,
that you must be satisfied there is no rational mode of
accounting for those circumstances, but upon the sup-
position that the prisoner is guilty. If you think that
there is any rational mode of accounting for those cir-
cumstances ; that there is the least tolerable degree of
probability, by which they may be accounted for, con-
sistently with the innocence of the prisoner ; then itis
evidence of that nature which will not warrant you in
the conviction of the prisoner. You will take the
whole into your consideration, and determine as you
shall think consistent with the truth of the case,

The Jury retired for len minutes, and then brought
in the pirisoner—GUILTY, '

Lorp CHieF Baron MacpoNALD.

Richard Patch,

You have been tried by a most attentive and most
considerate jury. In pronouncing the verdict of
Guilty upon you, they have found, that you began this
practice in fraud; that you continued it in ingrati-
tude ; and terminated it in the murder of your friend
and benefactor., More need not—more cannot be said.
It remains only for me to pass the sentence of the law
upon you, Ti:at you be taken from this place to the
place from whence you came; and that on Monday
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morning next, you be taken to the place of execution
that you be hanged by the neck until you are dead;
and that your body be then delivered to the surgeons
for dissection. And may the Almighty have mercy
on your soul.

The prisoner was executed on Tuesday the 8th of
April, and his body was delivered to the Surgeons to
be anatomized.
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